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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·We call to order the January meeting of

·3· ·the LEDC Corporation Board.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Can we have a rollcall, please?

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·A.J. Roy.

·7· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Alden Andre.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Louis Reine.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Susan Tham.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Mandi Mitchell.

22· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

23· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Cal Simpson.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Nitin Kamath.

·4· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Sue Durand.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Kimberly Johnson.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. JOHNSON:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Todd McDonald

15· · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:

18· · · · · · · · · ·We have a quorum.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

20· · · · · · · · · ·As you can see, we have two new board

21· ·members this morning, and I'd like to ask each of them

22· ·one at a time to please introduce themselves and give us

23· ·a little bit about their background.· We'll start with

24· ·Sue Durand.

25· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·I'm honored to represent the Louisiana

·2· ·Bankers Association, and I have to tell you that I'm the

·3· ·longest serving commissioner, not the oldest, but the

·4· ·longest serving commissioner of the St. Landry Economic

·5· ·Development Council.· And I still serve on it, and it's

·6· ·been a great ride.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·I am the President and CEO of Washington

·8· ·State Bank, which is the second oldest bank chartered in

·9· ·Louisiana.· It was founded in 1893.· And I could name

10· ·all of my civic organizations, but I won't take up all

11· ·of your time, but it's a great ride and I'm just happy

12· ·to be on this Board.· Thank you very much.

13· · · · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:

14· · · · · · · · · · · · Good morning.· My name is Todd

15· ·McDonald, New Orleans native, and I am representing the

16· ·Louisiana Workforce Council.· I am chair of their

17· ·council.· And I also have a background in banking as

18· ·well.· I've been in banking for 14 years, and I'm very

19· ·happy to be here as well.· So looking forward to a

20· ·productive term.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Welcome both of you.· We look

23· ·forward to working with you.

24· · · · · · · · · ·Next on the agenda is the approval of

25· ·the minutes of last meeting.· I didn't realize that was
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·1· ·way back in August.· So could I have a motion --

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Chairman, that's why I wasn't paying

·4· ·attention during your finance meeting because I read

·5· ·through them.· So I move we adopt the minutes.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·We have a motion and second to adopt the

10· ·minutes.

11· · · · · · · · · ·Do we have any comments, comments from

12· ·the public?· Any comments from the Board members?· Any

13· ·changes, additions or deletions?

14· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

16· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor?

17· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?

20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Next on the agenda is we have one

23· ·inhouse approval that was done since our last meeting

24· ·that stuff to give us a report on that.· That's Aerion

25· ·Rental Services.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· My name is Marissa Doin.

·3· ·We have one loan update for you today with Aerion Rental

·4· ·Services, LLC.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Aerion is as oil field service company.

·6· ·They were formed back in 2008.· So what they do is they

·7· ·provide equipment and labor to companies to help wash

·8· ·down the rigs after they're taken down.· They currently

·9· ·have 104 employees, and with this guaranty, they're

10· ·going to be creating six new jobs.

11· · · · · · · · · ·They've requested a $500,000 term loan

12· ·backed by equipment to help manage and pay down their

13· ·accounts payables.· The guarantees are going to be for

14· ·$375,000 for five years.· With their rising sales and

15· ·positive cash flow for 2017, Aerion is projected to grow

16· ·significantly, which is why staff recommended approval.

17· ·And this one was approved and closed in August by Rayne

18· ·State Bank.

19· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions?

20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions from the Board members?

23· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

24· · · · · · · · · ·There's in the oil and gas business?

25· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR REINE:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·You're talking about exceptional growth

·4· ·in their company in today's current oil and gas market?

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·The industry is bouncing back.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Do you need a motion, Mr. Chairman?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

10· · · · · · · · · ·No.· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · · · ·Next is our Finance Committee report,

12· ·and, Susan, before you start, I want to commend you for

13· ·a great job you do as our chair of our Finance

14· ·Committee.· I applaud your great expertise and

15· ·professionalism in handling this committee and guiding

16· ·us through this.· Thanks a lot.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you very much.

19· · · · · · · · · ·As the Board heard, the financial

20· ·statements were presented by Mr. Aaron Cooper, J. Aaron

21· ·Cooper, CPA, LLC.· He audited our financial statements.

22· ·And the supplemental information was explained by

23· ·Mr. Katsanis -- I'm still not going to get it right --

24· ·of Chaffe & Associates.

25· · · · · · · · · ·After hearing their information, the
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·1· ·Finance Committee has passed a motion to recommend that

·2· ·the Board accept the financial statements as they stand.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·We have a motion and a second to approve

·9· ·the Finance Committee report.

10· · · · · · · · · ·Are there any comments, questions?· Any

11· ·opinions from the public?· Any comments from the public?

12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor.

15· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?

18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, Susan.

21· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Next on our agenda is election of

22· ·officers.· Our Chairman is not here this morning.· He

23· ·has a bad back.· He pulled his back, but so now to open

24· ·up the meeting to nominations for the chair of the

25· ·Board.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Well, since Mr. Roy's not here, I think

·3· ·I will nominate him.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·We'll teach him to not show up.· We'll

·8· ·give him more work.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Is there a second?

13· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, second.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Any other nominations?

17· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

19· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor of appointing Mr. Roy as

20· ·our next chair.

21· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?

24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Next is vice-chair, and if you'd like,

·3· ·I'll be happy to leave in case you want to nominate

·4· ·someone else.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·You can stay here.· You're doing such an

·7· ·absolutely fantastic job this morning, I'll nominate you

·8· ·for vice-chair.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Any other nominees?

13· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor.

16· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?

19· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · · · ·And committee appointments.· Staff, you

23· ·want to give us that report?

24· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:

25· · · · · · · · · ·If you look in your packet, I think the
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·1· ·overall on Page 127, it begins on that page.· We have a

·2· ·handful of committees on Page 128.· I'm sorry.· 27, 28.

·3· ·We have a total of five different committees, and this

·4· ·is the way that the committees stood as of January of

·5· ·2017, so they have not changed.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·The Executive Committee is obviously

·7· ·made up of the chairman, the vice-chair, and then the --

·8· ·it's basically all of the chairmen of every single

·9· ·committee.· So that's pretty much a set one.· The other

10· ·four need to be appointed.· And underneath each one,

11· ·like the Screening Committee, we typically appoint five

12· ·positions.· We don't necessarily have to, but each

13· ·committee will require at least three members of that

14· ·committee to meet or the chair of that committee.· And

15· ·the interesting thing is that the vast majority of them

16· ·doesn't even have to have the chair of the committee to

17· ·meet as long as the chair is knowledgeable of the

18· ·meeting.

19· · · · · · · · · ·The Screening Committee is probably our

20· ·most widely used of the committees.· It holds meetings

21· ·in place of the Board for certain projects in the event

22· ·that the Board cannot have a quorum.· We've run into

23· ·that issue in the past due to weather delays and

24· ·scheduling conflicts and emergencies.· So the Screening

25· ·Committee will meet and review projects for the EDAP
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·1· ·program and the Small Business Loan Guaranty program

·2· ·when the full Board is not available.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·They can be appointed however you'd

·4· ·like.· If the Board -- I mean, I know our chair is not

·5· ·here, so I guess it would be up to the vice-chair to

·6· ·appoint or if anybody has an interest in being on any

·7· ·particular committee itself.· We have --

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·I'd like to ask our new members if they

10· ·have any interest or would like to volunteer for any of

11· ·these.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Chair, can I ask a question?

14· · · · · · · · · ·Under the Screening Committee, how is

15· ·that language developed?· Is it something we did or is

16· ·that mandated language?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Yeah.· That was created years and years

19· ·ago when the Board was first formed.· It's changed a

20· ·little bit over the years, but it has been a while.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Well, it seems kind of confusing.· If

23· ·we're going to appoint five members, like couldn't we

24· ·just chang it to "The chairman's going to appoint five

25· ·members," instead of "shall consist of three members
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·1· ·including the vice-chairman and two additional members

·2· ·who may be appointed or alternatives."· If we appoint

·3· ·five members, why don't we just say the chairman's going

·4· ·to appoint five members?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·We can look into that.· I'll have to

·7· ·double check if it's in the statute or bylaws.  I

·8· ·believe if it's in the bylaws, I think the Board can

·9· ·just meet and decide on changing it.· If it's the

10· ·statute, that would be a whole different ball game.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

12· · · · · · · · · ·If there's a reason for it to read that

13· ·way, but it would be much clearer if we just say what

14· ·we're going to do and do what we say.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Layman's terms.· I agree.· Layman's

17· ·terms.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Before our new board members comment,

20· ·one thing I'd like to point out about is that one of the

21· ·things that I was always told about the Screening

22· ·Committee is a lot of times trying to get people

23· ·together when it's hard to get a quorum.· And so, for

24· ·instance, I had always volunteered for it because I was

25· ·in Baton Rouge, you know, I worked 10 miles away, and I
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·1· ·could be here easily.· So that's something to consider

·2· ·for the Screening Committee.· It would require you

·3· ·trying to commit to being here if you were needed.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·And it is for that same reason, I'd like

·5· ·to take my name off the Screening Committee.· For those

·6· ·of you who have been here for a while, you know that

·7· ·basically I have put in my letter of resignation pending

·8· ·my move out of state.· I retired this year.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Remove your name from what?

11· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

12· · · · · · · · · ·From the Screening Committee.· Yeah.

13· ·It's not very practical for me living in Florida to have

14· ·to come.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

16· · · · · · · · · ·You can move me to Florida.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Anyone else on the committee that does

19· ·not want to continue serving?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Chairman?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

23· · · · · · · · · ·New members?

24· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Chairman, I'm going to suggest that
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·1· ·we wait till the next meeting and officially do that so

·2· ·that we can look at -- have Mr. Roy look at the new

·3· ·members and offer them opportunities because I don't see

·4· ·their names on any of these committees.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·And that was my next question.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Well, this is how it is today where the

·9· ·Chairman is supposed to be here and he's aware it's that

10· ·time of year to reappoint them; correct?· Rather than

11· ·take any action today, I think we ought to allow the

12· ·opportunity for the chairman to consider the new members

13· ·and what would be their preference and that we just

14· ·defer appointing these committees till the next meeting.

15· ·I think the new members ought to have an opportunity to

16· ·participate, and they're not on this list.· So I

17· ·wouldn't want to adopt it as it is.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Does everybody agree?

20· · · · · · · ·MS. JOHNSON:

21· · · · · · · · · ·I had a question about availability.· Is

22· ·there a way to call in for the meetings as it's not

23· ·based on bylaws?· Okay.· So you have to be physically

24· ·present in Baton Rouge?

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·And I don't really recommend we start

·2· ·that.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·That's actually in a violation of the

·5· ·whole --

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·I sit on a board where they do that, and

·8· ·it's so cumbersome.· People tend not to come, and then

·9· ·you have an audience with just two board members to look

10· ·at it.· And I'll vote with the majority, but I don't

11· ·recommend it.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

13· · · · · · · · · ·And I'll oppose it.

14· · · · · · · · · ·Anyway, I move to defer the appointment

15· ·of committees to the next meeting.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Is there a second?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

21· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor.

22· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?

25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Next we'll move to Treasurer's

·3· ·Report.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·I'm having a computer malfunction.· My

·6· ·Secretary Treasurer's Report did not come over on the

·7· ·PDF, so if I could please get somebody else's -- okay.

·8· ·Thank you, Mr. Reine.· I appreciate that.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Before I start, Anne Villa,

10· ·Undersecretary for LED.· I think I met the two new Board

11· ·members.· I just wanted to point out to you-all, we have

12· ·our Director of Legal Operations, Tam Bourgeois, here

13· ·with us.· I don't think that she's been introduced to

14· ·the Board in the past.· Mr. Cangelosi is out ill, and I

15· ·just want to take a moment to introduce Tam to each of

16· ·you.· So Tam is here as our legal representative this

17· ·morning.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

19· · · · · · · · · ·So he has not retired?· I thought he

20· ·retired.· No?· Okay.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. TAM:

22· · · · · · · · · ·No.

23· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Starting with the LEDC Secretary

25· ·Treasurer's report, I have -- yes.· Okay.· So starting
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·1· ·on Page 1, we have our FY '18 budget for total of

·2· ·Financial Assistance of $190,000 with the Loan

·3· ·Assistance Program.· And then our State Small Business

·4· ·Credit Initiatives, as you can see, it's been

·5· ·strengthening because we've been using that fund.· We

·6· ·have a budget of $1,223,442.· And we have that project

·7· ·which we previously approved in August for 93,750, which

·8· ·leaves us with our balance of $1,319,692.· And we have a

·9· ·couple of projects that are under review right now.· Rex

10· ·Industrial and M&A Safety, which total $148,328, which

11· ·leaves us with a current projected yearend balance of

12· ·$1,171,364.

13· · · · · · · · · ·Regarding our EDAP program, we have an

14· ·FY '18 budget of $5,537,819, and we have projects that

15· ·have been approved by the Board of $1,103,179, which

16· ·leaves a balance of $4,434,640.· And we currently have

17· ·projects under review within the department of

18· ·$2,550,000.· And we have a projected yearend balance of

19· ·$1,884,640.· And that is what we're projecting to end

20· ·the year with.

21· · · · · · · · · ·If you go to our financial statements on

22· ·the next -- our Fund Balance on the next page, our

23· ·General Appropriation projected for FY '18 has a fund

24· ·balance available of $15,410,844 with expenditures

25· ·expected at $14,579,203 with a yearend projection --
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·1· ·that should read 6/30 of '18 -- of 831,641.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Questions?

·3· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Just to let you know, we did submit our

·6· ·budget request for FY '18, and we do have in our Capital

·7· ·Outlay budget request an additional $10-million for the

·8· ·EDAP fund.· As you all know, the initial budget was

·9· ·presented last week.· The Capital Outlay budget request

10· ·I think it was more HB1 and HB2.· I don't believe has

11· ·been presented yet, but in HB2's request, we actually

12· ·have our $10-million request for the EDAP fund, which we

13· ·use, for our new members, for infrastructure development

14· ·with projects.

15· · · · · · · · · ·And when I get to the President's Report

16· ·given in lieu of Mandi, since she's not here, there was

17· ·a project that was recently announced in the Fall that

18· ·was awarded the EDAP fund.· And so we should expect to

19· ·see them coming to the Board I would think pretty soon.

20· ·So I would save that for those announcement.

21· · · · · · · · · ·So if no questions, I'll turn it over to

22· ·Molly, who will give our Accountant's Report.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

24· · · · · · · · · ·I do have a question.· I'm just trying

25· ·to figure out the appropriate time.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Does the Constitution provide the

·2· ·administration, as proposed in the '18-'19 budget, based

·3· ·on the estimation of revenue, where does DED's budget as

·4· ·a whole, and in particularly it affects us look like in

·5· ·the budget proposal compared to the present budget?

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·It's not going to affect LEDC.· Where it

·8· ·does affect is LED's Regional Economic Development

·9· ·Organization known as LEDO.· We fund them $1,360,000

10· ·every year, and that's been removed from the budget in

11· ·order for it to be balanced.· It's obviously not one

12· ·that the Governor nor the Commission or the

13· ·Administration or the Secretary want to have removed

14· ·from our budget, but as it stands right now, to present

15· ·that balanced budget, we had to reduce that by

16· ·1,360,000.

17· · · · · · · · · ·In addition, every year, LED has

18· ·appropriated for, it's called a Rapid Response Fund,

19· ·which gives the authority to the Secretary and the

20· ·Governor to utilize those funds for projects and deploy

21· ·them, especially onces that are going to make an

22· ·immediate impact to the economy.· That fund, we

23· ·generally get an infusion of $10-million each year.

24· ·This year the infusion is was only going to be

25· ·$5-million.· That's in this initial budget, and so
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·1· ·that's kind of those two areas that we've been hit with.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Wasn't that Rapid Response Fund like

·4· ·number one in the nation?

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·You're talking about FastStart.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·So the Rapid Respond is not the

·9· ·FastStart?

10· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Rapid Response has discretionary funding

12· ·for business development.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Do we have a motion to accept the

17· ·Treasurer's Report?

18· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

19· · · · · · · · · ·I so move.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions or any comments from the

24· ·public?

25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor.

·3· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?

·6· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Before we move from the Treasurer's

·9· ·Report, I brought this up I guess a couple of years ago

10· ·a concern I have that our activity is very low.· You

11· ·look here, and we haven't met since August, and, you

12· ·know, we had one project.· And when I brought it up, I

13· ·was given a report on what's in the pipeline.· And, in

14· ·fact, actually all of our Treasurer's Report gave us is

15· ·a specific indication of what's in the pipeline.  I

16· ·don't see very much this morning.

17· · · · · · · · · ·Could staff enlighten us on where we

18· ·are, what's in the pipeline, what can be expected?

19· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Well, this morning -- thank you for

21· ·bringing that up.· I was going to find a point to bring

22· ·you up-to-date.

23· · · · · · · · · ·The lack of projects that you see on the

24· ·Secretary Treasurer's Report is not indicative of the

25· ·activity that the staff has performed in order to try to
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·1· ·generate some marketing.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Then there should be something given to

·4· ·us monthly as to what it is.· We have no knowledge of

·5· ·what's in the pipeline, what to expect.· So if you can

·6· ·add just a one-pager, it will help us a lot.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Sure.· What we'll do is, what we have

·9· ·done as of yesterday, we finished our marketing tracking

10· ·chart to show what the marketing efforts have been by

11· ·the staff for last calendar, last fiscal -- calendar and

12· ·fiscal year.· It shows our participation with a lot of

13· ·the small business development centers, some of the

14· ·roundtable we've participated in, the one-on-one banking

15· ·meetings that we've had, all of those activities

16· ·concerned with our smalls business marketing efforts.

17· · · · · · · · · ·We did have their -- however, there

18· ·are -- there were several loans that were under review

19· ·that came to us that staff reviewed in our inhouse staff

20· ·level that did not come to fruition.· They were

21· ·reviewed.· Some of them came to the brink of review.· We

22· ·had to -- that may have been pulled by the bank for

23· ·reasons.· But starting next month, we'll give you that

24· ·monthly look at, "Okay.· This is what we did, but this

25· ·is what came out of those efforts."· And the marketing
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·1· ·takes place --

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·And will that include what's in the

·4· ·pipeline that you haven't done anything yet with?

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· Well, the Secretary Treasurer's

·7· ·Report is up to date of what's in the pipeline

·8· ·currently.· Well, except there's some that we don't

·9· ·categorize, but we can, because we are still trying to

10· ·work those loans to make sure they come to fruition, but

11· ·we can give you those possibles as well.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

13· · · · · · · · · ·I'm curious, the availability of SBA

14· ·loans and Restore loans, are those offset in some of the

15· ·activity that we might have seen otherwise because those

16· ·are available?

17· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Not necessarily.· In fact, I was --

19· ·right after the flood, the Restore Home and also the

20· ·entity within the state department that handles small

21· ·business loans, I was on the planning committee for

22· ·that, and you're just not seeing any movement on almost

23· ·either side.· There's a pile of money that Restore Home

24· ·still has -- Restore Louisiana still has that's

25· ·available for small businesses, and people are just not
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·1· ·coming forth to apply for them.· The SBA --

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·I understand that, but they're

·4· ·advertising that Restore loan at zero percent interest

·5· ·rate, that under certain conditions you wouldn't even

·6· ·have to pay back part of the loan.· It looks like if

·7· ·that was something they might have approached us with,

·8· ·that's a more attractive product than what we have, and

·9· ·I'm just wondering if that's --

10· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

11· · · · · · · · · ·It doesn't play a part because all of

12· ·our loans are -- those are loans that come directly from

13· ·the Restore Louisiana, which are basically direct loans.

14· ·What our challenge has been is getting the banking

15· ·community to get on board.· That's because we only do

16· ·loan guarantees, not direct loans.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Well, that's kind of what I was getting

19· ·at.· If I had the option of going to the bank and making

20· ·the loan or I qualified for the Restore loan, I wouldn't

21· ·be going to the bank because it's zero interest.  I

22· ·might be forgiven part of it.· I just...

23· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

24· · · · · · · · · ·We've not seen any indication, and I've

25· ·been in close contact with and talking with the people
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·1· ·upstairs, in fact, they're in this building, the

·2· ·Community Development, that it's not truly a factor of

·3· ·why we don't see any loans.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· So people are not borrowing money

·6· ·or do people borrow money and just don't need us to give

·7· ·a guaranty?

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·It's a combination of that and then

10· ·some.· The lending activity across the State, for the

11· ·most part, a lot of banks, if they're not using the SBA

12· ·program -- and I know we have a couple of bankers here

13· ·that could probably vouch for this as well.· If they're

14· ·not using the federal programs, they're doing a lot of

15· ·things.· If they are lending, they're probably lending

16· ·without guarantees.· So we're kind of running that fine

17· ·line in the middle where if it's a larger project, it's

18· ·more beneficial, in all honestly, for the banks to go to

19· ·the FEDs because they can do a longer term and they can

20· ·print more money if they need it, where we're working

21· ·with a limited basis.

22· · · · · · · · · ·We found our niche has been the riskier,

23· ·more smaller loans, which would be a straight line

24· ·credit or a cash loan that we can guaranty for two to

25· ·three years to turn our money over quicker, which can be
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·1· ·in combination with an SBA loan.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·So we're in a small piece of that pie in

·3· ·a very specific niche that our program fits into, and

·4· ·apparently that niche or that segment of market that

·5· ·we're looking at is not getting as many loans approved

·6· ·as had been in the past.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·As Brenda had pointed out, we've

·8· ·evaluated several loans over the last four or five

·9· ·months, and only one of those has come to fruition and

10· ·that was the one that Marissa updated us on earlier.

11· ·We've actually got three that we're looking at now, two

12· ·that were reported to you.· And the only time that those

13· ·loans get reported on that Secretary Treasurer's Report,

14· ·those are loans that we are confident in that have the

15· ·highest probability of closing.· And what I mean by that

16· ·is the banker is extremely committed to it or the bank

17· ·is committed to it by having a commitment letter

18· ·proposed to the borrower and signing our application.

19· ·So that means that they're serious.· That's the only

20· ·time we put that on the Secretary Treasurer's Report

21· ·because we've done it in the past where we've gone

22· ·through our processes and approved several loans and

23· ·then the loan never closes, so we have to go back and

24· ·readjust our books and it becomes an accounting

25· ·nightmare.· So we've changed our policy to only report
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·1· ·those that we have a high probability or a good chance

·2· ·of closing that we feel are going to be our best

·3· ·presentation.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·So the ones that you see are probably

·5· ·the two or three out of, you know, 15 that we actually

·6· ·review or discuss in some way, shape or form.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Getting back to your original question,

·8· ·our activity is probably very representative of just the

·9· ·overall lending environment itself.· I've actually been

10· ·in conversation with some of our allies across the state

11· ·here in the local area, BRAC, for example, we've been in

12· ·touch and they've asked the same questions because they

13· ·have a direct pulse on the lending community.· They talk

14· ·to their local bankers on a regular basis, and there's

15· ·no activity from their standpoint here in the Baton

16· ·Rouge area.

17· · · · · · · · · ·And the small businesses or the small

18· ·entrepreneurs are saying the same thing.· They're saying

19· ·that they can't get the loans or that the loans are not

20· ·going out, and the banks are saying that no one is

21· ·qualified to get the loans.· So we're seeing it from

22· ·both ends, but we have noticed that there has been a

23· ·tremendous downward turn in small business lending,

24· ·which is that little area of where we're trying to

25· ·operate.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·One of the things that we will show on

·3· ·the report for you for next month is the relationships

·4· ·that we're developing outside of the banking community.

·5· ·For example, we entered into a Memoranda of

·6· ·Understanding with the City of Minden.· They have what

·7· ·they call a Small business Institute, and the Small

·8· ·Business Institute has, they take a group of potential

·9· ·entrepreneurs, they go through a training process, and

10· ·once they have graduated, if you will, from the training

11· ·process, they are then deemed as eligible and ready to

12· ·possibly go and talk to a bank to have their business

13· ·funded.

14· · · · · · · · · ·I think the Small Business Institute

15· ·just got started late last year.· They're in the process

16· ·of graduating I think three to four businesses, and

17· ·they'll soon be ready to go to a lender to hopefully

18· ·qualify for a loan.· And this is one of the areas that

19· ·we're looking to into to do as kind of like, okay, we'll

20· ·get them and we have to take them to the bank, have

21· ·somebody pre-qualify them and to make sure that they can

22· ·be lender ready, if you will.

23· · · · · · · · · ·So those are -- we're having to think

24· ·outside of the box a little bit rather than just waiting

25· ·for the banking community to say yes.· But the
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·1· ·relationships that staff has developed over the last few

·2· ·years, we've got repeat bankers coming back to us, but

·3· ·we'll go more into that next month when you can see what

·4· ·that activity is and you'll have it in front of you.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·In addition to that, while we're

·7· ·discussing this, from our August meeting is where that

·8· ·the Board had made the big change that we've been

·9· ·requesting last year for a reduction in collateral

10· ·requirements for that Loan Guaranty Program.· Those are

11· ·set to go into effect next month.· DOA has put them out

12· ·there, they're going through their whole process and

13· ·public hearing piece and all of that good stuff.

14· ·They're scheduled, if I remember correctly, to go into

15· ·effect on the 20th of next month, and we've already got

16· ·mass publication of our marketing efforts.· But in

17· ·conversations with our banks that we deal with on a

18· ·regular basis, they're aware of those changes, and we're

19· ·already starting -- staff's already starting to review

20· ·applications that are hinging upon the execution of

21· ·those rule changes.· So I believe the two that are on

22· ·this list are two that are waiting for those rule

23· ·changes to go into effect.

24· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Plus the other side of that, too, is the
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·1· ·EDAP funding that we receive, you know, every year on

·2· ·that, and we do use that whenever we're working with our

·3· ·business development team as a tool in our toolbox for a

·4· ·potential discretionary incentive.· Unfortunately, we

·5· ·don't disclose those until those are actually announced

·6· ·projects that have had, you know, press releases.· So

·7· ·you don't really get to see the activity behind what's

·8· ·really going on until that actual press release goes

·9· ·into effect.· So I just wanted to bring that up to you.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.· I appreciate that.

12· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Moving on to the Account's

13· ·Report.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· I'm Molly Hendricks, and

16· ·I am going over the Account Status Report as of December

17· ·31st, 2017.

18· · · · · · · · · ·The Direct Loans total 674,400.

19· ·Golfballs is our only direct loan, and they're making

20· ·interest only payments at this time.

21· · · · · · · · · ·The EDAP Loans total 424,080.· And the

22· ·Guaranty Loan, Depot Drilling, that was paid off during

23· ·the December.

24· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for Direct Loans is set at

25· ·15 percent for a total of 101,160.· The allowance for
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·1· ·EDAP Loan Losses is also at 15 percent, for a total of

·2· ·63,612.· And the allowance for Guaranty Losses is at

·3· ·zero because that was the one for Depot Drilling that

·4· ·was paid off.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Currently there are 18 SSBCI Guaranteed

·6· ·Loans for a total of $6,249,656.· One of the loans, LA

·7· ·Bayou Bites, is 60 to 90 days past due.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Then the allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed

·9· ·Loan Losses total $1,135,520.

10· · · · · · · · · ·And that concludes my report.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

12· · · · · · · · · ·What do y'all do with the loans 60 to 90

13· ·days past due?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:

15· · · · · · · · · ·We monitor them like they're our

16· ·two-year-old child.· That particular one has been like

17· ·that for about the last 12 months, I would say, a solid

18· ·12 months.· They've been up and down between 30 and 60.

19· ·At one point, they were over 90.· We've been in constant

20· ·contact with the banker, and they are working with them

21· ·directly to get that loan brought up to speed.· The

22· ·problem that the company ran into is they had a contract

23· ·with a sole buyer, and that buyer closed up shop.· So

24· ·they were scrambling to find additional usage or

25· ·contracts for their product, which is alligator meat
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·1· ·that they were originally intending on processing the

·2· ·scraps for dog food, but they have since had to modify

·3· ·their business, so they are in flux at this time.· They

·4· ·are also extremely tight with their debt-to-income ratio

·5· ·that they're basically funding the thing out of their

·6· ·own pocket right now as an individual.· So they've had

·7· ·to actually liquidate I think a few other assets,

·8· ·because they have multiple businesses, to cover their

·9· ·expenses at this time.

10· · · · · · · · · ·So they are doing everything they can to

11· ·make the loan good.· The banker is giving them every

12· ·concession, but we've been in contact with them, but our

13· ·policy is we don't take any action on the loan.· We just

14· ·monitor it and stay in constant contact and assist

15· ·whenever we can to the best of our ability.· Until the

16· ·banker decides that the loan has gone long enough and

17· ·they need to call the loan and collect.

18· · · · · · · · · ·We were afraid they would do that back

19· ·in September, but they managed to bring it to where it

20· ·is today.· But they have to be at least 90 days before

21· ·the bank officially can call the loan.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Did the bank consider any restructuring

24· ·or anything like that or interest monthly payments?

25· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·They're trying.· The bank pretty much

·2· ·owns everything that this -- I think it's a husband and

·3· ·wife, and they have a couple operations.· The bank

·4· ·pretty much has a hold on everything, so restructuring

·5· ·is going to be a little difficult, but the good thing is

·6· ·it's all with one solution.· So they're looking into

·7· ·every option at this point.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Any other comments or questions?

12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

14· · · · · · · · · ·I have one.· Ms. Hendricks?

15· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Yes?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Back on Page 1, the Structural Plastics,

19· ·is that something that's real old or is that somebody

20· ·that just -- I forget.· Have they just started up and

21· ·just haven't done anything with that yet?

22· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:

23· · · · · · · · · ·The CSP loan, that was -- I'm not sure

24· ·how old that one is, but it's winding down, so...

25· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·That amount due is the 257.· So is that

·2· ·the balance actually?

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·So that's an old one.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·I'm sorry?

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, 257.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

12· · · · · · · · · ·I thought that owner drove down that

13· ·interest.· Okay.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public on this?

15· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in --

18· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

19· · · · · · · · · ·So move.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments or questions?

24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor.

·2· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?

·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Is there any other business to

·8· ·come before this Board before we adjourn?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

10· · · · · · · · · ·We've got the President's Report.· She's

11· ·not here.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

13· · · · · · · · · ·She's not here, so that's okay.

14· · · · · · · · · ·So since Ms. Mitchell isn't here today,

15· ·I went back, and it's been, like we mentioned, several

16· ·months since we last met, so there's been lots of

17· ·activities in LED during that time.· So I just wanted to

18· ·share some of these with you.

19· · · · · · · · · ·So I've kind of broken them out between

20· ·our ranks and our announcements and our programs that

21· ·we've had some really good movement on.

22· · · · · · · · · ·So in our ranking, back in the Fall,

23· ·Louisiana remains one of the most business friendly

24· ·states in the US ranking Number 5, and this is the

25· ·second consecutive year in a row that Area Development
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·1· ·Magazine's Annual Top States For Doing Business Survey

·2· ·ranked LED 7th, and this is the -- I'm sorry.· This is

·3· ·Number 5, but this represents the seventh consecutive

·4· ·year that LED has ranked in the nation's top 10 ranking.

·5· ·And the Number 5 ranking this year is the same that we

·6· ·had last year.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·So Area Development, and I think Louis

·8· ·alluded to this earlier, took note of LED FastStart,

·9· ·which is Louisiana's Customized Workforce Development

10· ·Program and is a substantial selling point for our

11· ·state, so that component is very important.· As we all

12· ·know, workforce development, having a skilled workforce

13· ·is very important.

14· · · · · · · · · ·Also, in October, Thumbtack awarded

15· ·Louisiana Graded A+ for 2017's Report Card on Small

16· ·Business Friendliness, ranking the State Number 4 in the

17· ·US for its Supportive Small Business Environment.

18· ·Louisiana earned an "A" in eight specific categories in

19· ·the State Small Business Climate, and a "B" in four

20· ·other categories.

21· · · · · · · · · ·And I mentioned earlier, getting to our

22· ·announcements, Champion Home Builders announced the

23· ·company planned a $1.3-million capital investment to

24· ·build manufactured homes in Leesville.· They operate 28

25· ·manufacturing facilities throughout the US, and they
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·1· ·occupy two buildings currently in Leesville in Northside

·2· ·Industrial Park.· And they're the ones who are going to

·3· ·create 200 jobs with an average salary of 35,000 plus

·4· ·benefits, and they're the ones who has the discretionary

·5· ·EDAP program awarded 500,000.· So I would suspect that

·6· ·we see them coming to Board relativity soon, so you'll

·7· ·get to meet that company at that time.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Also in the Fall, a very important

·9· ·project that we worked on in LED with the City of Hodge,

10· ·WestRock Company announced that the company's going to

11· ·make a number of improvements in their containerboard

12· ·paper mill in Hodge over the next five years.· They're

13· ·in a very competitive market, as you know, and they're

14· ·going to retain the 400 existing jobs.· The mill

15· ·improvements are going to include normal maintenance and

16· ·repairs to keep them competitive, and currently they

17· ·produce about 800,000 tons annually.

18· · · · · · · · · ·Just to kind of give you a little bit of

19· ·background, WestRock is the largest employer in Jackson

20· ·Parish, and they have an annual payroll of about

21· ·$28-million.· So the state really worked with them to

22· ·keep up their competitiveness in their company as well

23· ·as in their industry so that we can keep them here.

24· ·They've been here since 1928, and they're a major

25· ·economic driver for the Parish of Jackson and
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·1· ·surrounding areas and they obviously contribute several

·2· ·hundred million dollars in economic impact in that

·3· ·region.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·And then in November, the Governor,

·5· ·along with NASA's Marshall Space Flight Center Director,

·6· ·Todd May, announced significant growth that is occurring

·7· ·at the NASA's Michaud Assembly facility outside of New

·8· ·Orleans, and it's a pretty cool facility that they have

·9· ·there.· Their assembly, they have an assembling of the

10· ·NASA's Orion Crew Capsule and their launch system rocket

11· ·there.· And over the past year, Boeing has already

12· ·increased job count by 200 people, technical people,

13· ·there in that facility.· So they're continuing to grow

14· ·at the facility, and LED is working with the Nunez

15· ·Community College through FastStart is working with them

16· ·for aerospace-related career so that we can have skilled

17· ·workforce, you know, to continue that growth that we're

18· ·having there.

19· · · · · · · · · ·And then also in November, which you're

20· ·probably are all aware of the DXC Technology

21· ·announcement that occurred in New Orleans, which is

22· ·going to establish a 2,000 job digital transformation

23· ·center in the heart of New Orleans.· And this is

24· ·historically significant.· The project will create more

25· ·direct jobs at any one site than any prior economic
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·1· ·development deal in Louisiana.· So this was a huge win

·2· ·for the State, a huge win, you know, in that industry

·3· ·sector and a huge win for New Orleans.· So we're working

·4· ·with them.· They're hitting the ground running and

·5· ·actually doing job recruitment now.· And in the plans I

·6· ·believe is they're going to have 300 workers this first

·7· ·year, and then they'll ramp up to 2,000 over the next

·8· ·five years.· So 300 ITM Business Enterprise

·9· ·professionals this year, and then they'll ramp up to

10· ·2,000.

11· · · · · · · · · ·And, also, what's pretty unique about

12· ·this is the state is funding $25-million towards higher

13· ·education so that we can make sure that we have

14· ·graduates to support the efforts of this so that we can

15· ·make this is a successful project for the state.

16· · · · · · · · · ·And then also you may know through

17· ·legislation last year, LED's State Film Production Tax

18· ·Incentive, which began in 2002 and remains one of the

19· ·most leading destinations for motion picture production

20· ·in the world, is we went through some changes last year

21· ·during session that would allow us to create direct and

22· ·permanent Louisiana jobs in what's called a statement

23· ·and creat what's called a "qualified entertainment

24· ·company" during the legislation session.· And so it's

25· ·what's required that the Quality Jobs held by Louisiana
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·1· ·residents, which will be pay more than 45,000 annually,

·2· ·they're eligible for a 15 percent tax credit.· So we had

·3· ·our first project, which was announced in December by

·4· ·Deep South Studios, which is a design-build

·5· ·entertainment production complex in New Orleans.

·6· ·They're going to be the first to reap the benefits of

·7· ·that new program.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·And then in January, just last week,

·9· ·there was a Military Economic Impact study that was done

10· ·on the military impact in Louisiana, and just so that

11· ·you-all know, the military related spending in Louisiana

12· ·counts for 7.7-billion in annual economic output.· It's

13· ·a significant impact affecting every region of the state

14· ·based upon where your bases are located.· And they're

15· ·currently providing more than 77,000 jobs and they pay

16· ·almost $280-million in state and local taxes according

17· ·to the study.· The military counts for four percent of

18· ·Louisiana jobs.· So I just wanted to share that with

19· ·you-all so you can really see what impact the military

20· ·does have in our state.

21· · · · · · · · · ·And then rounding out, keeping with our

22· ·military, back in October, the Louisiana Veteran

23· ·Entrepreneurship Program was launched, and it began

24· ·coursework as the program's in-person boot camp.· We're

25· ·working with -- LED's working with the Veteran Affairs
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·1· ·Department to establish a program which will enable

·2· ·service members leaving the military to gain intensive

·3· ·training in this boot camp, and they're going to have

·4· ·ongoing counseling from small business resource

·5· ·partners.· And the goal is that they're going to, at

·6· ·least 30 percent of the participants would launch a

·7· ·business and collectively raise about $5-million in

·8· ·startup capital.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·And then also along the small business

10· ·line, we've had a lot of success in our CEO roundtables

11· ·for fast growing firms, and LED launched another round

12· ·of roundtables back in November in eight cities

13· ·throughout the state.· And each roundtable brings

14· ·together about 10 to 15 business owners of small and

15· ·emerging business and so they work together each year

16· ·and they share and learn from each other experiences of

17· ·their peers and that gives them an opportunity to get

18· ·kind of just-in-time answers to their pressing issues

19· ·that they may have and the kind of confined environment.

20· · · · · · · · · ·And then we also launched in January, we

21· ·launched for small construction companies the Louisiana

22· ·Contractors Accreditation Institute.· We had another

23· ·session of that that launched, so...

24· · · · · · · · · ·Those are things that have been going on

25· ·whenever we haven't been meeting.· And then hopefully
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·1· ·we'll continue to have these announcements throughout

·2· ·the year, and I'll provide or Mandi will provide those

·3· ·updates to you on an ongoing basis.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments?

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·I do have a personal note.· I wanted to

·8· ·remind everybody, remember the EDAP loan from I guess

·9· ·last fiscal year to General Informatics?

10· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, on Highland.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

13· · · · · · · · · ·They did facial recognition software for

14· ·law enforcement was their really big project, but in

15· ·general, they're just a high-tech firm with a lot of

16· ·software, a lot of jobs for young people, you know, who

17· ·are likely diversifying into high-tech stuff.· They've

18· ·been building their building office park at the corner

19· ·of Highland Road and Bluebonnet.· We watched it go up

20· ·every day this year.· It's a gorgeous building, has an

21· ·exciting look about it.· I think it's kind of a physical

22· ·manifestation of some of the improvements and

23· ·opportunities for young people to stay here and not go

24· ·to Houston or -- you know, it was an exciting project

25· ·when they brought it to us, and it's exciting to watch
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·1· ·it go up.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, sir.· I just wanted to comment on

·4· ·when you look at the paper mill, I know those people who

·5· ·are going to end up working there live here, and so

·6· ·we've done something for actually our residents and our

·7· ·workers.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·I'm excited about the movie tax credit.

·9· ·It gives very enhanced benefit for hiring the people

10· ·that live here, and it also had a percentage increase to

11· ·make sure that the industry goes outside of New Orleans

12· ·where there's an additional incentive for filming

13· ·outside of the City of New Orleans.

14· · · · · · · · · ·I commend you on the Louisiana

15· ·Contractor so that we make available to these companies

16· ·that are coming the opportunity to use Louisiana

17· ·businesses and Louisiana people.· I think these are

18· ·great steps.· There's been great concern that a lot of

19· ·the projects that were considered economic development,

20· ·our people didn't get to participate, particularly in

21· ·the construction part of a lot of those big projects

22· ·where the state participates, forgoes revenue or gives

23· ·incentives and all of the work is done by people who

24· ·come here from someplace else, then they go back home.

25· ·So to see these projects where, in the whole picture,
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·1· ·the workers and the citizens in this state are, there's

·2· ·much encouragement for them to participate, I greatly

·3· ·appreciate that and commend you for it.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Any other comments or questions?

·8· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Any other business to come before

11· ·the board?

12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

15· ·adjourn.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:

17· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Second?

20· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you very much.· Good meeting.

24· · · · · · · ·(Meeting adjourns at 10:49 a.m.)

25
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·1· ·REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:

·2· · · · · · · ·I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court

·3· ·Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the

·4· ·officer before whom this meeting for the Board of

·5· ·Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development

·6· ·Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was

·7· ·reported by me in the stenotype reporting method, was

·8· ·prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal

·9· ·direction and supervision, and is a true and correct

10· ·transcript to the best of my ability and understanding;

11

12· · · · · · · ·That the transcript has been prepared in

13· ·compliance with transcript format required by statute or

14· ·by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance

15· ·with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as

16· ·defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article

17· ·1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;

18· · · · · · · ·That I am not related to counsel or to the

19· ·parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the

20· ·outcome of this matter.

21
· · ·Dated this 14th day of February, 2018.
22

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·___________________________

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   We call to order the January meeting of

 3   the LEDC Corporation Board.

 4                   Can we have a rollcall, please?

 5               MS. SORRELL:

 6                   A.J. Roy.

 7               (No response.)

 8               MS. SORRELL:

 9                   Alden Andre.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Here.

12               MS. SORRELL:

13                   Louis Reine.

14               MR. REINE:

15                   Here.

16               MS. SORRELL:

17                   Susan Tham.

18               MS. THAM:

19                   Here.

20               MS. SORRELL:

21                   Mandi Mitchell.

22               (No response.)

23               MS. SORRELL:

24                   Cal Simpson.

25               MR. SIMPSON:
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 1                   Here.

 2               MS. SORRELL:

 3                   Nitin Kamath.

 4               (No response.)

 5               MS. SORRELL:

 6                   Sue Durand.

 7               MS. DURAND:

 8                   Here.

 9               MS. SORRELL:

10                   Kimberly Johnson.

11               MS. JOHNSON:

12                   Here.

13               MS. SORRELL:

14                   Todd McDonald

15               MR. MCDONALD:

16                   Here.

17               MS. SORRELL:

18                   We have a quorum.

19               MR. ANDRE:

20                   As you can see, we have two new board

21   members this morning, and I'd like to ask each of them

22   one at a time to please introduce themselves and give us

23   a little bit about their background.  We'll start with

24   Sue Durand.

25               MS. DURAND:
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 1                   I'm honored to represent the Louisiana

 2   Bankers Association, and I have to tell you that I'm the

 3   longest serving commissioner, not the oldest, but the

 4   longest serving commissioner of the St. Landry Economic

 5   Development Council.  And I still serve on it, and it's

 6   been a great ride.

 7                   I am the President and CEO of Washington

 8   State Bank, which is the second oldest bank chartered in

 9   Louisiana.  It was founded in 1893.  And I could name

10   all of my civic organizations, but I won't take up all

11   of your time, but it's a great ride and I'm just happy

12   to be on this Board.  Thank you very much.

13                   MR. MCDONALD:

14                        Good morning.  My name is Todd

15   McDonald, New Orleans native, and I am representing the

16   Louisiana Workforce Council.  I am chair of their

17   council.  And I also have a background in banking as

18   well.  I've been in banking for 14 years, and I'm very

19   happy to be here as well.  So looking forward to a

20   productive term.

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Okay.  Welcome both of you.  We look

23   forward to working with you.

24                   Next on the agenda is the approval of

25   the minutes of last meeting.  I didn't realize that was
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 1   way back in August.  So could I have a motion --

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Mr. Chairman, that's why I wasn't paying

 4   attention during your finance meeting because I read

 5   through them.  So I move we adopt the minutes.

 6               MR. SIMPSON:

 7                   Second.

 8               MR. ANDRE:

 9                   We have a motion and second to adopt the

10   minutes.

11                   Do we have any comments, comments from

12   the public?  Any comments from the Board members?  Any

13   changes, additions or deletions?

14               (No response.)

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   All in favor?

17               (Several members respond "aye.")

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Any opposed?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Okay.  Next on the agenda is we have one

23   inhouse approval that was done since our last meeting

24   that stuff to give us a report on that.  That's Aerion

25   Rental Services.
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 1               MS. DOIN:

 2                   Good morning.  My name is Marissa Doin.

 3   We have one loan update for you today with Aerion Rental

 4   Services, LLC.

 5                   Aerion is as oil field service company.

 6   They were formed back in 2008.  So what they do is they

 7   provide equipment and labor to companies to help wash

 8   down the rigs after they're taken down.  They currently

 9   have 104 employees, and with this guaranty, they're

10   going to be creating six new jobs.

11                   They've requested a $500,000 term loan

12   backed by equipment to help manage and pay down their

13   accounts payables.  The guarantees are going to be for

14   $375,000 for five years.  With their rising sales and

15   positive cash flow for 2017, Aerion is projected to grow

16   significantly, which is why staff recommended approval.

17   And this one was approved and closed in August by Rayne

18   State Bank.

19                   Any questions?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Any questions from the Board members?

23               MR. REINE:

24                   There's in the oil and gas business?

25               MS. DOIN:
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 1                   Yes.

 2               MR REINE:

 3                   You're talking about exceptional growth

 4   in their company in today's current oil and gas market?

 5               MS. DOIN:

 6                   The industry is bouncing back.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   Do you need a motion, Mr. Chairman?

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   No.  Thank you.

11                   Next is our Finance Committee report,

12   and, Susan, before you start, I want to commend you for

13   a great job you do as our chair of our Finance

14   Committee.  I applaud your great expertise and

15   professionalism in handling this committee and guiding

16   us through this.  Thanks a lot.

17               MS. THAM:

18                   Thank you very much.

19                   As the Board heard, the financial

20   statements were presented by Mr. Aaron Cooper, J. Aaron

21   Cooper, CPA, LLC.  He audited our financial statements.

22   And the supplemental information was explained by

23   Mr. Katsanis -- I'm still not going to get it right --

24   of Chaffe & Associates.

25                   After hearing their information, the
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 1   Finance Committee has passed a motion to recommend that

 2   the Board accept the financial statements as they stand.

 3               MR. REINE:

 4                   So moved.

 5               MR. SIMPSON:

 6                   Second.

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   We have a motion and a second to approve

 9   the Finance Committee report.

10                   Are there any comments, questions?  Any

11   opinions from the public?  Any comments from the public?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   Hearing none, all in favor.

15               (Several members respond "aye.")

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Any opposed?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ANDRE:

20                   Thank you, Susan.

21                   Okay.  Next on our agenda is election of

22   officers.  Our Chairman is not here this morning.  He

23   has a bad back.  He pulled his back, but so now to open

24   up the meeting to nominations for the chair of the

25   Board.
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 1               MR. REINE:

 2                   Well, since Mr. Roy's not here, I think

 3   I will nominate him.

 4               MS. THAM:

 5                   Second.

 6               MR. REINE:

 7                   We'll teach him to not show up.  We'll

 8   give him more work.

 9               MS. THAM:

10                   Second.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   Is there a second?

13               MS. THAM:

14                   Yes, second.

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   Any other nominations?

17               (No response.)

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   All in favor of appointing Mr. Roy as

20   our next chair.

21               (Several members respond "aye.")

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any opposed?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   Thank you.

 2                   Next is vice-chair, and if you'd like,

 3   I'll be happy to leave in case you want to nominate

 4   someone else.

 5               MR. REINE:

 6                   You can stay here.  You're doing such an

 7   absolutely fantastic job this morning, I'll nominate you

 8   for vice-chair.

 9               MR. SIMPSON:

10                   Second.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   Any other nominees?

13               (No response.)

14               MR. ANDRE:

15                   Hearing none, all in favor.

16               (Several members respond "aye.")

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Any opposed?

19               (No response.)

20               MR. ANDRE:

21                   Okay.  Thank you.

22                   And committee appointments.  Staff, you

23   want to give us that report?

24               MR. BARHAM:

25                   If you look in your packet, I think the
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 1   overall on Page 127, it begins on that page.  We have a

 2   handful of committees on Page 128.  I'm sorry.  27, 28.

 3   We have a total of five different committees, and this

 4   is the way that the committees stood as of January of

 5   2017, so they have not changed.

 6                   The Executive Committee is obviously

 7   made up of the chairman, the vice-chair, and then the --

 8   it's basically all of the chairmen of every single

 9   committee.  So that's pretty much a set one.  The other

10   four need to be appointed.  And underneath each one,

11   like the Screening Committee, we typically appoint five

12   positions.  We don't necessarily have to, but each

13   committee will require at least three members of that

14   committee to meet or the chair of that committee.  And

15   the interesting thing is that the vast majority of them

16   doesn't even have to have the chair of the committee to

17   meet as long as the chair is knowledgeable of the

18   meeting.

19                   The Screening Committee is probably our

20   most widely used of the committees.  It holds meetings

21   in place of the Board for certain projects in the event

22   that the Board cannot have a quorum.  We've run into

23   that issue in the past due to weather delays and

24   scheduling conflicts and emergencies.  So the Screening

25   Committee will meet and review projects for the EDAP
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 1   program and the Small Business Loan Guaranty program

 2   when the full Board is not available.

 3                   They can be appointed however you'd

 4   like.  If the Board -- I mean, I know our chair is not

 5   here, so I guess it would be up to the vice-chair to

 6   appoint or if anybody has an interest in being on any

 7   particular committee itself.  We have --

 8               MR. ANDRE:

 9                   I'd like to ask our new members if they

10   have any interest or would like to volunteer for any of

11   these.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   Mr. Chair, can I ask a question?

14                   Under the Screening Committee, how is

15   that language developed?  Is it something we did or is

16   that mandated language?

17               MR. BARHAM:

18                   Yeah.  That was created years and years

19   ago when the Board was first formed.  It's changed a

20   little bit over the years, but it has been a while.

21               MR. REINE:

22                   Well, it seems kind of confusing.  If

23   we're going to appoint five members, like couldn't we

24   just chang it to "The chairman's going to appoint five

25   members," instead of "shall consist of three members
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 1   including the vice-chairman and two additional members

 2   who may be appointed or alternatives."  If we appoint

 3   five members, why don't we just say the chairman's going

 4   to appoint five members?

 5               MR. BARHAM:

 6                   We can look into that.  I'll have to

 7   double check if it's in the statute or bylaws.  I

 8   believe if it's in the bylaws, I think the Board can

 9   just meet and decide on changing it.  If it's the

10   statute, that would be a whole different ball game.

11               MR. REINE:

12                   If there's a reason for it to read that

13   way, but it would be much clearer if we just say what

14   we're going to do and do what we say.

15               MR. BARHAM:

16                   Layman's terms.  I agree.  Layman's

17   terms.

18               MS. THAM:

19                   Before our new board members comment,

20   one thing I'd like to point out about is that one of the

21   things that I was always told about the Screening

22   Committee is a lot of times trying to get people

23   together when it's hard to get a quorum.  And so, for

24   instance, I had always volunteered for it because I was

25   in Baton Rouge, you know, I worked 10 miles away, and I
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 1   could be here easily.  So that's something to consider

 2   for the Screening Committee.  It would require you

 3   trying to commit to being here if you were needed.

 4                   And it is for that same reason, I'd like

 5   to take my name off the Screening Committee.  For those

 6   of you who have been here for a while, you know that

 7   basically I have put in my letter of resignation pending

 8   my move out of state.  I retired this year.

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   Remove your name from what?

11               MS. THAM:

12                   From the Screening Committee.  Yeah.

13   It's not very practical for me living in Florida to have

14   to come.

15               MR. REINE:

16                   You can move me to Florida.

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Anyone else on the committee that does

19   not want to continue serving?

20               MR. REINE:

21                   Mr. Chairman?

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   New members?

24               MR. REINE:

25                   Mr. Chairman, I'm going to suggest that
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 1   we wait till the next meeting and officially do that so

 2   that we can look at -- have Mr. Roy look at the new

 3   members and offer them opportunities because I don't see

 4   their names on any of these committees.

 5               MS. THAM:

 6                   And that was my next question.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   Well, this is how it is today where the

 9   Chairman is supposed to be here and he's aware it's that

10   time of year to reappoint them; correct?  Rather than

11   take any action today, I think we ought to allow the

12   opportunity for the chairman to consider the new members

13   and what would be their preference and that we just

14   defer appointing these committees till the next meeting.

15   I think the new members ought to have an opportunity to

16   participate, and they're not on this list.  So I

17   wouldn't want to adopt it as it is.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Does everybody agree?

20               MS. JOHNSON:

21                   I had a question about availability.  Is

22   there a way to call in for the meetings as it's not

23   based on bylaws?  Okay.  So you have to be physically

24   present in Baton Rouge?

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   And I don't really recommend we start

 2   that.

 3               MR. REINE:

 4                   That's actually in a violation of the

 5   whole --

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   I sit on a board where they do that, and

 8   it's so cumbersome.  People tend not to come, and then

 9   you have an audience with just two board members to look

10   at it.  And I'll vote with the majority, but I don't

11   recommend it.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   And I'll oppose it.

14                   Anyway, I move to defer the appointment

15   of committees to the next meeting.

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Is there a second?

18               MR. MCDONALD:

19                   Second.

20               MR. ANDRE:

21                   All in favor.

22               (Several members respond "aye.")

23               MR. ANDRE:

24                   Any opposed?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   Okay.  Next we'll move to Treasurer's

 3   Report.

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   I'm having a computer malfunction.  My

 6   Secretary Treasurer's Report did not come over on the

 7   PDF, so if I could please get somebody else's -- okay.

 8   Thank you, Mr. Reine.  I appreciate that.

 9                   Before I start, Anne Villa,

10   Undersecretary for LED.  I think I met the two new Board

11   members.  I just wanted to point out to you-all, we have

12   our Director of Legal Operations, Tam Bourgeois, here

13   with us.  I don't think that she's been introduced to

14   the Board in the past.  Mr. Cangelosi is out ill, and I

15   just want to take a moment to introduce Tam to each of

16   you.  So Tam is here as our legal representative this

17   morning.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   So he has not retired?  I thought he

20   retired.  No?  Okay.

21               MS. TAM:

22                   No.

23               MS. VILLA:

24                   Starting with the LEDC Secretary

25   Treasurer's report, I have -- yes.  Okay.  So starting
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 1   on Page 1, we have our FY '18 budget for total of

 2   Financial Assistance of $190,000 with the Loan

 3   Assistance Program.  And then our State Small Business

 4   Credit Initiatives, as you can see, it's been

 5   strengthening because we've been using that fund.  We

 6   have a budget of $1,223,442.  And we have that project

 7   which we previously approved in August for 93,750, which

 8   leaves us with our balance of $1,319,692.  And we have a

 9   couple of projects that are under review right now.  Rex

10   Industrial and M&A Safety, which total $148,328, which

11   leaves us with a current projected yearend balance of

12   $1,171,364.

13                   Regarding our EDAP program, we have an

14   FY '18 budget of $5,537,819, and we have projects that

15   have been approved by the Board of $1,103,179, which

16   leaves a balance of $4,434,640.  And we currently have

17   projects under review within the department of

18   $2,550,000.  And we have a projected yearend balance of

19   $1,884,640.  And that is what we're projecting to end

20   the year with.

21                   If you go to our financial statements on

22   the next -- our Fund Balance on the next page, our

23   General Appropriation projected for FY '18 has a fund

24   balance available of $15,410,844 with expenditures

25   expected at $14,579,203 with a yearend projection --
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 1   that should read 6/30 of '18 -- of 831,641.

 2                   Questions?

 3               (No response.)

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   Just to let you know, we did submit our

 6   budget request for FY '18, and we do have in our Capital

 7   Outlay budget request an additional $10-million for the

 8   EDAP fund.  As you all know, the initial budget was

 9   presented last week.  The Capital Outlay budget request

10   I think it was more HB1 and HB2.  I don't believe has

11   been presented yet, but in HB2's request, we actually

12   have our $10-million request for the EDAP fund, which we

13   use, for our new members, for infrastructure development

14   with projects.

15                   And when I get to the President's Report

16   given in lieu of Mandi, since she's not here, there was

17   a project that was recently announced in the Fall that

18   was awarded the EDAP fund.  And so we should expect to

19   see them coming to the Board I would think pretty soon.

20   So I would save that for those announcement.

21                   So if no questions, I'll turn it over to

22   Molly, who will give our Accountant's Report.

23               MR. REINE:

24                   I do have a question.  I'm just trying

25   to figure out the appropriate time.
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 1                   Does the Constitution provide the

 2   administration, as proposed in the '18-'19 budget, based

 3   on the estimation of revenue, where does DED's budget as

 4   a whole, and in particularly it affects us look like in

 5   the budget proposal compared to the present budget?

 6               MS. VILLA:

 7                   It's not going to affect LEDC.  Where it

 8   does affect is LED's Regional Economic Development

 9   Organization known as LEDO.  We fund them $1,360,000

10   every year, and that's been removed from the budget in

11   order for it to be balanced.  It's obviously not one

12   that the Governor nor the Commission or the

13   Administration or the Secretary want to have removed

14   from our budget, but as it stands right now, to present

15   that balanced budget, we had to reduce that by

16   1,360,000.

17                   In addition, every year, LED has

18   appropriated for, it's called a Rapid Response Fund,

19   which gives the authority to the Secretary and the

20   Governor to utilize those funds for projects and deploy

21   them, especially onces that are going to make an

22   immediate impact to the economy.  That fund, we

23   generally get an infusion of $10-million each year.

24   This year the infusion is was only going to be

25   $5-million.  That's in this initial budget, and so
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 1   that's kind of those two areas that we've been hit with.

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Wasn't that Rapid Response Fund like

 4   number one in the nation?

 5               MS. VILLA:

 6                   You're talking about FastStart.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   So the Rapid Respond is not the

 9   FastStart?

10               MS. VILLA:

11                   Rapid Response has discretionary funding

12   for business development.

13               MR. REINE:

14                   Okay.  Thank you.

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   Do we have a motion to accept the

17   Treasurer's Report?

18               MS. THAM:

19                   I so move.

20               MR. REINE:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any questions or any comments from the

24   public?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   Hearing none, all in favor.

 3               (Several members respond "aye.")

 4               MR. ANDRE:

 5                   Any opposed?

 6               (No response.)

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   Before we move from the Treasurer's

 9   Report, I brought this up I guess a couple of years ago

10   a concern I have that our activity is very low.  You

11   look here, and we haven't met since August, and, you

12   know, we had one project.  And when I brought it up, I

13   was given a report on what's in the pipeline.  And, in

14   fact, actually all of our Treasurer's Report gave us is

15   a specific indication of what's in the pipeline.  I

16   don't see very much this morning.

17                   Could staff enlighten us on where we

18   are, what's in the pipeline, what can be expected?

19               MS. GUESS:

20                   Well, this morning -- thank you for

21   bringing that up.  I was going to find a point to bring

22   you up-to-date.

23                   The lack of projects that you see on the

24   Secretary Treasurer's Report is not indicative of the

25   activity that the staff has performed in order to try to
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 1   generate some marketing.

 2               MR. ANDRE:

 3                   Then there should be something given to

 4   us monthly as to what it is.  We have no knowledge of

 5   what's in the pipeline, what to expect.  So if you can

 6   add just a one-pager, it will help us a lot.

 7               MS. GUESS:

 8                   Sure.  What we'll do is, what we have

 9   done as of yesterday, we finished our marketing tracking

10   chart to show what the marketing efforts have been by

11   the staff for last calendar, last fiscal -- calendar and

12   fiscal year.  It shows our participation with a lot of

13   the small business development centers, some of the

14   roundtable we've participated in, the one-on-one banking

15   meetings that we've had, all of those activities

16   concerned with our smalls business marketing efforts.

17                   We did have their -- however, there

18   are -- there were several loans that were under review

19   that came to us that staff reviewed in our inhouse staff

20   level that did not come to fruition.  They were

21   reviewed.  Some of them came to the brink of review.  We

22   had to -- that may have been pulled by the bank for

23   reasons.  But starting next month, we'll give you that

24   monthly look at, "Okay.  This is what we did, but this

25   is what came out of those efforts."  And the marketing
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 1   takes place --

 2               MR. ANDRE:

 3                   And will that include what's in the

 4   pipeline that you haven't done anything yet with?

 5               MS. GUESS:

 6                   Yes.  Well, the Secretary Treasurer's

 7   Report is up to date of what's in the pipeline

 8   currently.  Well, except there's some that we don't

 9   categorize, but we can, because we are still trying to

10   work those loans to make sure they come to fruition, but

11   we can give you those possibles as well.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   I'm curious, the availability of SBA

14   loans and Restore loans, are those offset in some of the

15   activity that we might have seen otherwise because those

16   are available?

17               MS. GUESS:

18                   Not necessarily.  In fact, I was --

19   right after the flood, the Restore Home and also the

20   entity within the state department that handles small

21   business loans, I was on the planning committee for

22   that, and you're just not seeing any movement on almost

23   either side.  There's a pile of money that Restore Home

24   still has -- Restore Louisiana still has that's

25   available for small businesses, and people are just not
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 1   coming forth to apply for them.  The SBA --

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   I understand that, but they're

 4   advertising that Restore loan at zero percent interest

 5   rate, that under certain conditions you wouldn't even

 6   have to pay back part of the loan.  It looks like if

 7   that was something they might have approached us with,

 8   that's a more attractive product than what we have, and

 9   I'm just wondering if that's --

10               MS. GUESS:

11                   It doesn't play a part because all of

12   our loans are -- those are loans that come directly from

13   the Restore Louisiana, which are basically direct loans.

14   What our challenge has been is getting the banking

15   community to get on board.  That's because we only do

16   loan guarantees, not direct loans.

17               MR. REINE:

18                   Well, that's kind of what I was getting

19   at.  If I had the option of going to the bank and making

20   the loan or I qualified for the Restore loan, I wouldn't

21   be going to the bank because it's zero interest.  I

22   might be forgiven part of it.  I just...

23               MS. GUESS:

24                   We've not seen any indication, and I've

25   been in close contact with and talking with the people
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 1   upstairs, in fact, they're in this building, the

 2   Community Development, that it's not truly a factor of

 3   why we don't see any loans.

 4               MR. REINE:

 5                   Okay.  So people are not borrowing money

 6   or do people borrow money and just don't need us to give

 7   a guaranty?

 8               MR. BARHAM:

 9                   It's a combination of that and then

10   some.  The lending activity across the State, for the

11   most part, a lot of banks, if they're not using the SBA

12   program -- and I know we have a couple of bankers here

13   that could probably vouch for this as well.  If they're

14   not using the federal programs, they're doing a lot of

15   things.  If they are lending, they're probably lending

16   without guarantees.  So we're kind of running that fine

17   line in the middle where if it's a larger project, it's

18   more beneficial, in all honestly, for the banks to go to

19   the FEDs because they can do a longer term and they can

20   print more money if they need it, where we're working

21   with a limited basis.

22                   We found our niche has been the riskier,

23   more smaller loans, which would be a straight line

24   credit or a cash loan that we can guaranty for two to

25   three years to turn our money over quicker, which can be
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 1   in combination with an SBA loan.

 2                   So we're in a small piece of that pie in

 3   a very specific niche that our program fits into, and

 4   apparently that niche or that segment of market that

 5   we're looking at is not getting as many loans approved

 6   as had been in the past.

 7                   As Brenda had pointed out, we've

 8   evaluated several loans over the last four or five

 9   months, and only one of those has come to fruition and

10   that was the one that Marissa updated us on earlier.

11   We've actually got three that we're looking at now, two

12   that were reported to you.  And the only time that those

13   loans get reported on that Secretary Treasurer's Report,

14   those are loans that we are confident in that have the

15   highest probability of closing.  And what I mean by that

16   is the banker is extremely committed to it or the bank

17   is committed to it by having a commitment letter

18   proposed to the borrower and signing our application.

19   So that means that they're serious.  That's the only

20   time we put that on the Secretary Treasurer's Report

21   because we've done it in the past where we've gone

22   through our processes and approved several loans and

23   then the loan never closes, so we have to go back and

24   readjust our books and it becomes an accounting

25   nightmare.  So we've changed our policy to only report
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 1   those that we have a high probability or a good chance

 2   of closing that we feel are going to be our best

 3   presentation.

 4                   So the ones that you see are probably

 5   the two or three out of, you know, 15 that we actually

 6   review or discuss in some way, shape or form.

 7                   Getting back to your original question,

 8   our activity is probably very representative of just the

 9   overall lending environment itself.  I've actually been

10   in conversation with some of our allies across the state

11   here in the local area, BRAC, for example, we've been in

12   touch and they've asked the same questions because they

13   have a direct pulse on the lending community.  They talk

14   to their local bankers on a regular basis, and there's

15   no activity from their standpoint here in the Baton

16   Rouge area.

17                   And the small businesses or the small

18   entrepreneurs are saying the same thing.  They're saying

19   that they can't get the loans or that the loans are not

20   going out, and the banks are saying that no one is

21   qualified to get the loans.  So we're seeing it from

22   both ends, but we have noticed that there has been a

23   tremendous downward turn in small business lending,

24   which is that little area of where we're trying to

25   operate.

0030

 1               MS. GUESS:

 2                   One of the things that we will show on

 3   the report for you for next month is the relationships

 4   that we're developing outside of the banking community.

 5   For example, we entered into a Memoranda of

 6   Understanding with the City of Minden.  They have what

 7   they call a Small business Institute, and the Small

 8   Business Institute has, they take a group of potential

 9   entrepreneurs, they go through a training process, and

10   once they have graduated, if you will, from the training

11   process, they are then deemed as eligible and ready to

12   possibly go and talk to a bank to have their business

13   funded.

14                   I think the Small Business Institute

15   just got started late last year.  They're in the process

16   of graduating I think three to four businesses, and

17   they'll soon be ready to go to a lender to hopefully

18   qualify for a loan.  And this is one of the areas that

19   we're looking to into to do as kind of like, okay, we'll

20   get them and we have to take them to the bank, have

21   somebody pre-qualify them and to make sure that they can

22   be lender ready, if you will.

23                   So those are -- we're having to think

24   outside of the box a little bit rather than just waiting

25   for the banking community to say yes.  But the
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 1   relationships that staff has developed over the last few

 2   years, we've got repeat bankers coming back to us, but

 3   we'll go more into that next month when you can see what

 4   that activity is and you'll have it in front of you.

 5               MR. BARHAM:

 6                   In addition to that, while we're

 7   discussing this, from our August meeting is where that

 8   the Board had made the big change that we've been

 9   requesting last year for a reduction in collateral

10   requirements for that Loan Guaranty Program.  Those are

11   set to go into effect next month.  DOA has put them out

12   there, they're going through their whole process and

13   public hearing piece and all of that good stuff.

14   They're scheduled, if I remember correctly, to go into

15   effect on the 20th of next month, and we've already got

16   mass publication of our marketing efforts.  But in

17   conversations with our banks that we deal with on a

18   regular basis, they're aware of those changes, and we're

19   already starting -- staff's already starting to review

20   applications that are hinging upon the execution of

21   those rule changes.  So I believe the two that are on

22   this list are two that are waiting for those rule

23   changes to go into effect.

24               MS. VILLA:

25                   Plus the other side of that, too, is the
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 1   EDAP funding that we receive, you know, every year on

 2   that, and we do use that whenever we're working with our

 3   business development team as a tool in our toolbox for a

 4   potential discretionary incentive.  Unfortunately, we

 5   don't disclose those until those are actually announced

 6   projects that have had, you know, press releases.  So

 7   you don't really get to see the activity behind what's

 8   really going on until that actual press release goes

 9   into effect.  So I just wanted to bring that up to you.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Okay.  Thank you.  I appreciate that.

12                   Okay.  Moving on to the Account's

13   Report.

14               MS. HENDRICKS:

15                   Good morning.  I'm Molly Hendricks, and

16   I am going over the Account Status Report as of December

17   31st, 2017.

18                   The Direct Loans total 674,400.

19   Golfballs is our only direct loan, and they're making

20   interest only payments at this time.

21                   The EDAP Loans total 424,080.  And the

22   Guaranty Loan, Depot Drilling, that was paid off during

23   the December.

24                   The allowance for Direct Loans is set at

25   15 percent for a total of 101,160.  The allowance for
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 1   EDAP Loan Losses is also at 15 percent, for a total of

 2   63,612.  And the allowance for Guaranty Losses is at

 3   zero because that was the one for Depot Drilling that

 4   was paid off.

 5                   Currently there are 18 SSBCI Guaranteed

 6   Loans for a total of $6,249,656.  One of the loans, LA

 7   Bayou Bites, is 60 to 90 days past due.

 8                   Then the allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed

 9   Loan Losses total $1,135,520.

10                   And that concludes my report.

11               MR. REINE:

12                   What do y'all do with the loans 60 to 90

13   days past due?

14               MR. BARHAM:

15                   We monitor them like they're our

16   two-year-old child.  That particular one has been like

17   that for about the last 12 months, I would say, a solid

18   12 months.  They've been up and down between 30 and 60.

19   At one point, they were over 90.  We've been in constant

20   contact with the banker, and they are working with them

21   directly to get that loan brought up to speed.  The

22   problem that the company ran into is they had a contract

23   with a sole buyer, and that buyer closed up shop.  So

24   they were scrambling to find additional usage or

25   contracts for their product, which is alligator meat
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 1   that they were originally intending on processing the

 2   scraps for dog food, but they have since had to modify

 3   their business, so they are in flux at this time.  They

 4   are also extremely tight with their debt-to-income ratio

 5   that they're basically funding the thing out of their

 6   own pocket right now as an individual.  So they've had

 7   to actually liquidate I think a few other assets,

 8   because they have multiple businesses, to cover their

 9   expenses at this time.

10                   So they are doing everything they can to

11   make the loan good.  The banker is giving them every

12   concession, but we've been in contact with them, but our

13   policy is we don't take any action on the loan.  We just

14   monitor it and stay in constant contact and assist

15   whenever we can to the best of our ability.  Until the

16   banker decides that the loan has gone long enough and

17   they need to call the loan and collect.

18                   We were afraid they would do that back

19   in September, but they managed to bring it to where it

20   is today.  But they have to be at least 90 days before

21   the bank officially can call the loan.

22               MR. MCDONALD:

23                   Did the bank consider any restructuring

24   or anything like that or interest monthly payments?

25               MR. BARHAM:
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 1                   They're trying.  The bank pretty much

 2   owns everything that this -- I think it's a husband and

 3   wife, and they have a couple operations.  The bank

 4   pretty much has a hold on everything, so restructuring

 5   is going to be a little difficult, but the good thing is

 6   it's all with one solution.  So they're looking into

 7   every option at this point.

 8               MR. MCDONALD:

 9                   Thank you.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Any other comments or questions?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   I have one.  Ms. Hendricks?

15               MS. HENDRICKS:

16                   Yes?

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Back on Page 1, the Structural Plastics,

19   is that something that's real old or is that somebody

20   that just -- I forget.  Have they just started up and

21   just haven't done anything with that yet?

22               MS. HENDRICKS:

23                   The CSP loan, that was -- I'm not sure

24   how old that one is, but it's winding down, so...

25               MS. VILLA:
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 1                   That amount due is the 257.  So is that

 2   the balance actually?

 3               MS. HENDRICKS:

 4                   Yes.

 5               MS. VILLA:

 6                   So that's an old one.

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   I'm sorry?

 9               MS. HENDRICKS:

10                   Yes, 257.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   I thought that owner drove down that

13   interest.  Okay.  Thank you.

14                   Any comments from the public on this?

15               (No response.)

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Hearing none, all in --

18               MR. REINE:

19                   So move.

20               MS. THAM:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any comments or questions?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   All in favor.

 2               (Several members respond "aye.")

 3               MR. ANDRE:

 4                   Any opposed?

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   Okay.  Is there any other business to

 8   come before this Board before we adjourn?

 9               MR. REINE:

10                   We've got the President's Report.  She's

11   not here.

12               MS. VILLA:

13                   She's not here, so that's okay.

14                   So since Ms. Mitchell isn't here today,

15   I went back, and it's been, like we mentioned, several

16   months since we last met, so there's been lots of

17   activities in LED during that time.  So I just wanted to

18   share some of these with you.

19                   So I've kind of broken them out between

20   our ranks and our announcements and our programs that

21   we've had some really good movement on.

22                   So in our ranking, back in the Fall,

23   Louisiana remains one of the most business friendly

24   states in the US ranking Number 5, and this is the

25   second consecutive year in a row that Area Development
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 1   Magazine's Annual Top States For Doing Business Survey

 2   ranked LED 7th, and this is the -- I'm sorry.  This is

 3   Number 5, but this represents the seventh consecutive

 4   year that LED has ranked in the nation's top 10 ranking.

 5   And the Number 5 ranking this year is the same that we

 6   had last year.

 7                   So Area Development, and I think Louis

 8   alluded to this earlier, took note of LED FastStart,

 9   which is Louisiana's Customized Workforce Development

10   Program and is a substantial selling point for our

11   state, so that component is very important.  As we all

12   know, workforce development, having a skilled workforce

13   is very important.

14                   Also, in October, Thumbtack awarded

15   Louisiana Graded A+ for 2017's Report Card on Small

16   Business Friendliness, ranking the State Number 4 in the

17   US for its Supportive Small Business Environment.

18   Louisiana earned an "A" in eight specific categories in

19   the State Small Business Climate, and a "B" in four

20   other categories.

21                   And I mentioned earlier, getting to our

22   announcements, Champion Home Builders announced the

23   company planned a $1.3-million capital investment to

24   build manufactured homes in Leesville.  They operate 28

25   manufacturing facilities throughout the US, and they
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 1   occupy two buildings currently in Leesville in Northside

 2   Industrial Park.  And they're the ones who are going to

 3   create 200 jobs with an average salary of 35,000 plus

 4   benefits, and they're the ones who has the discretionary

 5   EDAP program awarded 500,000.  So I would suspect that

 6   we see them coming to Board relativity soon, so you'll

 7   get to meet that company at that time.

 8                   Also in the Fall, a very important

 9   project that we worked on in LED with the City of Hodge,

10   WestRock Company announced that the company's going to

11   make a number of improvements in their containerboard

12   paper mill in Hodge over the next five years.  They're

13   in a very competitive market, as you know, and they're

14   going to retain the 400 existing jobs.  The mill

15   improvements are going to include normal maintenance and

16   repairs to keep them competitive, and currently they

17   produce about 800,000 tons annually.

18                   Just to kind of give you a little bit of

19   background, WestRock is the largest employer in Jackson

20   Parish, and they have an annual payroll of about

21   $28-million.  So the state really worked with them to

22   keep up their competitiveness in their company as well

23   as in their industry so that we can keep them here.

24   They've been here since 1928, and they're a major

25   economic driver for the Parish of Jackson and
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 1   surrounding areas and they obviously contribute several

 2   hundred million dollars in economic impact in that

 3   region.

 4                   And then in November, the Governor,

 5   along with NASA's Marshall Space Flight Center Director,

 6   Todd May, announced significant growth that is occurring

 7   at the NASA's Michaud Assembly facility outside of New

 8   Orleans, and it's a pretty cool facility that they have

 9   there.  Their assembly, they have an assembling of the

10   NASA's Orion Crew Capsule and their launch system rocket

11   there.  And over the past year, Boeing has already

12   increased job count by 200 people, technical people,

13   there in that facility.  So they're continuing to grow

14   at the facility, and LED is working with the Nunez

15   Community College through FastStart is working with them

16   for aerospace-related career so that we can have skilled

17   workforce, you know, to continue that growth that we're

18   having there.

19                   And then also in November, which you're

20   probably are all aware of the DXC Technology

21   announcement that occurred in New Orleans, which is

22   going to establish a 2,000 job digital transformation

23   center in the heart of New Orleans.  And this is

24   historically significant.  The project will create more

25   direct jobs at any one site than any prior economic
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 1   development deal in Louisiana.  So this was a huge win

 2   for the State, a huge win, you know, in that industry

 3   sector and a huge win for New Orleans.  So we're working

 4   with them.  They're hitting the ground running and

 5   actually doing job recruitment now.  And in the plans I

 6   believe is they're going to have 300 workers this first

 7   year, and then they'll ramp up to 2,000 over the next

 8   five years.  So 300 ITM Business Enterprise

 9   professionals this year, and then they'll ramp up to

10   2,000.

11                   And, also, what's pretty unique about

12   this is the state is funding $25-million towards higher

13   education so that we can make sure that we have

14   graduates to support the efforts of this so that we can

15   make this is a successful project for the state.

16                   And then also you may know through

17   legislation last year, LED's State Film Production Tax

18   Incentive, which began in 2002 and remains one of the

19   most leading destinations for motion picture production

20   in the world, is we went through some changes last year

21   during session that would allow us to create direct and

22   permanent Louisiana jobs in what's called a statement

23   and creat what's called a "qualified entertainment

24   company" during the legislation session.  And so it's

25   what's required that the Quality Jobs held by Louisiana

0042

 1   residents, which will be pay more than 45,000 annually,

 2   they're eligible for a 15 percent tax credit.  So we had

 3   our first project, which was announced in December by

 4   Deep South Studios, which is a design-build

 5   entertainment production complex in New Orleans.

 6   They're going to be the first to reap the benefits of

 7   that new program.

 8                   And then in January, just last week,

 9   there was a Military Economic Impact study that was done

10   on the military impact in Louisiana, and just so that

11   you-all know, the military related spending in Louisiana

12   counts for 7.7-billion in annual economic output.  It's

13   a significant impact affecting every region of the state

14   based upon where your bases are located.  And they're

15   currently providing more than 77,000 jobs and they pay

16   almost $280-million in state and local taxes according

17   to the study.  The military counts for four percent of

18   Louisiana jobs.  So I just wanted to share that with

19   you-all so you can really see what impact the military

20   does have in our state.

21                   And then rounding out, keeping with our

22   military, back in October, the Louisiana Veteran

23   Entrepreneurship Program was launched, and it began

24   coursework as the program's in-person boot camp.  We're

25   working with -- LED's working with the Veteran Affairs
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 1   Department to establish a program which will enable

 2   service members leaving the military to gain intensive

 3   training in this boot camp, and they're going to have

 4   ongoing counseling from small business resource

 5   partners.  And the goal is that they're going to, at

 6   least 30 percent of the participants would launch a

 7   business and collectively raise about $5-million in

 8   startup capital.

 9                   And then also along the small business

10   line, we've had a lot of success in our CEO roundtables

11   for fast growing firms, and LED launched another round

12   of roundtables back in November in eight cities

13   throughout the state.  And each roundtable brings

14   together about 10 to 15 business owners of small and

15   emerging business and so they work together each year

16   and they share and learn from each other experiences of

17   their peers and that gives them an opportunity to get

18   kind of just-in-time answers to their pressing issues

19   that they may have and the kind of confined environment.

20                   And then we also launched in January, we

21   launched for small construction companies the Louisiana

22   Contractors Accreditation Institute.  We had another

23   session of that that launched, so...

24                   Those are things that have been going on

25   whenever we haven't been meeting.  And then hopefully
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 1   we'll continue to have these announcements throughout

 2   the year, and I'll provide or Mandi will provide those

 3   updates to you on an ongoing basis.

 4               MR. ANDRE:

 5                   Any comments?

 6               MS. THAM:

 7                   I do have a personal note.  I wanted to

 8   remind everybody, remember the EDAP loan from I guess

 9   last fiscal year to General Informatics?

10               MS. VILLA:

11                   Yes, on Highland.

12               MS. THAM:

13                   They did facial recognition software for

14   law enforcement was their really big project, but in

15   general, they're just a high-tech firm with a lot of

16   software, a lot of jobs for young people, you know, who

17   are likely diversifying into high-tech stuff.  They've

18   been building their building office park at the corner

19   of Highland Road and Bluebonnet.  We watched it go up

20   every day this year.  It's a gorgeous building, has an

21   exciting look about it.  I think it's kind of a physical

22   manifestation of some of the improvements and

23   opportunities for young people to stay here and not go

24   to Houston or -- you know, it was an exciting project

25   when they brought it to us, and it's exciting to watch
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 1   it go up.

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Yes, sir.  I just wanted to comment on

 4   when you look at the paper mill, I know those people who

 5   are going to end up working there live here, and so

 6   we've done something for actually our residents and our

 7   workers.

 8                   I'm excited about the movie tax credit.

 9   It gives very enhanced benefit for hiring the people

10   that live here, and it also had a percentage increase to

11   make sure that the industry goes outside of New Orleans

12   where there's an additional incentive for filming

13   outside of the City of New Orleans.

14                   I commend you on the Louisiana

15   Contractor so that we make available to these companies

16   that are coming the opportunity to use Louisiana

17   businesses and Louisiana people.  I think these are

18   great steps.  There's been great concern that a lot of

19   the projects that were considered economic development,

20   our people didn't get to participate, particularly in

21   the construction part of a lot of those big projects

22   where the state participates, forgoes revenue or gives

23   incentives and all of the work is done by people who

24   come here from someplace else, then they go back home.

25   So to see these projects where, in the whole picture,

0046

 1   the workers and the citizens in this state are, there's

 2   much encouragement for them to participate, I greatly

 3   appreciate that and commend you for it.

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   Thank you.

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   Any other comments or questions?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   Okay.  Any other business to come before

11   the board?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

15   adjourn.

16               MR. REINE:

17                   So moved.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Second?

20               MS. THAM:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Thank you very much.  Good meeting.

24               (Meeting adjourns at 10:49 a.m.)
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		152						LN		6		11		false		11                   Do we have any comments, comments from				false

		153						LN		6		12		false		12   the public?  Any comments from the Board members?  Any				false

		154						LN		6		13		false		13   changes, additions or deletions?				false

		155						LN		6		14		false		14               (No response.)				false

		156						LN		6		15		false		15               MR. ANDRE:				false

		157						LN		6		16		false		16                   All in favor?				false

		158						LN		6		17		false		17               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		159						LN		6		18		false		18               MR. ANDRE:				false

		160						LN		6		19		false		19                   Any opposed?				false

		161						LN		6		20		false		20               (No response.)				false

		162						LN		6		21		false		21               MR. ANDRE:				false

		163						LN		6		22		false		22                   Okay.  Next on the agenda is we have one				false

		164						LN		6		23		false		23   inhouse approval that was done since our last meeting				false

		165						LN		6		24		false		24   that stuff to give us a report on that.  That's Aerion				false

		166						LN		6		25		false		25   Rental Services.				false

		167						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		168						LN		7		1		false		 1               MS. DOIN:				false

		169						LN		7		2		false		 2                   Good morning.  My name is Marissa Doin.				false

		170						LN		7		3		false		 3   We have one loan update for you today with Aerion Rental				false

		171						LN		7		4		false		 4   Services, LLC.				false

		172						LN		7		5		false		 5                   Aerion is as oil field service company.				false

		173						LN		7		6		false		 6   They were formed back in 2008.  So what they do is they				false

		174						LN		7		7		false		 7   provide equipment and labor to companies to help wash				false

		175						LN		7		8		false		 8   down the rigs after they're taken down.  They currently				false

		176						LN		7		9		false		 9   have 104 employees, and with this guaranty, they're				false

		177						LN		7		10		false		10   going to be creating six new jobs.				false

		178						LN		7		11		false		11                   They've requested a $500,000 term loan				false

		179						LN		7		12		false		12   backed by equipment to help manage and pay down their				false

		180						LN		7		13		false		13   accounts payables.  The guarantees are going to be for				false

		181						LN		7		14		false		14   $375,000 for five years.  With their rising sales and				false

		182						LN		7		15		false		15   positive cash flow for 2017, Aerion is projected to grow				false

		183						LN		7		16		false		16   significantly, which is why staff recommended approval.				false

		184						LN		7		17		false		17   And this one was approved and closed in August by Rayne				false

		185						LN		7		18		false		18   State Bank.				false

		186						LN		7		19		false		19                   Any questions?				false

		187						LN		7		20		false		20               (No response.)				false

		188						LN		7		21		false		21               MR. ANDRE:				false

		189						LN		7		22		false		22                   Any questions from the Board members?				false

		190						LN		7		23		false		23               MR. REINE:				false

		191						LN		7		24		false		24                   There's in the oil and gas business?				false

		192						LN		7		25		false		25               MS. DOIN:				false

		193						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		194						LN		8		1		false		 1                   Yes.				false

		195						LN		8		2		false		 2               MR REINE:				false

		196						LN		8		3		false		 3                   You're talking about exceptional growth				false

		197						LN		8		4		false		 4   in their company in today's current oil and gas market?				false

		198						LN		8		5		false		 5               MS. DOIN:				false

		199						LN		8		6		false		 6                   The industry is bouncing back.				false

		200						LN		8		7		false		 7               MR. REINE:				false

		201						LN		8		8		false		 8                   Do you need a motion, Mr. Chairman?				false

		202						LN		8		9		false		 9               MR. ANDRE:				false

		203						LN		8		10		false		10                   No.  Thank you.				false

		204						LN		8		11		false		11                   Next is our Finance Committee report,				false

		205						LN		8		12		false		12   and, Susan, before you start, I want to commend you for				false

		206						LN		8		13		false		13   a great job you do as our chair of our Finance				false

		207						LN		8		14		false		14   Committee.  I applaud your great expertise and				false

		208						LN		8		15		false		15   professionalism in handling this committee and guiding				false

		209						LN		8		16		false		16   us through this.  Thanks a lot.				false

		210						LN		8		17		false		17               MS. THAM:				false

		211						LN		8		18		false		18                   Thank you very much.				false

		212						LN		8		19		false		19                   As the Board heard, the financial				false

		213						LN		8		20		false		20   statements were presented by Mr. Aaron Cooper, J. Aaron				false

		214						LN		8		21		false		21   Cooper, CPA, LLC.  He audited our financial statements.				false

		215						LN		8		22		false		22   And the supplemental information was explained by				false

		216						LN		8		23		false		23   Mr. Katsanis -- I'm still not going to get it right --				false

		217						LN		8		24		false		24   of Chaffe & Associates.				false

		218						LN		8		25		false		25                   After hearing their information, the				false

		219						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		220						LN		9		1		false		 1   Finance Committee has passed a motion to recommend that				false

		221						LN		9		2		false		 2   the Board accept the financial statements as they stand.				false

		222						LN		9		3		false		 3               MR. REINE:				false

		223						LN		9		4		false		 4                   So moved.				false

		224						LN		9		5		false		 5               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		225						LN		9		6		false		 6                   Second.				false

		226						LN		9		7		false		 7               MR. ANDRE:				false

		227						LN		9		8		false		 8                   We have a motion and a second to approve				false

		228						LN		9		9		false		 9   the Finance Committee report.				false

		229						LN		9		10		false		10                   Are there any comments, questions?  Any				false

		230						LN		9		11		false		11   opinions from the public?  Any comments from the public?				false

		231						LN		9		12		false		12               (No response.)				false

		232						LN		9		13		false		13               MR. ANDRE:				false

		233						LN		9		14		false		14                   Hearing none, all in favor.				false

		234						LN		9		15		false		15               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		235						LN		9		16		false		16               MR. ANDRE:				false

		236						LN		9		17		false		17                   Any opposed?				false

		237						LN		9		18		false		18               (No response.)				false

		238						LN		9		19		false		19               MR. ANDRE:				false

		239						LN		9		20		false		20                   Thank you, Susan.				false

		240						LN		9		21		false		21                   Okay.  Next on our agenda is election of				false

		241						LN		9		22		false		22   officers.  Our Chairman is not here this morning.  He				false

		242						LN		9		23		false		23   has a bad back.  He pulled his back, but so now to open				false

		243						LN		9		24		false		24   up the meeting to nominations for the chair of the				false

		244						LN		9		25		false		25   Board.				false

		245						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		246						LN		10		1		false		 1               MR. REINE:				false

		247						LN		10		2		false		 2                   Well, since Mr. Roy's not here, I think				false

		248						LN		10		3		false		 3   I will nominate him.				false

		249						LN		10		4		false		 4               MS. THAM:				false

		250						LN		10		5		false		 5                   Second.				false

		251						LN		10		6		false		 6               MR. REINE:				false

		252						LN		10		7		false		 7                   We'll teach him to not show up.  We'll				false

		253						LN		10		8		false		 8   give him more work.				false

		254						LN		10		9		false		 9               MS. THAM:				false

		255						LN		10		10		false		10                   Second.				false

		256						LN		10		11		false		11               MR. ANDRE:				false

		257						LN		10		12		false		12                   Is there a second?				false

		258						LN		10		13		false		13               MS. THAM:				false

		259						LN		10		14		false		14                   Yes, second.				false

		260						LN		10		15		false		15               MR. ANDRE:				false

		261						LN		10		16		false		16                   Any other nominations?				false

		262						LN		10		17		false		17               (No response.)				false

		263						LN		10		18		false		18               MR. ANDRE:				false

		264						LN		10		19		false		19                   All in favor of appointing Mr. Roy as				false

		265						LN		10		20		false		20   our next chair.				false

		266						LN		10		21		false		21               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		267						LN		10		22		false		22               MR. ANDRE:				false

		268						LN		10		23		false		23                   Any opposed?				false

		269						LN		10		24		false		24               (No response.)				false

		270						LN		10		25		false		25               MR. ANDRE:				false

		271						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		272						LN		11		1		false		 1                   Thank you.				false

		273						LN		11		2		false		 2                   Next is vice-chair, and if you'd like,				false

		274						LN		11		3		false		 3   I'll be happy to leave in case you want to nominate				false

		275						LN		11		4		false		 4   someone else.				false

		276						LN		11		5		false		 5               MR. REINE:				false

		277						LN		11		6		false		 6                   You can stay here.  You're doing such an				false

		278						LN		11		7		false		 7   absolutely fantastic job this morning, I'll nominate you				false

		279						LN		11		8		false		 8   for vice-chair.				false

		280						LN		11		9		false		 9               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		281						LN		11		10		false		10                   Second.				false

		282						LN		11		11		false		11               MR. ANDRE:				false

		283						LN		11		12		false		12                   Any other nominees?				false

		284						LN		11		13		false		13               (No response.)				false

		285						LN		11		14		false		14               MR. ANDRE:				false

		286						LN		11		15		false		15                   Hearing none, all in favor.				false

		287						LN		11		16		false		16               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		288						LN		11		17		false		17               MR. ANDRE:				false

		289						LN		11		18		false		18                   Any opposed?				false

		290						LN		11		19		false		19               (No response.)				false

		291						LN		11		20		false		20               MR. ANDRE:				false

		292						LN		11		21		false		21                   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		293						LN		11		22		false		22                   And committee appointments.  Staff, you				false

		294						LN		11		23		false		23   want to give us that report?				false

		295						LN		11		24		false		24               MR. BARHAM:				false

		296						LN		11		25		false		25                   If you look in your packet, I think the				false

		297						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		298						LN		12		1		false		 1   overall on Page 127, it begins on that page.  We have a				false

		299						LN		12		2		false		 2   handful of committees on Page 128.  I'm sorry.  27, 28.				false

		300						LN		12		3		false		 3   We have a total of five different committees, and this				false

		301						LN		12		4		false		 4   is the way that the committees stood as of January of				false

		302						LN		12		5		false		 5   2017, so they have not changed.				false

		303						LN		12		6		false		 6                   The Executive Committee is obviously				false

		304						LN		12		7		false		 7   made up of the chairman, the vice-chair, and then the --				false

		305						LN		12		8		false		 8   it's basically all of the chairmen of every single				false

		306						LN		12		9		false		 9   committee.  So that's pretty much a set one.  The other				false

		307						LN		12		10		false		10   four need to be appointed.  And underneath each one,				false

		308						LN		12		11		false		11   like the Screening Committee, we typically appoint five				false

		309						LN		12		12		false		12   positions.  We don't necessarily have to, but each				false

		310						LN		12		13		false		13   committee will require at least three members of that				false

		311						LN		12		14		false		14   committee to meet or the chair of that committee.  And				false

		312						LN		12		15		false		15   the interesting thing is that the vast majority of them				false

		313						LN		12		16		false		16   doesn't even have to have the chair of the committee to				false

		314						LN		12		17		false		17   meet as long as the chair is knowledgeable of the				false

		315						LN		12		18		false		18   meeting.				false

		316						LN		12		19		false		19                   The Screening Committee is probably our				false

		317						LN		12		20		false		20   most widely used of the committees.  It holds meetings				false

		318						LN		12		21		false		21   in place of the Board for certain projects in the event				false

		319						LN		12		22		false		22   that the Board cannot have a quorum.  We've run into				false

		320						LN		12		23		false		23   that issue in the past due to weather delays and				false

		321						LN		12		24		false		24   scheduling conflicts and emergencies.  So the Screening				false

		322						LN		12		25		false		25   Committee will meet and review projects for the EDAP				false

		323						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		324						LN		13		1		false		 1   program and the Small Business Loan Guaranty program				false

		325						LN		13		2		false		 2   when the full Board is not available.				false

		326						LN		13		3		false		 3                   They can be appointed however you'd				false

		327						LN		13		4		false		 4   like.  If the Board -- I mean, I know our chair is not				false

		328						LN		13		5		false		 5   here, so I guess it would be up to the vice-chair to				false

		329						LN		13		6		false		 6   appoint or if anybody has an interest in being on any				false

		330						LN		13		7		false		 7   particular committee itself.  We have --				false

		331						LN		13		8		false		 8               MR. ANDRE:				false

		332						LN		13		9		false		 9                   I'd like to ask our new members if they				false

		333						LN		13		10		false		10   have any interest or would like to volunteer for any of				false

		334						LN		13		11		false		11   these.				false

		335						LN		13		12		false		12               MR. REINE:				false

		336						LN		13		13		false		13                   Mr. Chair, can I ask a question?				false

		337						LN		13		14		false		14                   Under the Screening Committee, how is				false

		338						LN		13		15		false		15   that language developed?  Is it something we did or is				false

		339						LN		13		16		false		16   that mandated language?				false

		340						LN		13		17		false		17               MR. BARHAM:				false

		341						LN		13		18		false		18                   Yeah.  That was created years and years				false

		342						LN		13		19		false		19   ago when the Board was first formed.  It's changed a				false

		343						LN		13		20		false		20   little bit over the years, but it has been a while.				false

		344						LN		13		21		false		21               MR. REINE:				false

		345						LN		13		22		false		22                   Well, it seems kind of confusing.  If				false

		346						LN		13		23		false		23   we're going to appoint five members, like couldn't we				false

		347						LN		13		24		false		24   just chang it to "The chairman's going to appoint five				false

		348						LN		13		25		false		25   members," instead of "shall consist of three members				false

		349						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		350						LN		14		1		false		 1   including the vice-chairman and two additional members				false

		351						LN		14		2		false		 2   who may be appointed or alternatives."  If we appoint				false

		352						LN		14		3		false		 3   five members, why don't we just say the chairman's going				false

		353						LN		14		4		false		 4   to appoint five members?				false

		354						LN		14		5		false		 5               MR. BARHAM:				false

		355						LN		14		6		false		 6                   We can look into that.  I'll have to				false

		356						LN		14		7		false		 7   double check if it's in the statute or bylaws.  I				false

		357						LN		14		8		false		 8   believe if it's in the bylaws, I think the Board can				false

		358						LN		14		9		false		 9   just meet and decide on changing it.  If it's the				false

		359						LN		14		10		false		10   statute, that would be a whole different ball game.				false

		360						LN		14		11		false		11               MR. REINE:				false

		361						LN		14		12		false		12                   If there's a reason for it to read that				false

		362						LN		14		13		false		13   way, but it would be much clearer if we just say what				false

		363						LN		14		14		false		14   we're going to do and do what we say.				false

		364						LN		14		15		false		15               MR. BARHAM:				false

		365						LN		14		16		false		16                   Layman's terms.  I agree.  Layman's				false

		366						LN		14		17		false		17   terms.				false

		367						LN		14		18		false		18               MS. THAM:				false

		368						LN		14		19		false		19                   Before our new board members comment,				false

		369						LN		14		20		false		20   one thing I'd like to point out about is that one of the				false

		370						LN		14		21		false		21   things that I was always told about the Screening				false

		371						LN		14		22		false		22   Committee is a lot of times trying to get people				false

		372						LN		14		23		false		23   together when it's hard to get a quorum.  And so, for				false

		373						LN		14		24		false		24   instance, I had always volunteered for it because I was				false

		374						LN		14		25		false		25   in Baton Rouge, you know, I worked 10 miles away, and I				false

		375						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		376						LN		15		1		false		 1   could be here easily.  So that's something to consider				false

		377						LN		15		2		false		 2   for the Screening Committee.  It would require you				false

		378						LN		15		3		false		 3   trying to commit to being here if you were needed.				false

		379						LN		15		4		false		 4                   And it is for that same reason, I'd like				false

		380						LN		15		5		false		 5   to take my name off the Screening Committee.  For those				false

		381						LN		15		6		false		 6   of you who have been here for a while, you know that				false

		382						LN		15		7		false		 7   basically I have put in my letter of resignation pending				false

		383						LN		15		8		false		 8   my move out of state.  I retired this year.				false

		384						LN		15		9		false		 9               MR. ANDRE:				false

		385						LN		15		10		false		10                   Remove your name from what?				false

		386						LN		15		11		false		11               MS. THAM:				false

		387						LN		15		12		false		12                   From the Screening Committee.  Yeah.				false

		388						LN		15		13		false		13   It's not very practical for me living in Florida to have				false

		389						LN		15		14		false		14   to come.				false

		390						LN		15		15		false		15               MR. REINE:				false

		391						LN		15		16		false		16                   You can move me to Florida.				false

		392						LN		15		17		false		17               MR. ANDRE:				false

		393						LN		15		18		false		18                   Anyone else on the committee that does				false

		394						LN		15		19		false		19   not want to continue serving?				false

		395						LN		15		20		false		20               MR. REINE:				false

		396						LN		15		21		false		21                   Mr. Chairman?				false

		397						LN		15		22		false		22               MR. ANDRE:				false

		398						LN		15		23		false		23                   New members?				false

		399						LN		15		24		false		24               MR. REINE:				false

		400						LN		15		25		false		25                   Mr. Chairman, I'm going to suggest that				false

		401						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		402						LN		16		1		false		 1   we wait till the next meeting and officially do that so				false

		403						LN		16		2		false		 2   that we can look at -- have Mr. Roy look at the new				false

		404						LN		16		3		false		 3   members and offer them opportunities because I don't see				false

		405						LN		16		4		false		 4   their names on any of these committees.				false

		406						LN		16		5		false		 5               MS. THAM:				false

		407						LN		16		6		false		 6                   And that was my next question.				false

		408						LN		16		7		false		 7               MR. REINE:				false

		409						LN		16		8		false		 8                   Well, this is how it is today where the				false

		410						LN		16		9		false		 9   Chairman is supposed to be here and he's aware it's that				false

		411						LN		16		10		false		10   time of year to reappoint them; correct?  Rather than				false

		412						LN		16		11		false		11   take any action today, I think we ought to allow the				false

		413						LN		16		12		false		12   opportunity for the chairman to consider the new members				false

		414						LN		16		13		false		13   and what would be their preference and that we just				false

		415						LN		16		14		false		14   defer appointing these committees till the next meeting.				false

		416						LN		16		15		false		15   I think the new members ought to have an opportunity to				false

		417						LN		16		16		false		16   participate, and they're not on this list.  So I				false

		418						LN		16		17		false		17   wouldn't want to adopt it as it is.				false

		419						LN		16		18		false		18               MR. ANDRE:				false

		420						LN		16		19		false		19                   Does everybody agree?				false

		421						LN		16		20		false		20               MS. JOHNSON:				false

		422						LN		16		21		false		21                   I had a question about availability.  Is				false

		423						LN		16		22		false		22   there a way to call in for the meetings as it's not				false

		424						LN		16		23		false		23   based on bylaws?  Okay.  So you have to be physically				false

		425						LN		16		24		false		24   present in Baton Rouge?				false

		426						LN		16		25		false		25               MR. ANDRE:				false

		427						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		428						LN		17		1		false		 1                   And I don't really recommend we start				false

		429						LN		17		2		false		 2   that.				false

		430						LN		17		3		false		 3               MR. REINE:				false

		431						LN		17		4		false		 4                   That's actually in a violation of the				false

		432						LN		17		5		false		 5   whole --				false

		433						LN		17		6		false		 6               MR. ANDRE:				false

		434						LN		17		7		false		 7                   I sit on a board where they do that, and				false

		435						LN		17		8		false		 8   it's so cumbersome.  People tend not to come, and then				false

		436						LN		17		9		false		 9   you have an audience with just two board members to look				false

		437						LN		17		10		false		10   at it.  And I'll vote with the majority, but I don't				false

		438						LN		17		11		false		11   recommend it.				false

		439						LN		17		12		false		12               MR. REINE:				false

		440						LN		17		13		false		13                   And I'll oppose it.				false

		441						LN		17		14		false		14                   Anyway, I move to defer the appointment				false

		442						LN		17		15		false		15   of committees to the next meeting.				false

		443						LN		17		16		false		16               MR. ANDRE:				false

		444						LN		17		17		false		17                   Is there a second?				false

		445						LN		17		18		false		18               MR. MCDONALD:				false

		446						LN		17		19		false		19                   Second.				false

		447						LN		17		20		false		20               MR. ANDRE:				false

		448						LN		17		21		false		21                   All in favor.				false

		449						LN		17		22		false		22               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		450						LN		17		23		false		23               MR. ANDRE:				false

		451						LN		17		24		false		24                   Any opposed?				false

		452						LN		17		25		false		25               (No response.)				false

		453						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		454						LN		18		1		false		 1               MR. ANDRE:				false

		455						LN		18		2		false		 2                   Okay.  Next we'll move to Treasurer's				false

		456						LN		18		3		false		 3   Report.				false

		457						LN		18		4		false		 4               MS. VILLA:				false

		458						LN		18		5		false		 5                   I'm having a computer malfunction.  My				false

		459						LN		18		6		false		 6   Secretary Treasurer's Report did not come over on the				false

		460						LN		18		7		false		 7   PDF, so if I could please get somebody else's -- okay.				false

		461						LN		18		8		false		 8   Thank you, Mr. Reine.  I appreciate that.				false

		462						LN		18		9		false		 9                   Before I start, Anne Villa,				false

		463						LN		18		10		false		10   Undersecretary for LED.  I think I met the two new Board				false

		464						LN		18		11		false		11   members.  I just wanted to point out to you-all, we have				false

		465						LN		18		12		false		12   our Director of Legal Operations, Tam Bourgeois, here				false

		466						LN		18		13		false		13   with us.  I don't think that she's been introduced to				false

		467						LN		18		14		false		14   the Board in the past.  Mr. Cangelosi is out ill, and I				false

		468						LN		18		15		false		15   just want to take a moment to introduce Tam to each of				false

		469						LN		18		16		false		16   you.  So Tam is here as our legal representative this				false

		470						LN		18		17		false		17   morning.				false

		471						LN		18		18		false		18               MR. ANDRE:				false

		472						LN		18		19		false		19                   So he has not retired?  I thought he				false

		473						LN		18		20		false		20   retired.  No?  Okay.				false

		474						LN		18		21		false		21               MS. TAM:				false

		475						LN		18		22		false		22                   No.				false

		476						LN		18		23		false		23               MS. VILLA:				false

		477						LN		18		24		false		24                   Starting with the LEDC Secretary				false

		478						LN		18		25		false		25   Treasurer's report, I have -- yes.  Okay.  So starting				false

		479						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		480						LN		19		1		false		 1   on Page 1, we have our FY '18 budget for total of				false

		481						LN		19		2		false		 2   Financial Assistance of $190,000 with the Loan				false

		482						LN		19		3		false		 3   Assistance Program.  And then our State Small Business				false

		483						LN		19		4		false		 4   Credit Initiatives, as you can see, it's been				false

		484						LN		19		5		false		 5   strengthening because we've been using that fund.  We				false

		485						LN		19		6		false		 6   have a budget of $1,223,442.  And we have that project				false

		486						LN		19		7		false		 7   which we previously approved in August for 93,750, which				false

		487						LN		19		8		false		 8   leaves us with our balance of $1,319,692.  And we have a				false

		488						LN		19		9		false		 9   couple of projects that are under review right now.  Rex				false

		489						LN		19		10		false		10   Industrial and M&A Safety, which total $148,328, which				false

		490						LN		19		11		false		11   leaves us with a current projected yearend balance of				false

		491						LN		19		12		false		12   $1,171,364.				false

		492						LN		19		13		false		13                   Regarding our EDAP program, we have an				false

		493						LN		19		14		false		14   FY '18 budget of $5,537,819, and we have projects that				false

		494						LN		19		15		false		15   have been approved by the Board of $1,103,179, which				false

		495						LN		19		16		false		16   leaves a balance of $4,434,640.  And we currently have				false

		496						LN		19		17		false		17   projects under review within the department of				false

		497						LN		19		18		false		18   $2,550,000.  And we have a projected yearend balance of				false

		498						LN		19		19		false		19   $1,884,640.  And that is what we're projecting to end				false

		499						LN		19		20		false		20   the year with.				false

		500						LN		19		21		false		21                   If you go to our financial statements on				false

		501						LN		19		22		false		22   the next -- our Fund Balance on the next page, our				false

		502						LN		19		23		false		23   General Appropriation projected for FY '18 has a fund				false

		503						LN		19		24		false		24   balance available of $15,410,844 with expenditures				false

		504						LN		19		25		false		25   expected at $14,579,203 with a yearend projection --				false

		505						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		506						LN		20		1		false		 1   that should read 6/30 of '18 -- of 831,641.				false

		507						LN		20		2		false		 2                   Questions?				false

		508						LN		20		3		false		 3               (No response.)				false

		509						LN		20		4		false		 4               MS. VILLA:				false

		510						LN		20		5		false		 5                   Just to let you know, we did submit our				false

		511						LN		20		6		false		 6   budget request for FY '18, and we do have in our Capital				false

		512						LN		20		7		false		 7   Outlay budget request an additional $10-million for the				false

		513						LN		20		8		false		 8   EDAP fund.  As you all know, the initial budget was				false

		514						LN		20		9		false		 9   presented last week.  The Capital Outlay budget request				false

		515						LN		20		10		false		10   I think it was more HB1 and HB2.  I don't believe has				false

		516						LN		20		11		false		11   been presented yet, but in HB2's request, we actually				false

		517						LN		20		12		false		12   have our $10-million request for the EDAP fund, which we				false

		518						LN		20		13		false		13   use, for our new members, for infrastructure development				false

		519						LN		20		14		false		14   with projects.				false

		520						LN		20		15		false		15                   And when I get to the President's Report				false

		521						LN		20		16		false		16   given in lieu of Mandi, since she's not here, there was				false

		522						LN		20		17		false		17   a project that was recently announced in the Fall that				false

		523						LN		20		18		false		18   was awarded the EDAP fund.  And so we should expect to				false

		524						LN		20		19		false		19   see them coming to the Board I would think pretty soon.				false

		525						LN		20		20		false		20   So I would save that for those announcement.				false

		526						LN		20		21		false		21                   So if no questions, I'll turn it over to				false

		527						LN		20		22		false		22   Molly, who will give our Accountant's Report.				false

		528						LN		20		23		false		23               MR. REINE:				false

		529						LN		20		24		false		24                   I do have a question.  I'm just trying				false

		530						LN		20		25		false		25   to figure out the appropriate time.				false

		531						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		532						LN		21		1		false		 1                   Does the Constitution provide the				false

		533						LN		21		2		false		 2   administration, as proposed in the '18-'19 budget, based				false

		534						LN		21		3		false		 3   on the estimation of revenue, where does DED's budget as				false

		535						LN		21		4		false		 4   a whole, and in particularly it affects us look like in				false

		536						LN		21		5		false		 5   the budget proposal compared to the present budget?				false

		537						LN		21		6		false		 6               MS. VILLA:				false

		538						LN		21		7		false		 7                   It's not going to affect LEDC.  Where it				false

		539						LN		21		8		false		 8   does affect is LED's Regional Economic Development				false

		540						LN		21		9		false		 9   Organization known as LEDO.  We fund them $1,360,000				false

		541						LN		21		10		false		10   every year, and that's been removed from the budget in				false

		542						LN		21		11		false		11   order for it to be balanced.  It's obviously not one				false

		543						LN		21		12		false		12   that the Governor nor the Commission or the				false

		544						LN		21		13		false		13   Administration or the Secretary want to have removed				false

		545						LN		21		14		false		14   from our budget, but as it stands right now, to present				false

		546						LN		21		15		false		15   that balanced budget, we had to reduce that by				false

		547						LN		21		16		false		16   1,360,000.				false

		548						LN		21		17		false		17                   In addition, every year, LED has				false

		549						LN		21		18		false		18   appropriated for, it's called a Rapid Response Fund,				false

		550						LN		21		19		false		19   which gives the authority to the Secretary and the				false

		551						LN		21		20		false		20   Governor to utilize those funds for projects and deploy				false

		552						LN		21		21		false		21   them, especially onces that are going to make an				false

		553						LN		21		22		false		22   immediate impact to the economy.  That fund, we				false

		554						LN		21		23		false		23   generally get an infusion of $10-million each year.				false

		555						LN		21		24		false		24   This year the infusion is was only going to be				false

		556						LN		21		25		false		25   $5-million.  That's in this initial budget, and so				false

		557						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		558						LN		22		1		false		 1   that's kind of those two areas that we've been hit with.				false

		559						LN		22		2		false		 2               MR. REINE:				false

		560						LN		22		3		false		 3                   Wasn't that Rapid Response Fund like				false

		561						LN		22		4		false		 4   number one in the nation?				false

		562						LN		22		5		false		 5               MS. VILLA:				false

		563						LN		22		6		false		 6                   You're talking about FastStart.				false

		564						LN		22		7		false		 7               MR. REINE:				false

		565						LN		22		8		false		 8                   So the Rapid Respond is not the				false

		566						LN		22		9		false		 9   FastStart?				false

		567						LN		22		10		false		10               MS. VILLA:				false

		568						LN		22		11		false		11                   Rapid Response has discretionary funding				false

		569						LN		22		12		false		12   for business development.				false

		570						LN		22		13		false		13               MR. REINE:				false

		571						LN		22		14		false		14                   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		572						LN		22		15		false		15               MR. ANDRE:				false

		573						LN		22		16		false		16                   Do we have a motion to accept the				false

		574						LN		22		17		false		17   Treasurer's Report?				false

		575						LN		22		18		false		18               MS. THAM:				false

		576						LN		22		19		false		19                   I so move.				false

		577						LN		22		20		false		20               MR. REINE:				false

		578						LN		22		21		false		21                   Second.				false

		579						LN		22		22		false		22               MR. ANDRE:				false

		580						LN		22		23		false		23                   Any questions or any comments from the				false

		581						LN		22		24		false		24   public?				false

		582						LN		22		25		false		25               (No response.)				false

		583						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		584						LN		23		1		false		 1               MR. ANDRE:				false

		585						LN		23		2		false		 2                   Hearing none, all in favor.				false

		586						LN		23		3		false		 3               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		587						LN		23		4		false		 4               MR. ANDRE:				false

		588						LN		23		5		false		 5                   Any opposed?				false

		589						LN		23		6		false		 6               (No response.)				false

		590						LN		23		7		false		 7               MR. ANDRE:				false

		591						LN		23		8		false		 8                   Before we move from the Treasurer's				false

		592						LN		23		9		false		 9   Report, I brought this up I guess a couple of years ago				false

		593						LN		23		10		false		10   a concern I have that our activity is very low.  You				false

		594						LN		23		11		false		11   look here, and we haven't met since August, and, you				false

		595						LN		23		12		false		12   know, we had one project.  And when I brought it up, I				false

		596						LN		23		13		false		13   was given a report on what's in the pipeline.  And, in				false

		597						LN		23		14		false		14   fact, actually all of our Treasurer's Report gave us is				false

		598						LN		23		15		false		15   a specific indication of what's in the pipeline.  I				false

		599						LN		23		16		false		16   don't see very much this morning.				false

		600						LN		23		17		false		17                   Could staff enlighten us on where we				false

		601						LN		23		18		false		18   are, what's in the pipeline, what can be expected?				false

		602						LN		23		19		false		19               MS. GUESS:				false

		603						LN		23		20		false		20                   Well, this morning -- thank you for				false

		604						LN		23		21		false		21   bringing that up.  I was going to find a point to bring				false

		605						LN		23		22		false		22   you up-to-date.				false

		606						LN		23		23		false		23                   The lack of projects that you see on the				false

		607						LN		23		24		false		24   Secretary Treasurer's Report is not indicative of the				false

		608						LN		23		25		false		25   activity that the staff has performed in order to try to				false

		609						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		610						LN		24		1		false		 1   generate some marketing.				false

		611						LN		24		2		false		 2               MR. ANDRE:				false

		612						LN		24		3		false		 3                   Then there should be something given to				false

		613						LN		24		4		false		 4   us monthly as to what it is.  We have no knowledge of				false

		614						LN		24		5		false		 5   what's in the pipeline, what to expect.  So if you can				false

		615						LN		24		6		false		 6   add just a one-pager, it will help us a lot.				false

		616						LN		24		7		false		 7               MS. GUESS:				false

		617						LN		24		8		false		 8                   Sure.  What we'll do is, what we have				false

		618						LN		24		9		false		 9   done as of yesterday, we finished our marketing tracking				false

		619						LN		24		10		false		10   chart to show what the marketing efforts have been by				false

		620						LN		24		11		false		11   the staff for last calendar, last fiscal -- calendar and				false

		621						LN		24		12		false		12   fiscal year.  It shows our participation with a lot of				false

		622						LN		24		13		false		13   the small business development centers, some of the				false

		623						LN		24		14		false		14   roundtable we've participated in, the one-on-one banking				false

		624						LN		24		15		false		15   meetings that we've had, all of those activities				false

		625						LN		24		16		false		16   concerned with our smalls business marketing efforts.				false

		626						LN		24		17		false		17                   We did have their -- however, there				false

		627						LN		24		18		false		18   are -- there were several loans that were under review				false

		628						LN		24		19		false		19   that came to us that staff reviewed in our inhouse staff				false

		629						LN		24		20		false		20   level that did not come to fruition.  They were				false

		630						LN		24		21		false		21   reviewed.  Some of them came to the brink of review.  We				false

		631						LN		24		22		false		22   had to -- that may have been pulled by the bank for				false

		632						LN		24		23		false		23   reasons.  But starting next month, we'll give you that				false

		633						LN		24		24		false		24   monthly look at, "Okay.  This is what we did, but this				false

		634						LN		24		25		false		25   is what came out of those efforts."  And the marketing				false

		635						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		636						LN		25		1		false		 1   takes place --				false

		637						LN		25		2		false		 2               MR. ANDRE:				false

		638						LN		25		3		false		 3                   And will that include what's in the				false

		639						LN		25		4		false		 4   pipeline that you haven't done anything yet with?				false

		640						LN		25		5		false		 5               MS. GUESS:				false

		641						LN		25		6		false		 6                   Yes.  Well, the Secretary Treasurer's				false

		642						LN		25		7		false		 7   Report is up to date of what's in the pipeline				false

		643						LN		25		8		false		 8   currently.  Well, except there's some that we don't				false

		644						LN		25		9		false		 9   categorize, but we can, because we are still trying to				false

		645						LN		25		10		false		10   work those loans to make sure they come to fruition, but				false

		646						LN		25		11		false		11   we can give you those possibles as well.				false

		647						LN		25		12		false		12               MR. REINE:				false

		648						LN		25		13		false		13                   I'm curious, the availability of SBA				false

		649						LN		25		14		false		14   loans and Restore loans, are those offset in some of the				false

		650						LN		25		15		false		15   activity that we might have seen otherwise because those				false

		651						LN		25		16		false		16   are available?				false

		652						LN		25		17		false		17               MS. GUESS:				false

		653						LN		25		18		false		18                   Not necessarily.  In fact, I was --				false

		654						LN		25		19		false		19   right after the flood, the Restore Home and also the				false

		655						LN		25		20		false		20   entity within the state department that handles small				false

		656						LN		25		21		false		21   business loans, I was on the planning committee for				false

		657						LN		25		22		false		22   that, and you're just not seeing any movement on almost				false

		658						LN		25		23		false		23   either side.  There's a pile of money that Restore Home				false

		659						LN		25		24		false		24   still has -- Restore Louisiana still has that's				false

		660						LN		25		25		false		25   available for small businesses, and people are just not				false

		661						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		662						LN		26		1		false		 1   coming forth to apply for them.  The SBA --				false

		663						LN		26		2		false		 2               MR. REINE:				false

		664						LN		26		3		false		 3                   I understand that, but they're				false

		665						LN		26		4		false		 4   advertising that Restore loan at zero percent interest				false

		666						LN		26		5		false		 5   rate, that under certain conditions you wouldn't even				false

		667						LN		26		6		false		 6   have to pay back part of the loan.  It looks like if				false

		668						LN		26		7		false		 7   that was something they might have approached us with,				false

		669						LN		26		8		false		 8   that's a more attractive product than what we have, and				false

		670						LN		26		9		false		 9   I'm just wondering if that's --				false

		671						LN		26		10		false		10               MS. GUESS:				false

		672						LN		26		11		false		11                   It doesn't play a part because all of				false

		673						LN		26		12		false		12   our loans are -- those are loans that come directly from				false

		674						LN		26		13		false		13   the Restore Louisiana, which are basically direct loans.				false

		675						LN		26		14		false		14   What our challenge has been is getting the banking				false

		676						LN		26		15		false		15   community to get on board.  That's because we only do				false
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		927						LN		36		6		false		 6                   So that's an old one.				false

		928						LN		36		7		false		 7               MR. ANDRE:				false

		929						LN		36		8		false		 8                   I'm sorry?				false

		930						LN		36		9		false		 9               MS. HENDRICKS:				false

		931						LN		36		10		false		10                   Yes, 257.				false

		932						LN		36		11		false		11               MR. ANDRE:				false

		933						LN		36		12		false		12                   I thought that owner drove down that				false

		934						LN		36		13		false		13   interest.  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		935						LN		36		14		false		14                   Any comments from the public on this?				false

		936						LN		36		15		false		15               (No response.)				false

		937						LN		36		16		false		16               MR. ANDRE:				false

		938						LN		36		17		false		17                   Hearing none, all in --				false

		939						LN		36		18		false		18               MR. REINE:				false

		940						LN		36		19		false		19                   So move.				false

		941						LN		36		20		false		20               MS. THAM:				false

		942						LN		36		21		false		21                   Second.				false

		943						LN		36		22		false		22               MR. ANDRE:				false

		944						LN		36		23		false		23                   Any comments or questions?				false

		945						LN		36		24		false		24               (No response.)				false

		946						LN		36		25		false		25               MR. ANDRE:				false

		947						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		948						LN		37		1		false		 1                   All in favor.				false

		949						LN		37		2		false		 2               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		950						LN		37		3		false		 3               MR. ANDRE:				false

		951						LN		37		4		false		 4                   Any opposed?				false

		952						LN		37		5		false		 5               (No response.)				false

		953						LN		37		6		false		 6               MR. ANDRE:				false

		954						LN		37		7		false		 7                   Okay.  Is there any other business to				false

		955						LN		37		8		false		 8   come before this Board before we adjourn?				false

		956						LN		37		9		false		 9               MR. REINE:				false

		957						LN		37		10		false		10                   We've got the President's Report.  She's				false

		958						LN		37		11		false		11   not here.				false

		959						LN		37		12		false		12               MS. VILLA:				false

		960						LN		37		13		false		13                   She's not here, so that's okay.				false

		961						LN		37		14		false		14                   So since Ms. Mitchell isn't here today,				false

		962						LN		37		15		false		15   I went back, and it's been, like we mentioned, several				false

		963						LN		37		16		false		16   months since we last met, so there's been lots of				false

		964						LN		37		17		false		17   activities in LED during that time.  So I just wanted to				false

		965						LN		37		18		false		18   share some of these with you.				false

		966						LN		37		19		false		19                   So I've kind of broken them out between				false

		967						LN		37		20		false		20   our ranks and our announcements and our programs that				false

		968						LN		37		21		false		21   we've had some really good movement on.				false

		969						LN		37		22		false		22                   So in our ranking, back in the Fall,				false

		970						LN		37		23		false		23   Louisiana remains one of the most business friendly				false

		971						LN		37		24		false		24   states in the US ranking Number 5, and this is the				false

		972						LN		37		25		false		25   second consecutive year in a row that Area Development				false

		973						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		974						LN		38		1		false		 1   Magazine's Annual Top States For Doing Business Survey				false

		975						LN		38		2		false		 2   ranked LED 7th, and this is the -- I'm sorry.  This is				false

		976						LN		38		3		false		 3   Number 5, but this represents the seventh consecutive				false

		977						LN		38		4		false		 4   year that LED has ranked in the nation's top 10 ranking.				false

		978						LN		38		5		false		 5   And the Number 5 ranking this year is the same that we				false

		979						LN		38		6		false		 6   had last year.				false

		980						LN		38		7		false		 7                   So Area Development, and I think Louis				false

		981						LN		38		8		false		 8   alluded to this earlier, took note of LED FastStart,				false

		982						LN		38		9		false		 9   which is Louisiana's Customized Workforce Development				false

		983						LN		38		10		false		10   Program and is a substantial selling point for our				false

		984						LN		38		11		false		11   state, so that component is very important.  As we all				false

		985						LN		38		12		false		12   know, workforce development, having a skilled workforce				false

		986						LN		38		13		false		13   is very important.				false

		987						LN		38		14		false		14                   Also, in October, Thumbtack awarded				false

		988						LN		38		15		false		15   Louisiana Graded A+ for 2017's Report Card on Small				false

		989						LN		38		16		false		16   Business Friendliness, ranking the State Number 4 in the				false

		990						LN		38		17		false		17   US for its Supportive Small Business Environment.				false

		991						LN		38		18		false		18   Louisiana earned an "A" in eight specific categories in				false

		992						LN		38		19		false		19   the State Small Business Climate, and a "B" in four				false

		993						LN		38		20		false		20   other categories.				false

		994						LN		38		21		false		21                   And I mentioned earlier, getting to our				false

		995						LN		38		22		false		22   announcements, Champion Home Builders announced the				false

		996						LN		38		23		false		23   company planned a $1.3-million capital investment to				false

		997						LN		38		24		false		24   build manufactured homes in Leesville.  They operate 28				false

		998						LN		38		25		false		25   manufacturing facilities throughout the US, and they				false

		999						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		1000						LN		39		1		false		 1   occupy two buildings currently in Leesville in Northside				false

		1001						LN		39		2		false		 2   Industrial Park.  And they're the ones who are going to				false

		1002						LN		39		3		false		 3   create 200 jobs with an average salary of 35,000 plus				false

		1003						LN		39		4		false		 4   benefits, and they're the ones who has the discretionary				false

		1004						LN		39		5		false		 5   EDAP program awarded 500,000.  So I would suspect that				false

		1005						LN		39		6		false		 6   we see them coming to Board relativity soon, so you'll				false

		1006						LN		39		7		false		 7   get to meet that company at that time.				false

		1007						LN		39		8		false		 8                   Also in the Fall, a very important				false

		1008						LN		39		9		false		 9   project that we worked on in LED with the City of Hodge,				false

		1009						LN		39		10		false		10   WestRock Company announced that the company's going to				false

		1010						LN		39		11		false		11   make a number of improvements in their containerboard				false

		1011						LN		39		12		false		12   paper mill in Hodge over the next five years.  They're				false

		1012						LN		39		13		false		13   in a very competitive market, as you know, and they're				false

		1013						LN		39		14		false		14   going to retain the 400 existing jobs.  The mill				false

		1014						LN		39		15		false		15   improvements are going to include normal maintenance and				false

		1015						LN		39		16		false		16   repairs to keep them competitive, and currently they				false

		1016						LN		39		17		false		17   produce about 800,000 tons annually.				false

		1017						LN		39		18		false		18                   Just to kind of give you a little bit of				false

		1018						LN		39		19		false		19   background, WestRock is the largest employer in Jackson				false

		1019						LN		39		20		false		20   Parish, and they have an annual payroll of about				false

		1020						LN		39		21		false		21   $28-million.  So the state really worked with them to				false

		1021						LN		39		22		false		22   keep up their competitiveness in their company as well				false

		1022						LN		39		23		false		23   as in their industry so that we can keep them here.				false

		1023						LN		39		24		false		24   They've been here since 1928, and they're a major				false

		1024						LN		39		25		false		25   economic driver for the Parish of Jackson and				false

		1025						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1026						LN		40		1		false		 1   surrounding areas and they obviously contribute several				false

		1027						LN		40		2		false		 2   hundred million dollars in economic impact in that				false

		1028						LN		40		3		false		 3   region.				false

		1029						LN		40		4		false		 4                   And then in November, the Governor,				false

		1030						LN		40		5		false		 5   along with NASA's Marshall Space Flight Center Director,				false

		1031						LN		40		6		false		 6   Todd May, announced significant growth that is occurring				false

		1032						LN		40		7		false		 7   at the NASA's Michaud Assembly facility outside of New				false

		1033						LN		40		8		false		 8   Orleans, and it's a pretty cool facility that they have				false

		1034						LN		40		9		false		 9   there.  Their assembly, they have an assembling of the				false

		1035						LN		40		10		false		10   NASA's Orion Crew Capsule and their launch system rocket				false

		1036						LN		40		11		false		11   there.  And over the past year, Boeing has already				false

		1037						LN		40		12		false		12   increased job count by 200 people, technical people,				false

		1038						LN		40		13		false		13   there in that facility.  So they're continuing to grow				false

		1039						LN		40		14		false		14   at the facility, and LED is working with the Nunez				false

		1040						LN		40		15		false		15   Community College through FastStart is working with them				false

		1041						LN		40		16		false		16   for aerospace-related career so that we can have skilled				false

		1042						LN		40		17		false		17   workforce, you know, to continue that growth that we're				false

		1043						LN		40		18		false		18   having there.				false

		1044						LN		40		19		false		19                   And then also in November, which you're				false

		1045						LN		40		20		false		20   probably are all aware of the DXC Technology				false

		1046						LN		40		21		false		21   announcement that occurred in New Orleans, which is				false

		1047						LN		40		22		false		22   going to establish a 2,000 job digital transformation				false

		1048						LN		40		23		false		23   center in the heart of New Orleans.  And this is				false

		1049						LN		40		24		false		24   historically significant.  The project will create more				false

		1050						LN		40		25		false		25   direct jobs at any one site than any prior economic				false

		1051						PG		41		0		false		page 41				false

		1052						LN		41		1		false		 1   development deal in Louisiana.  So this was a huge win				false

		1053						LN		41		2		false		 2   for the State, a huge win, you know, in that industry				false

		1054						LN		41		3		false		 3   sector and a huge win for New Orleans.  So we're working				false

		1055						LN		41		4		false		 4   with them.  They're hitting the ground running and				false

		1056						LN		41		5		false		 5   actually doing job recruitment now.  And in the plans I				false

		1057						LN		41		6		false		 6   believe is they're going to have 300 workers this first				false

		1058						LN		41		7		false		 7   year, and then they'll ramp up to 2,000 over the next				false

		1059						LN		41		8		false		 8   five years.  So 300 ITM Business Enterprise				false

		1060						LN		41		9		false		 9   professionals this year, and then they'll ramp up to				false

		1061						LN		41		10		false		10   2,000.				false

		1062						LN		41		11		false		11                   And, also, what's pretty unique about				false

		1063						LN		41		12		false		12   this is the state is funding $25-million towards higher				false

		1064						LN		41		13		false		13   education so that we can make sure that we have				false

		1065						LN		41		14		false		14   graduates to support the efforts of this so that we can				false

		1066						LN		41		15		false		15   make this is a successful project for the state.				false

		1067						LN		41		16		false		16                   And then also you may know through				false

		1068						LN		41		17		false		17   legislation last year, LED's State Film Production Tax				false

		1069						LN		41		18		false		18   Incentive, which began in 2002 and remains one of the				false

		1070						LN		41		19		false		19   most leading destinations for motion picture production				false

		1071						LN		41		20		false		20   in the world, is we went through some changes last year				false

		1072						LN		41		21		false		21   during session that would allow us to create direct and				false

		1073						LN		41		22		false		22   permanent Louisiana jobs in what's called a statement				false

		1074						LN		41		23		false		23   and creat what's called a "qualified entertainment				false

		1075						LN		41		24		false		24   company" during the legislation session.  And so it's				false

		1076						LN		41		25		false		25   what's required that the Quality Jobs held by Louisiana				false

		1077						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1078						LN		42		1		false		 1   residents, which will be pay more than 45,000 annually,				false

		1079						LN		42		2		false		 2   they're eligible for a 15 percent tax credit.  So we had				false

		1080						LN		42		3		false		 3   our first project, which was announced in December by				false

		1081						LN		42		4		false		 4   Deep South Studios, which is a design-build				false

		1082						LN		42		5		false		 5   entertainment production complex in New Orleans.				false

		1083						LN		42		6		false		 6   They're going to be the first to reap the benefits of				false

		1084						LN		42		7		false		 7   that new program.				false

		1085						LN		42		8		false		 8                   And then in January, just last week,				false

		1086						LN		42		9		false		 9   there was a Military Economic Impact study that was done				false

		1087						LN		42		10		false		10   on the military impact in Louisiana, and just so that				false

		1088						LN		42		11		false		11   you-all know, the military related spending in Louisiana				false

		1089						LN		42		12		false		12   counts for 7.7-billion in annual economic output.  It's				false

		1090						LN		42		13		false		13   a significant impact affecting every region of the state				false

		1091						LN		42		14		false		14   based upon where your bases are located.  And they're				false

		1092						LN		42		15		false		15   currently providing more than 77,000 jobs and they pay				false

		1093						LN		42		16		false		16   almost $280-million in state and local taxes according				false

		1094						LN		42		17		false		17   to the study.  The military counts for four percent of				false

		1095						LN		42		18		false		18   Louisiana jobs.  So I just wanted to share that with				false

		1096						LN		42		19		false		19   you-all so you can really see what impact the military				false

		1097						LN		42		20		false		20   does have in our state.				false

		1098						LN		42		21		false		21                   And then rounding out, keeping with our				false

		1099						LN		42		22		false		22   military, back in October, the Louisiana Veteran				false

		1100						LN		42		23		false		23   Entrepreneurship Program was launched, and it began				false

		1101						LN		42		24		false		24   coursework as the program's in-person boot camp.  We're				false

		1102						LN		42		25		false		25   working with -- LED's working with the Veteran Affairs				false

		1103						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1104						LN		43		1		false		 1   Department to establish a program which will enable				false

		1105						LN		43		2		false		 2   service members leaving the military to gain intensive				false

		1106						LN		43		3		false		 3   training in this boot camp, and they're going to have				false

		1107						LN		43		4		false		 4   ongoing counseling from small business resource				false

		1108						LN		43		5		false		 5   partners.  And the goal is that they're going to, at				false

		1109						LN		43		6		false		 6   least 30 percent of the participants would launch a				false

		1110						LN		43		7		false		 7   business and collectively raise about $5-million in				false

		1111						LN		43		8		false		 8   startup capital.				false

		1112						LN		43		9		false		 9                   And then also along the small business				false

		1113						LN		43		10		false		10   line, we've had a lot of success in our CEO roundtables				false

		1114						LN		43		11		false		11   for fast growing firms, and LED launched another round				false

		1115						LN		43		12		false		12   of roundtables back in November in eight cities				false

		1116						LN		43		13		false		13   throughout the state.  And each roundtable brings				false

		1117						LN		43		14		false		14   together about 10 to 15 business owners of small and				false

		1118						LN		43		15		false		15   emerging business and so they work together each year				false

		1119						LN		43		16		false		16   and they share and learn from each other experiences of				false

		1120						LN		43		17		false		17   their peers and that gives them an opportunity to get				false

		1121						LN		43		18		false		18   kind of just-in-time answers to their pressing issues				false

		1122						LN		43		19		false		19   that they may have and the kind of confined environment.				false

		1123						LN		43		20		false		20                   And then we also launched in January, we				false

		1124						LN		43		21		false		21   launched for small construction companies the Louisiana				false

		1125						LN		43		22		false		22   Contractors Accreditation Institute.  We had another				false

		1126						LN		43		23		false		23   session of that that launched, so...				false

		1127						LN		43		24		false		24                   Those are things that have been going on				false

		1128						LN		43		25		false		25   whenever we haven't been meeting.  And then hopefully				false

		1129						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1130						LN		44		1		false		 1   we'll continue to have these announcements throughout				false

		1131						LN		44		2		false		 2   the year, and I'll provide or Mandi will provide those				false

		1132						LN		44		3		false		 3   updates to you on an ongoing basis.				false

		1133						LN		44		4		false		 4               MR. ANDRE:				false

		1134						LN		44		5		false		 5                   Any comments?				false

		1135						LN		44		6		false		 6               MS. THAM:				false

		1136						LN		44		7		false		 7                   I do have a personal note.  I wanted to				false

		1137						LN		44		8		false		 8   remind everybody, remember the EDAP loan from I guess				false

		1138						LN		44		9		false		 9   last fiscal year to General Informatics?				false

		1139						LN		44		10		false		10               MS. VILLA:				false

		1140						LN		44		11		false		11                   Yes, on Highland.				false

		1141						LN		44		12		false		12               MS. THAM:				false

		1142						LN		44		13		false		13                   They did facial recognition software for				false

		1143						LN		44		14		false		14   law enforcement was their really big project, but in				false

		1144						LN		44		15		false		15   general, they're just a high-tech firm with a lot of				false

		1145						LN		44		16		false		16   software, a lot of jobs for young people, you know, who				false

		1146						LN		44		17		false		17   are likely diversifying into high-tech stuff.  They've				false

		1147						LN		44		18		false		18   been building their building office park at the corner				false

		1148						LN		44		19		false		19   of Highland Road and Bluebonnet.  We watched it go up				false

		1149						LN		44		20		false		20   every day this year.  It's a gorgeous building, has an				false

		1150						LN		44		21		false		21   exciting look about it.  I think it's kind of a physical				false

		1151						LN		44		22		false		22   manifestation of some of the improvements and				false

		1152						LN		44		23		false		23   opportunities for young people to stay here and not go				false

		1153						LN		44		24		false		24   to Houston or -- you know, it was an exciting project				false

		1154						LN		44		25		false		25   when they brought it to us, and it's exciting to watch				false

		1155						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1156						LN		45		1		false		 1   it go up.				false

		1157						LN		45		2		false		 2               MR. REINE:				false

		1158						LN		45		3		false		 3                   Yes, sir.  I just wanted to comment on				false

		1159						LN		45		4		false		 4   when you look at the paper mill, I know those people who				false

		1160						LN		45		5		false		 5   are going to end up working there live here, and so				false

		1161						LN		45		6		false		 6   we've done something for actually our residents and our				false

		1162						LN		45		7		false		 7   workers.				false

		1163						LN		45		8		false		 8                   I'm excited about the movie tax credit.				false

		1164						LN		45		9		false		 9   It gives very enhanced benefit for hiring the people				false

		1165						LN		45		10		false		10   that live here, and it also had a percentage increase to				false

		1166						LN		45		11		false		11   make sure that the industry goes outside of New Orleans				false

		1167						LN		45		12		false		12   where there's an additional incentive for filming				false

		1168						LN		45		13		false		13   outside of the City of New Orleans.				false

		1169						LN		45		14		false		14                   I commend you on the Louisiana				false

		1170						LN		45		15		false		15   Contractor so that we make available to these companies				false

		1171						LN		45		16		false		16   that are coming the opportunity to use Louisiana				false

		1172						LN		45		17		false		17   businesses and Louisiana people.  I think these are				false

		1173						LN		45		18		false		18   great steps.  There's been great concern that a lot of				false

		1174						LN		45		19		false		19   the projects that were considered economic development,				false

		1175						LN		45		20		false		20   our people didn't get to participate, particularly in				false

		1176						LN		45		21		false		21   the construction part of a lot of those big projects				false
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   We call to order the January meeting of

 3   the LEDC Corporation Board.

 4                   Can we have a rollcall, please?

 5               MS. SORRELL:

 6                   A.J. Roy.

 7               (No response.)

 8               MS. SORRELL:

 9                   Alden Andre.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Here.

12               MS. SORRELL:

13                   Louis Reine.

14               MR. REINE:

15                   Here.

16               MS. SORRELL:

17                   Susan Tham.

18               MS. THAM:

19                   Here.

20               MS. SORRELL:

21                   Mandi Mitchell.

22               (No response.)

23               MS. SORRELL:

24                   Cal Simpson.

25               MR. SIMPSON:
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 1                   Here.

 2               MS. SORRELL:

 3                   Nitin Kamath.

 4               (No response.)

 5               MS. SORRELL:

 6                   Sue Durand.

 7               MS. DURAND:

 8                   Here.

 9               MS. SORRELL:

10                   Kimberly Johnson.

11               MS. JOHNSON:

12                   Here.

13               MS. SORRELL:

14                   Todd McDonald

15               MR. MCDONALD:

16                   Here.

17               MS. SORRELL:

18                   We have a quorum.

19               MR. ANDRE:

20                   As you can see, we have two new board

21   members this morning, and I'd like to ask each of them

22   one at a time to please introduce themselves and give us

23   a little bit about their background.  We'll start with

24   Sue Durand.

25               MS. DURAND:
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 1                   I'm honored to represent the Louisiana

 2   Bankers Association, and I have to tell you that I'm the

 3   longest serving commissioner, not the oldest, but the

 4   longest serving commissioner of the St. Landry Economic

 5   Development Council.  And I still serve on it, and it's

 6   been a great ride.

 7                   I am the President and CEO of Washington

 8   State Bank, which is the second oldest bank chartered in

 9   Louisiana.  It was founded in 1893.  And I could name

10   all of my civic organizations, but I won't take up all

11   of your time, but it's a great ride and I'm just happy

12   to be on this Board.  Thank you very much.

13                   MR. MCDONALD:

14                        Good morning.  My name is Todd

15   McDonald, New Orleans native, and I am representing the

16   Louisiana Workforce Council.  I am chair of their

17   council.  And I also have a background in banking as

18   well.  I've been in banking for 14 years, and I'm very

19   happy to be here as well.  So looking forward to a

20   productive term.

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Okay.  Welcome both of you.  We look

23   forward to working with you.

24                   Next on the agenda is the approval of

25   the minutes of last meeting.  I didn't realize that was
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 1   way back in August.  So could I have a motion --

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Mr. Chairman, that's why I wasn't paying

 4   attention during your finance meeting because I read

 5   through them.  So I move we adopt the minutes.

 6               MR. SIMPSON:

 7                   Second.

 8               MR. ANDRE:

 9                   We have a motion and second to adopt the

10   minutes.

11                   Do we have any comments, comments from

12   the public?  Any comments from the Board members?  Any

13   changes, additions or deletions?

14               (No response.)

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   All in favor?

17               (Several members respond "aye.")

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Any opposed?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Okay.  Next on the agenda is we have one

23   inhouse approval that was done since our last meeting

24   that stuff to give us a report on that.  That's Aerion

25   Rental Services.
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 1               MS. DOIN:

 2                   Good morning.  My name is Marissa Doin.

 3   We have one loan update for you today with Aerion Rental

 4   Services, LLC.

 5                   Aerion is as oil field service company.

 6   They were formed back in 2008.  So what they do is they

 7   provide equipment and labor to companies to help wash

 8   down the rigs after they're taken down.  They currently

 9   have 104 employees, and with this guaranty, they're

10   going to be creating six new jobs.

11                   They've requested a $500,000 term loan

12   backed by equipment to help manage and pay down their

13   accounts payables.  The guarantees are going to be for

14   $375,000 for five years.  With their rising sales and

15   positive cash flow for 2017, Aerion is projected to grow

16   significantly, which is why staff recommended approval.

17   And this one was approved and closed in August by Rayne

18   State Bank.

19                   Any questions?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Any questions from the Board members?

23               MR. REINE:

24                   There's in the oil and gas business?

25               MS. DOIN:
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 1                   Yes.

 2               MR REINE:

 3                   You're talking about exceptional growth

 4   in their company in today's current oil and gas market?

 5               MS. DOIN:

 6                   The industry is bouncing back.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   Do you need a motion, Mr. Chairman?

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   No.  Thank you.

11                   Next is our Finance Committee report,

12   and, Susan, before you start, I want to commend you for

13   a great job you do as our chair of our Finance

14   Committee.  I applaud your great expertise and

15   professionalism in handling this committee and guiding

16   us through this.  Thanks a lot.

17               MS. THAM:

18                   Thank you very much.

19                   As the Board heard, the financial

20   statements were presented by Mr. Aaron Cooper, J. Aaron

21   Cooper, CPA, LLC.  He audited our financial statements.

22   And the supplemental information was explained by

23   Mr. Katsanis -- I'm still not going to get it right --

24   of Chaffe & Associates.

25                   After hearing their information, the
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 1   Finance Committee has passed a motion to recommend that

 2   the Board accept the financial statements as they stand.

 3               MR. REINE:

 4                   So moved.

 5               MR. SIMPSON:

 6                   Second.

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   We have a motion and a second to approve

 9   the Finance Committee report.

10                   Are there any comments, questions?  Any

11   opinions from the public?  Any comments from the public?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   Hearing none, all in favor.

15               (Several members respond "aye.")

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Any opposed?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ANDRE:

20                   Thank you, Susan.

21                   Okay.  Next on our agenda is election of

22   officers.  Our Chairman is not here this morning.  He

23   has a bad back.  He pulled his back, but so now to open

24   up the meeting to nominations for the chair of the

25   Board.
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 1               MR. REINE:

 2                   Well, since Mr. Roy's not here, I think

 3   I will nominate him.

 4               MS. THAM:

 5                   Second.

 6               MR. REINE:

 7                   We'll teach him to not show up.  We'll

 8   give him more work.

 9               MS. THAM:

10                   Second.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   Is there a second?

13               MS. THAM:

14                   Yes, second.

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   Any other nominations?

17               (No response.)

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   All in favor of appointing Mr. Roy as

20   our next chair.

21               (Several members respond "aye.")

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any opposed?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   Thank you.

 2                   Next is vice-chair, and if you'd like,

 3   I'll be happy to leave in case you want to nominate

 4   someone else.

 5               MR. REINE:

 6                   You can stay here.  You're doing such an

 7   absolutely fantastic job this morning, I'll nominate you

 8   for vice-chair.

 9               MR. SIMPSON:

10                   Second.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   Any other nominees?

13               (No response.)

14               MR. ANDRE:

15                   Hearing none, all in favor.

16               (Several members respond "aye.")

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Any opposed?

19               (No response.)

20               MR. ANDRE:

21                   Okay.  Thank you.

22                   And committee appointments.  Staff, you

23   want to give us that report?

24               MR. BARHAM:

25                   If you look in your packet, I think the
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 1   overall on Page 127, it begins on that page.  We have a

 2   handful of committees on Page 128.  I'm sorry.  27, 28.

 3   We have a total of five different committees, and this

 4   is the way that the committees stood as of January of

 5   2017, so they have not changed.

 6                   The Executive Committee is obviously

 7   made up of the chairman, the vice-chair, and then the --

 8   it's basically all of the chairmen of every single

 9   committee.  So that's pretty much a set one.  The other

10   four need to be appointed.  And underneath each one,

11   like the Screening Committee, we typically appoint five

12   positions.  We don't necessarily have to, but each

13   committee will require at least three members of that

14   committee to meet or the chair of that committee.  And

15   the interesting thing is that the vast majority of them

16   doesn't even have to have the chair of the committee to

17   meet as long as the chair is knowledgeable of the

18   meeting.

19                   The Screening Committee is probably our

20   most widely used of the committees.  It holds meetings

21   in place of the Board for certain projects in the event

22   that the Board cannot have a quorum.  We've run into

23   that issue in the past due to weather delays and

24   scheduling conflicts and emergencies.  So the Screening

25   Committee will meet and review projects for the EDAP
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 1   program and the Small Business Loan Guaranty program

 2   when the full Board is not available.

 3                   They can be appointed however you'd

 4   like.  If the Board -- I mean, I know our chair is not

 5   here, so I guess it would be up to the vice-chair to

 6   appoint or if anybody has an interest in being on any

 7   particular committee itself.  We have --

 8               MR. ANDRE:

 9                   I'd like to ask our new members if they

10   have any interest or would like to volunteer for any of

11   these.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   Mr. Chair, can I ask a question?

14                   Under the Screening Committee, how is

15   that language developed?  Is it something we did or is

16   that mandated language?

17               MR. BARHAM:

18                   Yeah.  That was created years and years

19   ago when the Board was first formed.  It's changed a

20   little bit over the years, but it has been a while.

21               MR. REINE:

22                   Well, it seems kind of confusing.  If

23   we're going to appoint five members, like couldn't we

24   just chang it to "The chairman's going to appoint five

25   members," instead of "shall consist of three members
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 1   including the vice-chairman and two additional members

 2   who may be appointed or alternatives."  If we appoint

 3   five members, why don't we just say the chairman's going

 4   to appoint five members?

 5               MR. BARHAM:

 6                   We can look into that.  I'll have to

 7   double check if it's in the statute or bylaws.  I

 8   believe if it's in the bylaws, I think the Board can

 9   just meet and decide on changing it.  If it's the

10   statute, that would be a whole different ball game.

11               MR. REINE:

12                   If there's a reason for it to read that

13   way, but it would be much clearer if we just say what

14   we're going to do and do what we say.

15               MR. BARHAM:

16                   Layman's terms.  I agree.  Layman's

17   terms.

18               MS. THAM:

19                   Before our new board members comment,

20   one thing I'd like to point out about is that one of the

21   things that I was always told about the Screening

22   Committee is a lot of times trying to get people

23   together when it's hard to get a quorum.  And so, for

24   instance, I had always volunteered for it because I was

25   in Baton Rouge, you know, I worked 10 miles away, and I
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 1   could be here easily.  So that's something to consider

 2   for the Screening Committee.  It would require you

 3   trying to commit to being here if you were needed.

 4                   And it is for that same reason, I'd like

 5   to take my name off the Screening Committee.  For those

 6   of you who have been here for a while, you know that

 7   basically I have put in my letter of resignation pending

 8   my move out of state.  I retired this year.

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   Remove your name from what?

11               MS. THAM:

12                   From the Screening Committee.  Yeah.

13   It's not very practical for me living in Florida to have

14   to come.

15               MR. REINE:

16                   You can move me to Florida.

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Anyone else on the committee that does

19   not want to continue serving?

20               MR. REINE:

21                   Mr. Chairman?

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   New members?

24               MR. REINE:

25                   Mr. Chairman, I'm going to suggest that
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 1   we wait till the next meeting and officially do that so

 2   that we can look at -- have Mr. Roy look at the new

 3   members and offer them opportunities because I don't see

 4   their names on any of these committees.

 5               MS. THAM:

 6                   And that was my next question.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   Well, this is how it is today where the

 9   Chairman is supposed to be here and he's aware it's that

10   time of year to reappoint them; correct?  Rather than

11   take any action today, I think we ought to allow the

12   opportunity for the chairman to consider the new members

13   and what would be their preference and that we just

14   defer appointing these committees till the next meeting.

15   I think the new members ought to have an opportunity to

16   participate, and they're not on this list.  So I

17   wouldn't want to adopt it as it is.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Does everybody agree?

20               MS. JOHNSON:

21                   I had a question about availability.  Is

22   there a way to call in for the meetings as it's not

23   based on bylaws?  Okay.  So you have to be physically

24   present in Baton Rouge?

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   And I don't really recommend we start

 2   that.

 3               MR. REINE:

 4                   That's actually in a violation of the

 5   whole --

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   I sit on a board where they do that, and

 8   it's so cumbersome.  People tend not to come, and then

 9   you have an audience with just two board members to look

10   at it.  And I'll vote with the majority, but I don't

11   recommend it.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   And I'll oppose it.

14                   Anyway, I move to defer the appointment

15   of committees to the next meeting.

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Is there a second?

18               MR. MCDONALD:

19                   Second.

20               MR. ANDRE:

21                   All in favor.

22               (Several members respond "aye.")

23               MR. ANDRE:

24                   Any opposed?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   Okay.  Next we'll move to Treasurer's

 3   Report.

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   I'm having a computer malfunction.  My

 6   Secretary Treasurer's Report did not come over on the

 7   PDF, so if I could please get somebody else's -- okay.

 8   Thank you, Mr. Reine.  I appreciate that.

 9                   Before I start, Anne Villa,

10   Undersecretary for LED.  I think I met the two new Board

11   members.  I just wanted to point out to you-all, we have

12   our Director of Legal Operations, Tam Bourgeois, here

13   with us.  I don't think that she's been introduced to

14   the Board in the past.  Mr. Cangelosi is out ill, and I

15   just want to take a moment to introduce Tam to each of

16   you.  So Tam is here as our legal representative this

17   morning.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   So he has not retired?  I thought he

20   retired.  No?  Okay.

21               MS. TAM:

22                   No.

23               MS. VILLA:

24                   Starting with the LEDC Secretary

25   Treasurer's report, I have -- yes.  Okay.  So starting
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 1   on Page 1, we have our FY '18 budget for total of

 2   Financial Assistance of $190,000 with the Loan

 3   Assistance Program.  And then our State Small Business

 4   Credit Initiatives, as you can see, it's been

 5   strengthening because we've been using that fund.  We

 6   have a budget of $1,223,442.  And we have that project

 7   which we previously approved in August for 93,750, which

 8   leaves us with our balance of $1,319,692.  And we have a

 9   couple of projects that are under review right now.  Rex

10   Industrial and M&A Safety, which total $148,328, which

11   leaves us with a current projected yearend balance of

12   $1,171,364.

13                   Regarding our EDAP program, we have an

14   FY '18 budget of $5,537,819, and we have projects that

15   have been approved by the Board of $1,103,179, which

16   leaves a balance of $4,434,640.  And we currently have

17   projects under review within the department of

18   $2,550,000.  And we have a projected yearend balance of

19   $1,884,640.  And that is what we're projecting to end

20   the year with.

21                   If you go to our financial statements on

22   the next -- our Fund Balance on the next page, our

23   General Appropriation projected for FY '18 has a fund

24   balance available of $15,410,844 with expenditures

25   expected at $14,579,203 with a yearend projection --
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 1   that should read 6/30 of '18 -- of 831,641.

 2                   Questions?

 3               (No response.)

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   Just to let you know, we did submit our

 6   budget request for FY '18, and we do have in our Capital

 7   Outlay budget request an additional $10-million for the

 8   EDAP fund.  As you all know, the initial budget was

 9   presented last week.  The Capital Outlay budget request

10   I think it was more HB1 and HB2.  I don't believe has

11   been presented yet, but in HB2's request, we actually

12   have our $10-million request for the EDAP fund, which we

13   use, for our new members, for infrastructure development

14   with projects.

15                   And when I get to the President's Report

16   given in lieu of Mandi, since she's not here, there was

17   a project that was recently announced in the Fall that

18   was awarded the EDAP fund.  And so we should expect to

19   see them coming to the Board I would think pretty soon.

20   So I would save that for those announcement.

21                   So if no questions, I'll turn it over to

22   Molly, who will give our Accountant's Report.

23               MR. REINE:

24                   I do have a question.  I'm just trying

25   to figure out the appropriate time.
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 1                   Does the Constitution provide the

 2   administration, as proposed in the '18-'19 budget, based

 3   on the estimation of revenue, where does DED's budget as

 4   a whole, and in particularly it affects us look like in

 5   the budget proposal compared to the present budget?

 6               MS. VILLA:

 7                   It's not going to affect LEDC.  Where it

 8   does affect is LED's Regional Economic Development

 9   Organization known as LEDO.  We fund them $1,360,000

10   every year, and that's been removed from the budget in

11   order for it to be balanced.  It's obviously not one

12   that the Governor nor the Commission or the

13   Administration or the Secretary want to have removed

14   from our budget, but as it stands right now, to present

15   that balanced budget, we had to reduce that by

16   1,360,000.

17                   In addition, every year, LED has

18   appropriated for, it's called a Rapid Response Fund,

19   which gives the authority to the Secretary and the

20   Governor to utilize those funds for projects and deploy

21   them, especially onces that are going to make an

22   immediate impact to the economy.  That fund, we

23   generally get an infusion of $10-million each year.

24   This year the infusion is was only going to be

25   $5-million.  That's in this initial budget, and so
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 1   that's kind of those two areas that we've been hit with.

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Wasn't that Rapid Response Fund like

 4   number one in the nation?

 5               MS. VILLA:

 6                   You're talking about FastStart.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   So the Rapid Respond is not the

 9   FastStart?

10               MS. VILLA:

11                   Rapid Response has discretionary funding

12   for business development.

13               MR. REINE:

14                   Okay.  Thank you.

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   Do we have a motion to accept the

17   Treasurer's Report?

18               MS. THAM:

19                   I so move.

20               MR. REINE:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any questions or any comments from the

24   public?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   Hearing none, all in favor.

 3               (Several members respond "aye.")

 4               MR. ANDRE:

 5                   Any opposed?

 6               (No response.)

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   Before we move from the Treasurer's

 9   Report, I brought this up I guess a couple of years ago

10   a concern I have that our activity is very low.  You

11   look here, and we haven't met since August, and, you

12   know, we had one project.  And when I brought it up, I

13   was given a report on what's in the pipeline.  And, in

14   fact, actually all of our Treasurer's Report gave us is

15   a specific indication of what's in the pipeline.  I

16   don't see very much this morning.

17                   Could staff enlighten us on where we

18   are, what's in the pipeline, what can be expected?

19               MS. GUESS:

20                   Well, this morning -- thank you for

21   bringing that up.  I was going to find a point to bring

22   you up-to-date.

23                   The lack of projects that you see on the

24   Secretary Treasurer's Report is not indicative of the

25   activity that the staff has performed in order to try to
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 1   generate some marketing.

 2               MR. ANDRE:

 3                   Then there should be something given to

 4   us monthly as to what it is.  We have no knowledge of

 5   what's in the pipeline, what to expect.  So if you can

 6   add just a one-pager, it will help us a lot.

 7               MS. GUESS:

 8                   Sure.  What we'll do is, what we have

 9   done as of yesterday, we finished our marketing tracking

10   chart to show what the marketing efforts have been by

11   the staff for last calendar, last fiscal -- calendar and

12   fiscal year.  It shows our participation with a lot of

13   the small business development centers, some of the

14   roundtable we've participated in, the one-on-one banking

15   meetings that we've had, all of those activities

16   concerned with our smalls business marketing efforts.

17                   We did have their -- however, there

18   are -- there were several loans that were under review

19   that came to us that staff reviewed in our inhouse staff

20   level that did not come to fruition.  They were

21   reviewed.  Some of them came to the brink of review.  We

22   had to -- that may have been pulled by the bank for

23   reasons.  But starting next month, we'll give you that

24   monthly look at, "Okay.  This is what we did, but this

25   is what came out of those efforts."  And the marketing
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 1   takes place --

 2               MR. ANDRE:

 3                   And will that include what's in the

 4   pipeline that you haven't done anything yet with?

 5               MS. GUESS:

 6                   Yes.  Well, the Secretary Treasurer's

 7   Report is up to date of what's in the pipeline

 8   currently.  Well, except there's some that we don't

 9   categorize, but we can, because we are still trying to

10   work those loans to make sure they come to fruition, but

11   we can give you those possibles as well.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   I'm curious, the availability of SBA

14   loans and Restore loans, are those offset in some of the

15   activity that we might have seen otherwise because those

16   are available?

17               MS. GUESS:

18                   Not necessarily.  In fact, I was --

19   right after the flood, the Restore Home and also the

20   entity within the state department that handles small

21   business loans, I was on the planning committee for

22   that, and you're just not seeing any movement on almost

23   either side.  There's a pile of money that Restore Home

24   still has -- Restore Louisiana still has that's

25   available for small businesses, and people are just not
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 1   coming forth to apply for them.  The SBA --

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   I understand that, but they're

 4   advertising that Restore loan at zero percent interest

 5   rate, that under certain conditions you wouldn't even

 6   have to pay back part of the loan.  It looks like if

 7   that was something they might have approached us with,

 8   that's a more attractive product than what we have, and

 9   I'm just wondering if that's --

10               MS. GUESS:

11                   It doesn't play a part because all of

12   our loans are -- those are loans that come directly from

13   the Restore Louisiana, which are basically direct loans.

14   What our challenge has been is getting the banking

15   community to get on board.  That's because we only do

16   loan guarantees, not direct loans.

17               MR. REINE:

18                   Well, that's kind of what I was getting

19   at.  If I had the option of going to the bank and making

20   the loan or I qualified for the Restore loan, I wouldn't

21   be going to the bank because it's zero interest.  I

22   might be forgiven part of it.  I just...

23               MS. GUESS:

24                   We've not seen any indication, and I've

25   been in close contact with and talking with the people
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 1   upstairs, in fact, they're in this building, the

 2   Community Development, that it's not truly a factor of

 3   why we don't see any loans.

 4               MR. REINE:

 5                   Okay.  So people are not borrowing money

 6   or do people borrow money and just don't need us to give

 7   a guaranty?

 8               MR. BARHAM:

 9                   It's a combination of that and then

10   some.  The lending activity across the State, for the

11   most part, a lot of banks, if they're not using the SBA

12   program -- and I know we have a couple of bankers here

13   that could probably vouch for this as well.  If they're

14   not using the federal programs, they're doing a lot of

15   things.  If they are lending, they're probably lending

16   without guarantees.  So we're kind of running that fine

17   line in the middle where if it's a larger project, it's

18   more beneficial, in all honestly, for the banks to go to

19   the FEDs because they can do a longer term and they can

20   print more money if they need it, where we're working

21   with a limited basis.

22                   We found our niche has been the riskier,

23   more smaller loans, which would be a straight line

24   credit or a cash loan that we can guaranty for two to

25   three years to turn our money over quicker, which can be

0028

 1   in combination with an SBA loan.

 2                   So we're in a small piece of that pie in

 3   a very specific niche that our program fits into, and

 4   apparently that niche or that segment of market that

 5   we're looking at is not getting as many loans approved

 6   as had been in the past.

 7                   As Brenda had pointed out, we've

 8   evaluated several loans over the last four or five

 9   months, and only one of those has come to fruition and

10   that was the one that Marissa updated us on earlier.

11   We've actually got three that we're looking at now, two

12   that were reported to you.  And the only time that those

13   loans get reported on that Secretary Treasurer's Report,

14   those are loans that we are confident in that have the

15   highest probability of closing.  And what I mean by that

16   is the banker is extremely committed to it or the bank

17   is committed to it by having a commitment letter

18   proposed to the borrower and signing our application.

19   So that means that they're serious.  That's the only

20   time we put that on the Secretary Treasurer's Report

21   because we've done it in the past where we've gone

22   through our processes and approved several loans and

23   then the loan never closes, so we have to go back and

24   readjust our books and it becomes an accounting

25   nightmare.  So we've changed our policy to only report
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 1   those that we have a high probability or a good chance

 2   of closing that we feel are going to be our best

 3   presentation.

 4                   So the ones that you see are probably

 5   the two or three out of, you know, 15 that we actually

 6   review or discuss in some way, shape or form.

 7                   Getting back to your original question,

 8   our activity is probably very representative of just the

 9   overall lending environment itself.  I've actually been

10   in conversation with some of our allies across the state

11   here in the local area, BRAC, for example, we've been in

12   touch and they've asked the same questions because they

13   have a direct pulse on the lending community.  They talk

14   to their local bankers on a regular basis, and there's

15   no activity from their standpoint here in the Baton

16   Rouge area.

17                   And the small businesses or the small

18   entrepreneurs are saying the same thing.  They're saying

19   that they can't get the loans or that the loans are not

20   going out, and the banks are saying that no one is

21   qualified to get the loans.  So we're seeing it from

22   both ends, but we have noticed that there has been a

23   tremendous downward turn in small business lending,

24   which is that little area of where we're trying to

25   operate.
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 1               MS. GUESS:

 2                   One of the things that we will show on

 3   the report for you for next month is the relationships

 4   that we're developing outside of the banking community.

 5   For example, we entered into a Memoranda of

 6   Understanding with the City of Minden.  They have what

 7   they call a Small business Institute, and the Small

 8   Business Institute has, they take a group of potential

 9   entrepreneurs, they go through a training process, and

10   once they have graduated, if you will, from the training

11   process, they are then deemed as eligible and ready to

12   possibly go and talk to a bank to have their business

13   funded.

14                   I think the Small Business Institute

15   just got started late last year.  They're in the process

16   of graduating I think three to four businesses, and

17   they'll soon be ready to go to a lender to hopefully

18   qualify for a loan.  And this is one of the areas that

19   we're looking to into to do as kind of like, okay, we'll

20   get them and we have to take them to the bank, have

21   somebody pre-qualify them and to make sure that they can

22   be lender ready, if you will.

23                   So those are -- we're having to think

24   outside of the box a little bit rather than just waiting

25   for the banking community to say yes.  But the
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 1   relationships that staff has developed over the last few

 2   years, we've got repeat bankers coming back to us, but

 3   we'll go more into that next month when you can see what

 4   that activity is and you'll have it in front of you.

 5               MR. BARHAM:

 6                   In addition to that, while we're

 7   discussing this, from our August meeting is where that

 8   the Board had made the big change that we've been

 9   requesting last year for a reduction in collateral

10   requirements for that Loan Guaranty Program.  Those are

11   set to go into effect next month.  DOA has put them out

12   there, they're going through their whole process and

13   public hearing piece and all of that good stuff.

14   They're scheduled, if I remember correctly, to go into

15   effect on the 20th of next month, and we've already got

16   mass publication of our marketing efforts.  But in

17   conversations with our banks that we deal with on a

18   regular basis, they're aware of those changes, and we're

19   already starting -- staff's already starting to review

20   applications that are hinging upon the execution of

21   those rule changes.  So I believe the two that are on

22   this list are two that are waiting for those rule

23   changes to go into effect.

24               MS. VILLA:

25                   Plus the other side of that, too, is the
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 1   EDAP funding that we receive, you know, every year on

 2   that, and we do use that whenever we're working with our

 3   business development team as a tool in our toolbox for a

 4   potential discretionary incentive.  Unfortunately, we

 5   don't disclose those until those are actually announced

 6   projects that have had, you know, press releases.  So

 7   you don't really get to see the activity behind what's

 8   really going on until that actual press release goes

 9   into effect.  So I just wanted to bring that up to you.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Okay.  Thank you.  I appreciate that.

12                   Okay.  Moving on to the Account's

13   Report.

14               MS. HENDRICKS:

15                   Good morning.  I'm Molly Hendricks, and

16   I am going over the Account Status Report as of December

17   31st, 2017.

18                   The Direct Loans total 674,400.

19   Golfballs is our only direct loan, and they're making

20   interest only payments at this time.

21                   The EDAP Loans total 424,080.  And the

22   Guaranty Loan, Depot Drilling, that was paid off during

23   the December.

24                   The allowance for Direct Loans is set at

25   15 percent for a total of 101,160.  The allowance for
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 1   EDAP Loan Losses is also at 15 percent, for a total of

 2   63,612.  And the allowance for Guaranty Losses is at

 3   zero because that was the one for Depot Drilling that

 4   was paid off.

 5                   Currently there are 18 SSBCI Guaranteed

 6   Loans for a total of $6,249,656.  One of the loans, LA

 7   Bayou Bites, is 60 to 90 days past due.

 8                   Then the allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed

 9   Loan Losses total $1,135,520.

10                   And that concludes my report.

11               MR. REINE:

12                   What do y'all do with the loans 60 to 90

13   days past due?

14               MR. BARHAM:

15                   We monitor them like they're our

16   two-year-old child.  That particular one has been like

17   that for about the last 12 months, I would say, a solid

18   12 months.  They've been up and down between 30 and 60.

19   At one point, they were over 90.  We've been in constant

20   contact with the banker, and they are working with them

21   directly to get that loan brought up to speed.  The

22   problem that the company ran into is they had a contract

23   with a sole buyer, and that buyer closed up shop.  So

24   they were scrambling to find additional usage or

25   contracts for their product, which is alligator meat
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 1   that they were originally intending on processing the

 2   scraps for dog food, but they have since had to modify

 3   their business, so they are in flux at this time.  They

 4   are also extremely tight with their debt-to-income ratio

 5   that they're basically funding the thing out of their

 6   own pocket right now as an individual.  So they've had

 7   to actually liquidate I think a few other assets,

 8   because they have multiple businesses, to cover their

 9   expenses at this time.

10                   So they are doing everything they can to

11   make the loan good.  The banker is giving them every

12   concession, but we've been in contact with them, but our

13   policy is we don't take any action on the loan.  We just

14   monitor it and stay in constant contact and assist

15   whenever we can to the best of our ability.  Until the

16   banker decides that the loan has gone long enough and

17   they need to call the loan and collect.

18                   We were afraid they would do that back

19   in September, but they managed to bring it to where it

20   is today.  But they have to be at least 90 days before

21   the bank officially can call the loan.

22               MR. MCDONALD:

23                   Did the bank consider any restructuring

24   or anything like that or interest monthly payments?

25               MR. BARHAM:

0035

 1                   They're trying.  The bank pretty much

 2   owns everything that this -- I think it's a husband and

 3   wife, and they have a couple operations.  The bank

 4   pretty much has a hold on everything, so restructuring

 5   is going to be a little difficult, but the good thing is

 6   it's all with one solution.  So they're looking into

 7   every option at this point.

 8               MR. MCDONALD:

 9                   Thank you.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Any other comments or questions?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   I have one.  Ms. Hendricks?

15               MS. HENDRICKS:

16                   Yes?

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Back on Page 1, the Structural Plastics,

19   is that something that's real old or is that somebody

20   that just -- I forget.  Have they just started up and

21   just haven't done anything with that yet?

22               MS. HENDRICKS:

23                   The CSP loan, that was -- I'm not sure

24   how old that one is, but it's winding down, so...

25               MS. VILLA:

0036

 1                   That amount due is the 257.  So is that

 2   the balance actually?

 3               MS. HENDRICKS:

 4                   Yes.

 5               MS. VILLA:

 6                   So that's an old one.

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   I'm sorry?

 9               MS. HENDRICKS:

10                   Yes, 257.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   I thought that owner drove down that

13   interest.  Okay.  Thank you.

14                   Any comments from the public on this?

15               (No response.)

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Hearing none, all in --

18               MR. REINE:

19                   So move.

20               MS. THAM:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any comments or questions?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   All in favor.

 2               (Several members respond "aye.")

 3               MR. ANDRE:

 4                   Any opposed?

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   Okay.  Is there any other business to

 8   come before this Board before we adjourn?

 9               MR. REINE:

10                   We've got the President's Report.  She's

11   not here.

12               MS. VILLA:

13                   She's not here, so that's okay.

14                   So since Ms. Mitchell isn't here today,

15   I went back, and it's been, like we mentioned, several

16   months since we last met, so there's been lots of

17   activities in LED during that time.  So I just wanted to

18   share some of these with you.

19                   So I've kind of broken them out between

20   our ranks and our announcements and our programs that

21   we've had some really good movement on.

22                   So in our ranking, back in the Fall,

23   Louisiana remains one of the most business friendly

24   states in the US ranking Number 5, and this is the

25   second consecutive year in a row that Area Development
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 1   Magazine's Annual Top States For Doing Business Survey

 2   ranked LED 7th, and this is the -- I'm sorry.  This is

 3   Number 5, but this represents the seventh consecutive

 4   year that LED has ranked in the nation's top 10 ranking.

 5   And the Number 5 ranking this year is the same that we

 6   had last year.

 7                   So Area Development, and I think Louis

 8   alluded to this earlier, took note of LED FastStart,

 9   which is Louisiana's Customized Workforce Development

10   Program and is a substantial selling point for our

11   state, so that component is very important.  As we all

12   know, workforce development, having a skilled workforce

13   is very important.

14                   Also, in October, Thumbtack awarded

15   Louisiana Graded A+ for 2017's Report Card on Small

16   Business Friendliness, ranking the State Number 4 in the

17   US for its Supportive Small Business Environment.

18   Louisiana earned an "A" in eight specific categories in

19   the State Small Business Climate, and a "B" in four

20   other categories.

21                   And I mentioned earlier, getting to our

22   announcements, Champion Home Builders announced the

23   company planned a $1.3-million capital investment to

24   build manufactured homes in Leesville.  They operate 28

25   manufacturing facilities throughout the US, and they
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 1   occupy two buildings currently in Leesville in Northside

 2   Industrial Park.  And they're the ones who are going to

 3   create 200 jobs with an average salary of 35,000 plus

 4   benefits, and they're the ones who has the discretionary

 5   EDAP program awarded 500,000.  So I would suspect that

 6   we see them coming to Board relativity soon, so you'll

 7   get to meet that company at that time.

 8                   Also in the Fall, a very important

 9   project that we worked on in LED with the City of Hodge,

10   WestRock Company announced that the company's going to

11   make a number of improvements in their containerboard

12   paper mill in Hodge over the next five years.  They're

13   in a very competitive market, as you know, and they're

14   going to retain the 400 existing jobs.  The mill

15   improvements are going to include normal maintenance and

16   repairs to keep them competitive, and currently they

17   produce about 800,000 tons annually.

18                   Just to kind of give you a little bit of

19   background, WestRock is the largest employer in Jackson

20   Parish, and they have an annual payroll of about

21   $28-million.  So the state really worked with them to

22   keep up their competitiveness in their company as well

23   as in their industry so that we can keep them here.

24   They've been here since 1928, and they're a major

25   economic driver for the Parish of Jackson and

0040

 1   surrounding areas and they obviously contribute several

 2   hundred million dollars in economic impact in that

 3   region.

 4                   And then in November, the Governor,

 5   along with NASA's Marshall Space Flight Center Director,

 6   Todd May, announced significant growth that is occurring

 7   at the NASA's Michaud Assembly facility outside of New

 8   Orleans, and it's a pretty cool facility that they have

 9   there.  Their assembly, they have an assembling of the

10   NASA's Orion Crew Capsule and their launch system rocket

11   there.  And over the past year, Boeing has already

12   increased job count by 200 people, technical people,

13   there in that facility.  So they're continuing to grow

14   at the facility, and LED is working with the Nunez

15   Community College through FastStart is working with them

16   for aerospace-related career so that we can have skilled

17   workforce, you know, to continue that growth that we're

18   having there.

19                   And then also in November, which you're

20   probably are all aware of the DXC Technology

21   announcement that occurred in New Orleans, which is

22   going to establish a 2,000 job digital transformation

23   center in the heart of New Orleans.  And this is

24   historically significant.  The project will create more

25   direct jobs at any one site than any prior economic
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 1   development deal in Louisiana.  So this was a huge win

 2   for the State, a huge win, you know, in that industry

 3   sector and a huge win for New Orleans.  So we're working

 4   with them.  They're hitting the ground running and

 5   actually doing job recruitment now.  And in the plans I

 6   believe is they're going to have 300 workers this first

 7   year, and then they'll ramp up to 2,000 over the next

 8   five years.  So 300 ITM Business Enterprise

 9   professionals this year, and then they'll ramp up to

10   2,000.

11                   And, also, what's pretty unique about

12   this is the state is funding $25-million towards higher

13   education so that we can make sure that we have

14   graduates to support the efforts of this so that we can

15   make this is a successful project for the state.

16                   And then also you may know through

17   legislation last year, LED's State Film Production Tax

18   Incentive, which began in 2002 and remains one of the

19   most leading destinations for motion picture production

20   in the world, is we went through some changes last year

21   during session that would allow us to create direct and

22   permanent Louisiana jobs in what's called a statement

23   and creat what's called a "qualified entertainment

24   company" during the legislation session.  And so it's

25   what's required that the Quality Jobs held by Louisiana
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 1   residents, which will be pay more than 45,000 annually,

 2   they're eligible for a 15 percent tax credit.  So we had

 3   our first project, which was announced in December by

 4   Deep South Studios, which is a design-build

 5   entertainment production complex in New Orleans.

 6   They're going to be the first to reap the benefits of

 7   that new program.

 8                   And then in January, just last week,

 9   there was a Military Economic Impact study that was done

10   on the military impact in Louisiana, and just so that

11   you-all know, the military related spending in Louisiana

12   counts for 7.7-billion in annual economic output.  It's

13   a significant impact affecting every region of the state

14   based upon where your bases are located.  And they're

15   currently providing more than 77,000 jobs and they pay

16   almost $280-million in state and local taxes according

17   to the study.  The military counts for four percent of

18   Louisiana jobs.  So I just wanted to share that with

19   you-all so you can really see what impact the military

20   does have in our state.

21                   And then rounding out, keeping with our

22   military, back in October, the Louisiana Veteran

23   Entrepreneurship Program was launched, and it began

24   coursework as the program's in-person boot camp.  We're

25   working with -- LED's working with the Veteran Affairs
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 1   Department to establish a program which will enable

 2   service members leaving the military to gain intensive

 3   training in this boot camp, and they're going to have

 4   ongoing counseling from small business resource

 5   partners.  And the goal is that they're going to, at

 6   least 30 percent of the participants would launch a

 7   business and collectively raise about $5-million in

 8   startup capital.

 9                   And then also along the small business

10   line, we've had a lot of success in our CEO roundtables

11   for fast growing firms, and LED launched another round

12   of roundtables back in November in eight cities

13   throughout the state.  And each roundtable brings

14   together about 10 to 15 business owners of small and

15   emerging business and so they work together each year

16   and they share and learn from each other experiences of

17   their peers and that gives them an opportunity to get

18   kind of just-in-time answers to their pressing issues

19   that they may have and the kind of confined environment.

20                   And then we also launched in January, we

21   launched for small construction companies the Louisiana

22   Contractors Accreditation Institute.  We had another

23   session of that that launched, so...

24                   Those are things that have been going on

25   whenever we haven't been meeting.  And then hopefully
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 1   we'll continue to have these announcements throughout

 2   the year, and I'll provide or Mandi will provide those

 3   updates to you on an ongoing basis.

 4               MR. ANDRE:

 5                   Any comments?

 6               MS. THAM:

 7                   I do have a personal note.  I wanted to

 8   remind everybody, remember the EDAP loan from I guess

 9   last fiscal year to General Informatics?

10               MS. VILLA:

11                   Yes, on Highland.

12               MS. THAM:

13                   They did facial recognition software for

14   law enforcement was their really big project, but in

15   general, they're just a high-tech firm with a lot of

16   software, a lot of jobs for young people, you know, who

17   are likely diversifying into high-tech stuff.  They've

18   been building their building office park at the corner

19   of Highland Road and Bluebonnet.  We watched it go up

20   every day this year.  It's a gorgeous building, has an

21   exciting look about it.  I think it's kind of a physical

22   manifestation of some of the improvements and

23   opportunities for young people to stay here and not go

24   to Houston or -- you know, it was an exciting project

25   when they brought it to us, and it's exciting to watch
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 1   it go up.

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Yes, sir.  I just wanted to comment on

 4   when you look at the paper mill, I know those people who

 5   are going to end up working there live here, and so

 6   we've done something for actually our residents and our

 7   workers.

 8                   I'm excited about the movie tax credit.

 9   It gives very enhanced benefit for hiring the people

10   that live here, and it also had a percentage increase to

11   make sure that the industry goes outside of New Orleans

12   where there's an additional incentive for filming

13   outside of the City of New Orleans.

14                   I commend you on the Louisiana

15   Contractor so that we make available to these companies

16   that are coming the opportunity to use Louisiana

17   businesses and Louisiana people.  I think these are

18   great steps.  There's been great concern that a lot of

19   the projects that were considered economic development,

20   our people didn't get to participate, particularly in

21   the construction part of a lot of those big projects

22   where the state participates, forgoes revenue or gives

23   incentives and all of the work is done by people who

24   come here from someplace else, then they go back home.

25   So to see these projects where, in the whole picture,
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 1   the workers and the citizens in this state are, there's

 2   much encouragement for them to participate, I greatly

 3   appreciate that and commend you for it.

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   Thank you.

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   Any other comments or questions?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   Okay.  Any other business to come before

11   the board?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

15   adjourn.

16               MR. REINE:

17                   So moved.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Second?

20               MS. THAM:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Thank you very much.  Good meeting.

24               (Meeting adjourns at 10:49 a.m.)

25   
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·We call to order the January meeting of


·3· ·the LEDC Corporation Board.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Can we have a rollcall, please?


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·A.J. Roy.


·7· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·8· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Alden Andre.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


12· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Louis Reine.


14· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


16· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Susan Tham.


18· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


20· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Mandi Mitchell.


22· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


23· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Cal Simpson.


25· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


·2· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Nitin Kamath.


·4· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Sue Durand.


·7· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


·9· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Kimberly Johnson.


11· · · · · · · ·MS. JOHNSON:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


13· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Todd McDonald


15· · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


17· · · · · · · ·MS. SORRELL:


18· · · · · · · · · ·We have a quorum.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


20· · · · · · · · · ·As you can see, we have two new board


21· ·members this morning, and I'd like to ask each of them


22· ·one at a time to please introduce themselves and give us


23· ·a little bit about their background.· We'll start with


24· ·Sue Durand.


25· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 5
·1· · · · · · · · · ·I'm honored to represent the Louisiana


·2· ·Bankers Association, and I have to tell you that I'm the


·3· ·longest serving commissioner, not the oldest, but the


·4· ·longest serving commissioner of the St. Landry Economic


·5· ·Development Council.· And I still serve on it, and it's


·6· ·been a great ride.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·I am the President and CEO of Washington


·8· ·State Bank, which is the second oldest bank chartered in


·9· ·Louisiana.· It was founded in 1893.· And I could name


10· ·all of my civic organizations, but I won't take up all


11· ·of your time, but it's a great ride and I'm just happy


12· ·to be on this Board.· Thank you very much.


13· · · · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:


14· · · · · · · · · · · · Good morning.· My name is Todd


15· ·McDonald, New Orleans native, and I am representing the


16· ·Louisiana Workforce Council.· I am chair of their


17· ·council.· And I also have a background in banking as


18· ·well.· I've been in banking for 14 years, and I'm very


19· ·happy to be here as well.· So looking forward to a


20· ·productive term.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Welcome both of you.· We look


23· ·forward to working with you.


24· · · · · · · · · ·Next on the agenda is the approval of


25· ·the minutes of last meeting.· I didn't realize that was
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·1· ·way back in August.· So could I have a motion --


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Chairman, that's why I wasn't paying


·4· ·attention during your finance meeting because I read


·5· ·through them.· So I move we adopt the minutes.


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·We have a motion and second to adopt the


10· ·minutes.


11· · · · · · · · · ·Do we have any comments, comments from


12· ·the public?· Any comments from the Board members?· Any


13· ·changes, additions or deletions?


14· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


15· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


16· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor?


17· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?


20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Next on the agenda is we have one


23· ·inhouse approval that was done since our last meeting


24· ·that stuff to give us a report on that.· That's Aerion


25· ·Rental Services.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· My name is Marissa Doin.


·3· ·We have one loan update for you today with Aerion Rental


·4· ·Services, LLC.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Aerion is as oil field service company.


·6· ·They were formed back in 2008.· So what they do is they


·7· ·provide equipment and labor to companies to help wash


·8· ·down the rigs after they're taken down.· They currently


·9· ·have 104 employees, and with this guaranty, they're


10· ·going to be creating six new jobs.


11· · · · · · · · · ·They've requested a $500,000 term loan


12· ·backed by equipment to help manage and pay down their


13· ·accounts payables.· The guarantees are going to be for


14· ·$375,000 for five years.· With their rising sales and


15· ·positive cash flow for 2017, Aerion is projected to grow


16· ·significantly, which is why staff recommended approval.


17· ·And this one was approved and closed in August by Rayne


18· ·State Bank.


19· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions?


20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions from the Board members?


23· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


24· · · · · · · · · ·There's in the oil and gas business?


25· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR REINE:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·You're talking about exceptional growth


·4· ·in their company in today's current oil and gas market?


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·The industry is bouncing back.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Do you need a motion, Mr. Chairman?


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


10· · · · · · · · · ·No.· Thank you.


11· · · · · · · · · ·Next is our Finance Committee report,


12· ·and, Susan, before you start, I want to commend you for


13· ·a great job you do as our chair of our Finance


14· ·Committee.· I applaud your great expertise and


15· ·professionalism in handling this committee and guiding


16· ·us through this.· Thanks a lot.


17· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you very much.


19· · · · · · · · · ·As the Board heard, the financial


20· ·statements were presented by Mr. Aaron Cooper, J. Aaron


21· ·Cooper, CPA, LLC.· He audited our financial statements.


22· ·And the supplemental information was explained by


23· ·Mr. Katsanis -- I'm still not going to get it right --


24· ·of Chaffe & Associates.


25· · · · · · · · · ·After hearing their information, the



http://www.torresreporting.com/





Page 9
·1· ·Finance Committee has passed a motion to recommend that


·2· ·the Board accept the financial statements as they stand.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.


·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·We have a motion and a second to approve


·9· ·the Finance Committee report.


10· · · · · · · · · ·Are there any comments, questions?· Any


11· ·opinions from the public?· Any comments from the public?


12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


13· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor.


15· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?


18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, Susan.


21· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Next on our agenda is election of


22· ·officers.· Our Chairman is not here this morning.· He


23· ·has a bad back.· He pulled his back, but so now to open


24· ·up the meeting to nominations for the chair of the


25· ·Board.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Well, since Mr. Roy's not here, I think


·3· ·I will nominate him.


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·We'll teach him to not show up.· We'll


·8· ·give him more work.


·9· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Is there a second?


13· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, second.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Any other nominations?


17· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


19· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor of appointing Mr. Roy as


20· ·our next chair.


21· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?


24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Next is vice-chair, and if you'd like,


·3· ·I'll be happy to leave in case you want to nominate


·4· ·someone else.


·5· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·You can stay here.· You're doing such an


·7· ·absolutely fantastic job this morning, I'll nominate you


·8· ·for vice-chair.


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Any other nominees?


13· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


14· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor.


16· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?


19· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


20· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.


22· · · · · · · · · ·And committee appointments.· Staff, you


23· ·want to give us that report?


24· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:


25· · · · · · · · · ·If you look in your packet, I think the
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·1· ·overall on Page 127, it begins on that page.· We have a


·2· ·handful of committees on Page 128.· I'm sorry.· 27, 28.


·3· ·We have a total of five different committees, and this


·4· ·is the way that the committees stood as of January of


·5· ·2017, so they have not changed.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·The Executive Committee is obviously


·7· ·made up of the chairman, the vice-chair, and then the --


·8· ·it's basically all of the chairmen of every single


·9· ·committee.· So that's pretty much a set one.· The other


10· ·four need to be appointed.· And underneath each one,


11· ·like the Screening Committee, we typically appoint five


12· ·positions.· We don't necessarily have to, but each


13· ·committee will require at least three members of that


14· ·committee to meet or the chair of that committee.· And


15· ·the interesting thing is that the vast majority of them


16· ·doesn't even have to have the chair of the committee to


17· ·meet as long as the chair is knowledgeable of the


18· ·meeting.


19· · · · · · · · · ·The Screening Committee is probably our


20· ·most widely used of the committees.· It holds meetings


21· ·in place of the Board for certain projects in the event


22· ·that the Board cannot have a quorum.· We've run into


23· ·that issue in the past due to weather delays and


24· ·scheduling conflicts and emergencies.· So the Screening


25· ·Committee will meet and review projects for the EDAP
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·1· ·program and the Small Business Loan Guaranty program


·2· ·when the full Board is not available.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·They can be appointed however you'd


·4· ·like.· If the Board -- I mean, I know our chair is not


·5· ·here, so I guess it would be up to the vice-chair to


·6· ·appoint or if anybody has an interest in being on any


·7· ·particular committee itself.· We have --


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·I'd like to ask our new members if they


10· ·have any interest or would like to volunteer for any of


11· ·these.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Chair, can I ask a question?


14· · · · · · · · · ·Under the Screening Committee, how is


15· ·that language developed?· Is it something we did or is


16· ·that mandated language?


17· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Yeah.· That was created years and years


19· ·ago when the Board was first formed.· It's changed a


20· ·little bit over the years, but it has been a while.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Well, it seems kind of confusing.· If


23· ·we're going to appoint five members, like couldn't we


24· ·just chang it to "The chairman's going to appoint five


25· ·members," instead of "shall consist of three members
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·1· ·including the vice-chairman and two additional members


·2· ·who may be appointed or alternatives."· If we appoint


·3· ·five members, why don't we just say the chairman's going


·4· ·to appoint five members?


·5· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·We can look into that.· I'll have to


·7· ·double check if it's in the statute or bylaws.  I


·8· ·believe if it's in the bylaws, I think the Board can


·9· ·just meet and decide on changing it.· If it's the


10· ·statute, that would be a whole different ball game.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


12· · · · · · · · · ·If there's a reason for it to read that


13· ·way, but it would be much clearer if we just say what


14· ·we're going to do and do what we say.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Layman's terms.· I agree.· Layman's


17· ·terms.


18· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Before our new board members comment,


20· ·one thing I'd like to point out about is that one of the


21· ·things that I was always told about the Screening


22· ·Committee is a lot of times trying to get people


23· ·together when it's hard to get a quorum.· And so, for


24· ·instance, I had always volunteered for it because I was


25· ·in Baton Rouge, you know, I worked 10 miles away, and I
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·1· ·could be here easily.· So that's something to consider


·2· ·for the Screening Committee.· It would require you


·3· ·trying to commit to being here if you were needed.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·And it is for that same reason, I'd like


·5· ·to take my name off the Screening Committee.· For those


·6· ·of you who have been here for a while, you know that


·7· ·basically I have put in my letter of resignation pending


·8· ·my move out of state.· I retired this year.


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Remove your name from what?


11· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


12· · · · · · · · · ·From the Screening Committee.· Yeah.


13· ·It's not very practical for me living in Florida to have


14· ·to come.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


16· · · · · · · · · ·You can move me to Florida.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Anyone else on the committee that does


19· ·not want to continue serving?


20· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Chairman?


22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


23· · · · · · · · · ·New members?


24· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Chairman, I'm going to suggest that
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·1· ·we wait till the next meeting and officially do that so


·2· ·that we can look at -- have Mr. Roy look at the new


·3· ·members and offer them opportunities because I don't see


·4· ·their names on any of these committees.


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·And that was my next question.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Well, this is how it is today where the


·9· ·Chairman is supposed to be here and he's aware it's that


10· ·time of year to reappoint them; correct?· Rather than


11· ·take any action today, I think we ought to allow the


12· ·opportunity for the chairman to consider the new members


13· ·and what would be their preference and that we just


14· ·defer appointing these committees till the next meeting.


15· ·I think the new members ought to have an opportunity to


16· ·participate, and they're not on this list.· So I


17· ·wouldn't want to adopt it as it is.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Does everybody agree?


20· · · · · · · ·MS. JOHNSON:


21· · · · · · · · · ·I had a question about availability.· Is


22· ·there a way to call in for the meetings as it's not


23· ·based on bylaws?· Okay.· So you have to be physically


24· ·present in Baton Rouge?


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·And I don't really recommend we start


·2· ·that.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·That's actually in a violation of the


·5· ·whole --


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·I sit on a board where they do that, and


·8· ·it's so cumbersome.· People tend not to come, and then


·9· ·you have an audience with just two board members to look


10· ·at it.· And I'll vote with the majority, but I don't


11· ·recommend it.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


13· · · · · · · · · ·And I'll oppose it.


14· · · · · · · · · ·Anyway, I move to defer the appointment


15· ·of committees to the next meeting.


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Is there a second?


18· · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


21· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor.


22· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?


25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Next we'll move to Treasurer's


·3· ·Report.


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·I'm having a computer malfunction.· My


·6· ·Secretary Treasurer's Report did not come over on the


·7· ·PDF, so if I could please get somebody else's -- okay.


·8· ·Thank you, Mr. Reine.· I appreciate that.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Before I start, Anne Villa,


10· ·Undersecretary for LED.· I think I met the two new Board


11· ·members.· I just wanted to point out to you-all, we have


12· ·our Director of Legal Operations, Tam Bourgeois, here


13· ·with us.· I don't think that she's been introduced to


14· ·the Board in the past.· Mr. Cangelosi is out ill, and I


15· ·just want to take a moment to introduce Tam to each of


16· ·you.· So Tam is here as our legal representative this


17· ·morning.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


19· · · · · · · · · ·So he has not retired?· I thought he


20· ·retired.· No?· Okay.


21· · · · · · · ·MS. TAM:


22· · · · · · · · · ·No.


23· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Starting with the LEDC Secretary


25· ·Treasurer's report, I have -- yes.· Okay.· So starting
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·1· ·on Page 1, we have our FY '18 budget for total of


·2· ·Financial Assistance of $190,000 with the Loan


·3· ·Assistance Program.· And then our State Small Business


·4· ·Credit Initiatives, as you can see, it's been


·5· ·strengthening because we've been using that fund.· We


·6· ·have a budget of $1,223,442.· And we have that project


·7· ·which we previously approved in August for 93,750, which


·8· ·leaves us with our balance of $1,319,692.· And we have a


·9· ·couple of projects that are under review right now.· Rex


10· ·Industrial and M&A Safety, which total $148,328, which


11· ·leaves us with a current projected yearend balance of


12· ·$1,171,364.


13· · · · · · · · · ·Regarding our EDAP program, we have an


14· ·FY '18 budget of $5,537,819, and we have projects that


15· ·have been approved by the Board of $1,103,179, which


16· ·leaves a balance of $4,434,640.· And we currently have


17· ·projects under review within the department of


18· ·$2,550,000.· And we have a projected yearend balance of


19· ·$1,884,640.· And that is what we're projecting to end


20· ·the year with.


21· · · · · · · · · ·If you go to our financial statements on


22· ·the next -- our Fund Balance on the next page, our


23· ·General Appropriation projected for FY '18 has a fund


24· ·balance available of $15,410,844 with expenditures


25· ·expected at $14,579,203 with a yearend projection --
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·1· ·that should read 6/30 of '18 -- of 831,641.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Questions?


·3· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Just to let you know, we did submit our


·6· ·budget request for FY '18, and we do have in our Capital


·7· ·Outlay budget request an additional $10-million for the


·8· ·EDAP fund.· As you all know, the initial budget was


·9· ·presented last week.· The Capital Outlay budget request


10· ·I think it was more HB1 and HB2.· I don't believe has


11· ·been presented yet, but in HB2's request, we actually


12· ·have our $10-million request for the EDAP fund, which we


13· ·use, for our new members, for infrastructure development


14· ·with projects.


15· · · · · · · · · ·And when I get to the President's Report


16· ·given in lieu of Mandi, since she's not here, there was


17· ·a project that was recently announced in the Fall that


18· ·was awarded the EDAP fund.· And so we should expect to


19· ·see them coming to the Board I would think pretty soon.


20· ·So I would save that for those announcement.


21· · · · · · · · · ·So if no questions, I'll turn it over to


22· ·Molly, who will give our Accountant's Report.


23· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


24· · · · · · · · · ·I do have a question.· I'm just trying


25· ·to figure out the appropriate time.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Does the Constitution provide the


·2· ·administration, as proposed in the '18-'19 budget, based


·3· ·on the estimation of revenue, where does DED's budget as


·4· ·a whole, and in particularly it affects us look like in


·5· ·the budget proposal compared to the present budget?


·6· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·It's not going to affect LEDC.· Where it


·8· ·does affect is LED's Regional Economic Development


·9· ·Organization known as LEDO.· We fund them $1,360,000


10· ·every year, and that's been removed from the budget in


11· ·order for it to be balanced.· It's obviously not one


12· ·that the Governor nor the Commission or the


13· ·Administration or the Secretary want to have removed


14· ·from our budget, but as it stands right now, to present


15· ·that balanced budget, we had to reduce that by


16· ·1,360,000.


17· · · · · · · · · ·In addition, every year, LED has


18· ·appropriated for, it's called a Rapid Response Fund,


19· ·which gives the authority to the Secretary and the


20· ·Governor to utilize those funds for projects and deploy


21· ·them, especially onces that are going to make an


22· ·immediate impact to the economy.· That fund, we


23· ·generally get an infusion of $10-million each year.


24· ·This year the infusion is was only going to be


25· ·$5-million.· That's in this initial budget, and so
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·1· ·that's kind of those two areas that we've been hit with.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Wasn't that Rapid Response Fund like


·4· ·number one in the nation?


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·You're talking about FastStart.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·So the Rapid Respond is not the


·9· ·FastStart?


10· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Rapid Response has discretionary funding


12· ·for business development.


13· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Do we have a motion to accept the


17· ·Treasurer's Report?


18· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


19· · · · · · · · · ·I so move.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions or any comments from the


24· ·public?


25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor.


·3· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?


·6· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Before we move from the Treasurer's


·9· ·Report, I brought this up I guess a couple of years ago


10· ·a concern I have that our activity is very low.· You


11· ·look here, and we haven't met since August, and, you


12· ·know, we had one project.· And when I brought it up, I


13· ·was given a report on what's in the pipeline.· And, in


14· ·fact, actually all of our Treasurer's Report gave us is


15· ·a specific indication of what's in the pipeline.  I


16· ·don't see very much this morning.


17· · · · · · · · · ·Could staff enlighten us on where we


18· ·are, what's in the pipeline, what can be expected?


19· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Well, this morning -- thank you for


21· ·bringing that up.· I was going to find a point to bring


22· ·you up-to-date.


23· · · · · · · · · ·The lack of projects that you see on the


24· ·Secretary Treasurer's Report is not indicative of the


25· ·activity that the staff has performed in order to try to
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·1· ·generate some marketing.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Then there should be something given to


·4· ·us monthly as to what it is.· We have no knowledge of


·5· ·what's in the pipeline, what to expect.· So if you can


·6· ·add just a one-pager, it will help us a lot.


·7· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Sure.· What we'll do is, what we have


·9· ·done as of yesterday, we finished our marketing tracking


10· ·chart to show what the marketing efforts have been by


11· ·the staff for last calendar, last fiscal -- calendar and


12· ·fiscal year.· It shows our participation with a lot of


13· ·the small business development centers, some of the


14· ·roundtable we've participated in, the one-on-one banking


15· ·meetings that we've had, all of those activities


16· ·concerned with our smalls business marketing efforts.


17· · · · · · · · · ·We did have their -- however, there


18· ·are -- there were several loans that were under review


19· ·that came to us that staff reviewed in our inhouse staff


20· ·level that did not come to fruition.· They were


21· ·reviewed.· Some of them came to the brink of review.· We


22· ·had to -- that may have been pulled by the bank for


23· ·reasons.· But starting next month, we'll give you that


24· ·monthly look at, "Okay.· This is what we did, but this


25· ·is what came out of those efforts."· And the marketing
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·1· ·takes place --


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·And will that include what's in the


·4· ·pipeline that you haven't done anything yet with?


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· Well, the Secretary Treasurer's


·7· ·Report is up to date of what's in the pipeline


·8· ·currently.· Well, except there's some that we don't


·9· ·categorize, but we can, because we are still trying to


10· ·work those loans to make sure they come to fruition, but


11· ·we can give you those possibles as well.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


13· · · · · · · · · ·I'm curious, the availability of SBA


14· ·loans and Restore loans, are those offset in some of the


15· ·activity that we might have seen otherwise because those


16· ·are available?


17· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Not necessarily.· In fact, I was --


19· ·right after the flood, the Restore Home and also the


20· ·entity within the state department that handles small


21· ·business loans, I was on the planning committee for


22· ·that, and you're just not seeing any movement on almost


23· ·either side.· There's a pile of money that Restore Home


24· ·still has -- Restore Louisiana still has that's


25· ·available for small businesses, and people are just not
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·1· ·coming forth to apply for them.· The SBA --


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·I understand that, but they're


·4· ·advertising that Restore loan at zero percent interest


·5· ·rate, that under certain conditions you wouldn't even


·6· ·have to pay back part of the loan.· It looks like if


·7· ·that was something they might have approached us with,


·8· ·that's a more attractive product than what we have, and


·9· ·I'm just wondering if that's --


10· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


11· · · · · · · · · ·It doesn't play a part because all of


12· ·our loans are -- those are loans that come directly from


13· ·the Restore Louisiana, which are basically direct loans.


14· ·What our challenge has been is getting the banking


15· ·community to get on board.· That's because we only do


16· ·loan guarantees, not direct loans.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Well, that's kind of what I was getting


19· ·at.· If I had the option of going to the bank and making


20· ·the loan or I qualified for the Restore loan, I wouldn't


21· ·be going to the bank because it's zero interest.  I


22· ·might be forgiven part of it.· I just...


23· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


24· · · · · · · · · ·We've not seen any indication, and I've


25· ·been in close contact with and talking with the people
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·1· ·upstairs, in fact, they're in this building, the


·2· ·Community Development, that it's not truly a factor of


·3· ·why we don't see any loans.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· So people are not borrowing money


·6· ·or do people borrow money and just don't need us to give


·7· ·a guaranty?


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·It's a combination of that and then


10· ·some.· The lending activity across the State, for the


11· ·most part, a lot of banks, if they're not using the SBA


12· ·program -- and I know we have a couple of bankers here


13· ·that could probably vouch for this as well.· If they're


14· ·not using the federal programs, they're doing a lot of


15· ·things.· If they are lending, they're probably lending


16· ·without guarantees.· So we're kind of running that fine


17· ·line in the middle where if it's a larger project, it's


18· ·more beneficial, in all honestly, for the banks to go to


19· ·the FEDs because they can do a longer term and they can


20· ·print more money if they need it, where we're working


21· ·with a limited basis.


22· · · · · · · · · ·We found our niche has been the riskier,


23· ·more smaller loans, which would be a straight line


24· ·credit or a cash loan that we can guaranty for two to


25· ·three years to turn our money over quicker, which can be
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·1· ·in combination with an SBA loan.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·So we're in a small piece of that pie in


·3· ·a very specific niche that our program fits into, and


·4· ·apparently that niche or that segment of market that


·5· ·we're looking at is not getting as many loans approved


·6· ·as had been in the past.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·As Brenda had pointed out, we've


·8· ·evaluated several loans over the last four or five


·9· ·months, and only one of those has come to fruition and


10· ·that was the one that Marissa updated us on earlier.


11· ·We've actually got three that we're looking at now, two


12· ·that were reported to you.· And the only time that those


13· ·loans get reported on that Secretary Treasurer's Report,


14· ·those are loans that we are confident in that have the


15· ·highest probability of closing.· And what I mean by that


16· ·is the banker is extremely committed to it or the bank


17· ·is committed to it by having a commitment letter


18· ·proposed to the borrower and signing our application.


19· ·So that means that they're serious.· That's the only


20· ·time we put that on the Secretary Treasurer's Report


21· ·because we've done it in the past where we've gone


22· ·through our processes and approved several loans and


23· ·then the loan never closes, so we have to go back and


24· ·readjust our books and it becomes an accounting


25· ·nightmare.· So we've changed our policy to only report
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·1· ·those that we have a high probability or a good chance


·2· ·of closing that we feel are going to be our best


·3· ·presentation.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·So the ones that you see are probably


·5· ·the two or three out of, you know, 15 that we actually


·6· ·review or discuss in some way, shape or form.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Getting back to your original question,


·8· ·our activity is probably very representative of just the


·9· ·overall lending environment itself.· I've actually been


10· ·in conversation with some of our allies across the state


11· ·here in the local area, BRAC, for example, we've been in


12· ·touch and they've asked the same questions because they


13· ·have a direct pulse on the lending community.· They talk


14· ·to their local bankers on a regular basis, and there's


15· ·no activity from their standpoint here in the Baton


16· ·Rouge area.


17· · · · · · · · · ·And the small businesses or the small


18· ·entrepreneurs are saying the same thing.· They're saying


19· ·that they can't get the loans or that the loans are not


20· ·going out, and the banks are saying that no one is


21· ·qualified to get the loans.· So we're seeing it from


22· ·both ends, but we have noticed that there has been a


23· ·tremendous downward turn in small business lending,


24· ·which is that little area of where we're trying to


25· ·operate.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·One of the things that we will show on


·3· ·the report for you for next month is the relationships


·4· ·that we're developing outside of the banking community.


·5· ·For example, we entered into a Memoranda of


·6· ·Understanding with the City of Minden.· They have what


·7· ·they call a Small business Institute, and the Small


·8· ·Business Institute has, they take a group of potential


·9· ·entrepreneurs, they go through a training process, and


10· ·once they have graduated, if you will, from the training


11· ·process, they are then deemed as eligible and ready to


12· ·possibly go and talk to a bank to have their business


13· ·funded.


14· · · · · · · · · ·I think the Small Business Institute


15· ·just got started late last year.· They're in the process


16· ·of graduating I think three to four businesses, and


17· ·they'll soon be ready to go to a lender to hopefully


18· ·qualify for a loan.· And this is one of the areas that


19· ·we're looking to into to do as kind of like, okay, we'll


20· ·get them and we have to take them to the bank, have


21· ·somebody pre-qualify them and to make sure that they can


22· ·be lender ready, if you will.


23· · · · · · · · · ·So those are -- we're having to think


24· ·outside of the box a little bit rather than just waiting


25· ·for the banking community to say yes.· But the
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·1· ·relationships that staff has developed over the last few


·2· ·years, we've got repeat bankers coming back to us, but


·3· ·we'll go more into that next month when you can see what


·4· ·that activity is and you'll have it in front of you.


·5· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·In addition to that, while we're


·7· ·discussing this, from our August meeting is where that


·8· ·the Board had made the big change that we've been


·9· ·requesting last year for a reduction in collateral


10· ·requirements for that Loan Guaranty Program.· Those are


11· ·set to go into effect next month.· DOA has put them out


12· ·there, they're going through their whole process and


13· ·public hearing piece and all of that good stuff.


14· ·They're scheduled, if I remember correctly, to go into


15· ·effect on the 20th of next month, and we've already got


16· ·mass publication of our marketing efforts.· But in


17· ·conversations with our banks that we deal with on a


18· ·regular basis, they're aware of those changes, and we're


19· ·already starting -- staff's already starting to review


20· ·applications that are hinging upon the execution of


21· ·those rule changes.· So I believe the two that are on


22· ·this list are two that are waiting for those rule


23· ·changes to go into effect.


24· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Plus the other side of that, too, is the
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·1· ·EDAP funding that we receive, you know, every year on


·2· ·that, and we do use that whenever we're working with our


·3· ·business development team as a tool in our toolbox for a


·4· ·potential discretionary incentive.· Unfortunately, we


·5· ·don't disclose those until those are actually announced


·6· ·projects that have had, you know, press releases.· So


·7· ·you don't really get to see the activity behind what's


·8· ·really going on until that actual press release goes


·9· ·into effect.· So I just wanted to bring that up to you.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.· I appreciate that.


12· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Moving on to the Account's


13· ·Report.


14· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· I'm Molly Hendricks, and


16· ·I am going over the Account Status Report as of December


17· ·31st, 2017.


18· · · · · · · · · ·The Direct Loans total 674,400.


19· ·Golfballs is our only direct loan, and they're making


20· ·interest only payments at this time.


21· · · · · · · · · ·The EDAP Loans total 424,080.· And the


22· ·Guaranty Loan, Depot Drilling, that was paid off during


23· ·the December.


24· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for Direct Loans is set at


25· ·15 percent for a total of 101,160.· The allowance for
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·1· ·EDAP Loan Losses is also at 15 percent, for a total of


·2· ·63,612.· And the allowance for Guaranty Losses is at


·3· ·zero because that was the one for Depot Drilling that


·4· ·was paid off.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Currently there are 18 SSBCI Guaranteed


·6· ·Loans for a total of $6,249,656.· One of the loans, LA


·7· ·Bayou Bites, is 60 to 90 days past due.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Then the allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed


·9· ·Loan Losses total $1,135,520.


10· · · · · · · · · ·And that concludes my report.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


12· · · · · · · · · ·What do y'all do with the loans 60 to 90


13· ·days past due?


14· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:


15· · · · · · · · · ·We monitor them like they're our


16· ·two-year-old child.· That particular one has been like


17· ·that for about the last 12 months, I would say, a solid


18· ·12 months.· They've been up and down between 30 and 60.


19· ·At one point, they were over 90.· We've been in constant


20· ·contact with the banker, and they are working with them


21· ·directly to get that loan brought up to speed.· The


22· ·problem that the company ran into is they had a contract


23· ·with a sole buyer, and that buyer closed up shop.· So


24· ·they were scrambling to find additional usage or


25· ·contracts for their product, which is alligator meat
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·1· ·that they were originally intending on processing the


·2· ·scraps for dog food, but they have since had to modify


·3· ·their business, so they are in flux at this time.· They


·4· ·are also extremely tight with their debt-to-income ratio


·5· ·that they're basically funding the thing out of their


·6· ·own pocket right now as an individual.· So they've had


·7· ·to actually liquidate I think a few other assets,


·8· ·because they have multiple businesses, to cover their


·9· ·expenses at this time.


10· · · · · · · · · ·So they are doing everything they can to


11· ·make the loan good.· The banker is giving them every


12· ·concession, but we've been in contact with them, but our


13· ·policy is we don't take any action on the loan.· We just


14· ·monitor it and stay in constant contact and assist


15· ·whenever we can to the best of our ability.· Until the


16· ·banker decides that the loan has gone long enough and


17· ·they need to call the loan and collect.


18· · · · · · · · · ·We were afraid they would do that back


19· ·in September, but they managed to bring it to where it


20· ·is today.· But they have to be at least 90 days before


21· ·the bank officially can call the loan.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Did the bank consider any restructuring


24· ·or anything like that or interest monthly payments?


25· · · · · · · ·MR. BARHAM:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·They're trying.· The bank pretty much


·2· ·owns everything that this -- I think it's a husband and


·3· ·wife, and they have a couple operations.· The bank


·4· ·pretty much has a hold on everything, so restructuring


·5· ·is going to be a little difficult, but the good thing is


·6· ·it's all with one solution.· So they're looking into


·7· ·every option at this point.


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. MCDONALD:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Any other comments or questions?


12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


13· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


14· · · · · · · · · ·I have one.· Ms. Hendricks?


15· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Yes?


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Back on Page 1, the Structural Plastics,


19· ·is that something that's real old or is that somebody


20· ·that just -- I forget.· Have they just started up and


21· ·just haven't done anything with that yet?


22· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:


23· · · · · · · · · ·The CSP loan, that was -- I'm not sure


24· ·how old that one is, but it's winding down, so...


25· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·That amount due is the 257.· So is that


·2· ·the balance actually?


·3· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·So that's an old one.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·I'm sorry?


·9· · · · · · · ·MS. HENDRICKS:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, 257.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


12· · · · · · · · · ·I thought that owner drove down that


13· ·interest.· Okay.· Thank you.


14· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public on this?


15· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in --


18· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


19· · · · · · · · · ·So move.


20· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments or questions?


24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor.


·2· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Any opposed?


·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Is there any other business to


·8· ·come before this Board before we adjourn?


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


10· · · · · · · · · ·We've got the President's Report.· She's


11· ·not here.


12· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


13· · · · · · · · · ·She's not here, so that's okay.


14· · · · · · · · · ·So since Ms. Mitchell isn't here today,


15· ·I went back, and it's been, like we mentioned, several


16· ·months since we last met, so there's been lots of


17· ·activities in LED during that time.· So I just wanted to


18· ·share some of these with you.


19· · · · · · · · · ·So I've kind of broken them out between


20· ·our ranks and our announcements and our programs that


21· ·we've had some really good movement on.


22· · · · · · · · · ·So in our ranking, back in the Fall,


23· ·Louisiana remains one of the most business friendly


24· ·states in the US ranking Number 5, and this is the


25· ·second consecutive year in a row that Area Development
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·1· ·Magazine's Annual Top States For Doing Business Survey


·2· ·ranked LED 7th, and this is the -- I'm sorry.· This is


·3· ·Number 5, but this represents the seventh consecutive


·4· ·year that LED has ranked in the nation's top 10 ranking.


·5· ·And the Number 5 ranking this year is the same that we


·6· ·had last year.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·So Area Development, and I think Louis


·8· ·alluded to this earlier, took note of LED FastStart,


·9· ·which is Louisiana's Customized Workforce Development


10· ·Program and is a substantial selling point for our


11· ·state, so that component is very important.· As we all


12· ·know, workforce development, having a skilled workforce


13· ·is very important.


14· · · · · · · · · ·Also, in October, Thumbtack awarded


15· ·Louisiana Graded A+ for 2017's Report Card on Small


16· ·Business Friendliness, ranking the State Number 4 in the


17· ·US for its Supportive Small Business Environment.


18· ·Louisiana earned an "A" in eight specific categories in


19· ·the State Small Business Climate, and a "B" in four


20· ·other categories.


21· · · · · · · · · ·And I mentioned earlier, getting to our


22· ·announcements, Champion Home Builders announced the


23· ·company planned a $1.3-million capital investment to


24· ·build manufactured homes in Leesville.· They operate 28


25· ·manufacturing facilities throughout the US, and they
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·1· ·occupy two buildings currently in Leesville in Northside


·2· ·Industrial Park.· And they're the ones who are going to


·3· ·create 200 jobs with an average salary of 35,000 plus


·4· ·benefits, and they're the ones who has the discretionary


·5· ·EDAP program awarded 500,000.· So I would suspect that


·6· ·we see them coming to Board relativity soon, so you'll


·7· ·get to meet that company at that time.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Also in the Fall, a very important


·9· ·project that we worked on in LED with the City of Hodge,


10· ·WestRock Company announced that the company's going to


11· ·make a number of improvements in their containerboard


12· ·paper mill in Hodge over the next five years.· They're


13· ·in a very competitive market, as you know, and they're


14· ·going to retain the 400 existing jobs.· The mill


15· ·improvements are going to include normal maintenance and


16· ·repairs to keep them competitive, and currently they


17· ·produce about 800,000 tons annually.


18· · · · · · · · · ·Just to kind of give you a little bit of


19· ·background, WestRock is the largest employer in Jackson


20· ·Parish, and they have an annual payroll of about


21· ·$28-million.· So the state really worked with them to


22· ·keep up their competitiveness in their company as well


23· ·as in their industry so that we can keep them here.


24· ·They've been here since 1928, and they're a major


25· ·economic driver for the Parish of Jackson and
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·1· ·surrounding areas and they obviously contribute several


·2· ·hundred million dollars in economic impact in that


·3· ·region.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·And then in November, the Governor,


·5· ·along with NASA's Marshall Space Flight Center Director,


·6· ·Todd May, announced significant growth that is occurring


·7· ·at the NASA's Michaud Assembly facility outside of New


·8· ·Orleans, and it's a pretty cool facility that they have


·9· ·there.· Their assembly, they have an assembling of the


10· ·NASA's Orion Crew Capsule and their launch system rocket


11· ·there.· And over the past year, Boeing has already


12· ·increased job count by 200 people, technical people,


13· ·there in that facility.· So they're continuing to grow


14· ·at the facility, and LED is working with the Nunez


15· ·Community College through FastStart is working with them


16· ·for aerospace-related career so that we can have skilled


17· ·workforce, you know, to continue that growth that we're


18· ·having there.


19· · · · · · · · · ·And then also in November, which you're


20· ·probably are all aware of the DXC Technology


21· ·announcement that occurred in New Orleans, which is


22· ·going to establish a 2,000 job digital transformation


23· ·center in the heart of New Orleans.· And this is


24· ·historically significant.· The project will create more


25· ·direct jobs at any one site than any prior economic
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·1· ·development deal in Louisiana.· So this was a huge win


·2· ·for the State, a huge win, you know, in that industry


·3· ·sector and a huge win for New Orleans.· So we're working


·4· ·with them.· They're hitting the ground running and


·5· ·actually doing job recruitment now.· And in the plans I


·6· ·believe is they're going to have 300 workers this first


·7· ·year, and then they'll ramp up to 2,000 over the next


·8· ·five years.· So 300 ITM Business Enterprise


·9· ·professionals this year, and then they'll ramp up to


10· ·2,000.


11· · · · · · · · · ·And, also, what's pretty unique about


12· ·this is the state is funding $25-million towards higher


13· ·education so that we can make sure that we have


14· ·graduates to support the efforts of this so that we can


15· ·make this is a successful project for the state.


16· · · · · · · · · ·And then also you may know through


17· ·legislation last year, LED's State Film Production Tax


18· ·Incentive, which began in 2002 and remains one of the


19· ·most leading destinations for motion picture production


20· ·in the world, is we went through some changes last year


21· ·during session that would allow us to create direct and


22· ·permanent Louisiana jobs in what's called a statement


23· ·and creat what's called a "qualified entertainment


24· ·company" during the legislation session.· And so it's


25· ·what's required that the Quality Jobs held by Louisiana
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·1· ·residents, which will be pay more than 45,000 annually,


·2· ·they're eligible for a 15 percent tax credit.· So we had


·3· ·our first project, which was announced in December by


·4· ·Deep South Studios, which is a design-build


·5· ·entertainment production complex in New Orleans.


·6· ·They're going to be the first to reap the benefits of


·7· ·that new program.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·And then in January, just last week,


·9· ·there was a Military Economic Impact study that was done


10· ·on the military impact in Louisiana, and just so that


11· ·you-all know, the military related spending in Louisiana


12· ·counts for 7.7-billion in annual economic output.· It's


13· ·a significant impact affecting every region of the state


14· ·based upon where your bases are located.· And they're


15· ·currently providing more than 77,000 jobs and they pay


16· ·almost $280-million in state and local taxes according


17· ·to the study.· The military counts for four percent of


18· ·Louisiana jobs.· So I just wanted to share that with


19· ·you-all so you can really see what impact the military


20· ·does have in our state.


21· · · · · · · · · ·And then rounding out, keeping with our


22· ·military, back in October, the Louisiana Veteran


23· ·Entrepreneurship Program was launched, and it began


24· ·coursework as the program's in-person boot camp.· We're


25· ·working with -- LED's working with the Veteran Affairs
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·1· ·Department to establish a program which will enable


·2· ·service members leaving the military to gain intensive


·3· ·training in this boot camp, and they're going to have


·4· ·ongoing counseling from small business resource


·5· ·partners.· And the goal is that they're going to, at


·6· ·least 30 percent of the participants would launch a


·7· ·business and collectively raise about $5-million in


·8· ·startup capital.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·And then also along the small business


10· ·line, we've had a lot of success in our CEO roundtables


11· ·for fast growing firms, and LED launched another round


12· ·of roundtables back in November in eight cities


13· ·throughout the state.· And each roundtable brings


14· ·together about 10 to 15 business owners of small and


15· ·emerging business and so they work together each year


16· ·and they share and learn from each other experiences of


17· ·their peers and that gives them an opportunity to get


18· ·kind of just-in-time answers to their pressing issues


19· ·that they may have and the kind of confined environment.


20· · · · · · · · · ·And then we also launched in January, we


21· ·launched for small construction companies the Louisiana


22· ·Contractors Accreditation Institute.· We had another


23· ·session of that that launched, so...


24· · · · · · · · · ·Those are things that have been going on


25· ·whenever we haven't been meeting.· And then hopefully
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·1· ·we'll continue to have these announcements throughout


·2· ·the year, and I'll provide or Mandi will provide those


·3· ·updates to you on an ongoing basis.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments?


·6· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·I do have a personal note.· I wanted to


·8· ·remind everybody, remember the EDAP loan from I guess


·9· ·last fiscal year to General Informatics?


10· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, on Highland.


12· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


13· · · · · · · · · ·They did facial recognition software for


14· ·law enforcement was their really big project, but in


15· ·general, they're just a high-tech firm with a lot of


16· ·software, a lot of jobs for young people, you know, who


17· ·are likely diversifying into high-tech stuff.· They've


18· ·been building their building office park at the corner


19· ·of Highland Road and Bluebonnet.· We watched it go up


20· ·every day this year.· It's a gorgeous building, has an


21· ·exciting look about it.· I think it's kind of a physical


22· ·manifestation of some of the improvements and


23· ·opportunities for young people to stay here and not go


24· ·to Houston or -- you know, it was an exciting project


25· ·when they brought it to us, and it's exciting to watch
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·1· ·it go up.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Yes, sir.· I just wanted to comment on


·4· ·when you look at the paper mill, I know those people who


·5· ·are going to end up working there live here, and so


·6· ·we've done something for actually our residents and our


·7· ·workers.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·I'm excited about the movie tax credit.


·9· ·It gives very enhanced benefit for hiring the people


10· ·that live here, and it also had a percentage increase to


11· ·make sure that the industry goes outside of New Orleans


12· ·where there's an additional incentive for filming


13· ·outside of the City of New Orleans.


14· · · · · · · · · ·I commend you on the Louisiana


15· ·Contractor so that we make available to these companies


16· ·that are coming the opportunity to use Louisiana


17· ·businesses and Louisiana people.· I think these are


18· ·great steps.· There's been great concern that a lot of


19· ·the projects that were considered economic development,


20· ·our people didn't get to participate, particularly in


21· ·the construction part of a lot of those big projects


22· ·where the state participates, forgoes revenue or gives


23· ·incentives and all of the work is done by people who


24· ·come here from someplace else, then they go back home.


25· ·So to see these projects where, in the whole picture,
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·1· ·the workers and the citizens in this state are, there's


·2· ·much encouragement for them to participate, I greatly


·3· ·appreciate that and commend you for it.


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Any other comments or questions?


·8· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Any other business to come before


11· ·the board?


12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


13· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to


15· ·adjourn.


16· · · · · · · ·MR. REINE:


17· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Second?


20· · · · · · · ·MS. THAM:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. ANDRE:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you very much.· Good meeting.


24· · · · · · · ·(Meeting adjourns at 10:49 a.m.)


25
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·1· ·REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:


·2· · · · · · · ·I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court


·3· ·Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the


·4· ·officer before whom this meeting for the Board of


·5· ·Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development


·6· ·Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was
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·8· ·prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal


·9· ·direction and supervision, and is a true and correct


10· ·transcript to the best of my ability and understanding;
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13· ·compliance with transcript format required by statute or
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17· ·1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   We call to order the January meeting of

 3   the LEDC Corporation Board.

 4                   Can we have a rollcall, please?

 5               MS. SORRELL:

 6                   A.J. Roy.

 7               (No response.)

 8               MS. SORRELL:

 9                   Alden Andre.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Here.

12               MS. SORRELL:

13                   Louis Reine.

14               MR. REINE:

15                   Here.

16               MS. SORRELL:

17                   Susan Tham.

18               MS. THAM:

19                   Here.

20               MS. SORRELL:

21                   Mandi Mitchell.

22               (No response.)

23               MS. SORRELL:

24                   Cal Simpson.

25               MR. SIMPSON:
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 1                   Here.

 2               MS. SORRELL:

 3                   Nitin Kamath.

 4               (No response.)

 5               MS. SORRELL:

 6                   Sue Durand.

 7               MS. DURAND:

 8                   Here.

 9               MS. SORRELL:

10                   Kimberly Johnson.

11               MS. JOHNSON:

12                   Here.

13               MS. SORRELL:

14                   Todd McDonald

15               MR. MCDONALD:

16                   Here.

17               MS. SORRELL:

18                   We have a quorum.

19               MR. ANDRE:

20                   As you can see, we have two new board

21   members this morning, and I'd like to ask each of them

22   one at a time to please introduce themselves and give us

23   a little bit about their background.  We'll start with

24   Sue Durand.

25               MS. DURAND:
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 1                   I'm honored to represent the Louisiana

 2   Bankers Association, and I have to tell you that I'm the

 3   longest serving commissioner, not the oldest, but the

 4   longest serving commissioner of the St. Landry Economic

 5   Development Council.  And I still serve on it, and it's

 6   been a great ride.

 7                   I am the President and CEO of Washington

 8   State Bank, which is the second oldest bank chartered in

 9   Louisiana.  It was founded in 1893.  And I could name

10   all of my civic organizations, but I won't take up all

11   of your time, but it's a great ride and I'm just happy

12   to be on this Board.  Thank you very much.

13                   MR. MCDONALD:

14                        Good morning.  My name is Todd

15   McDonald, New Orleans native, and I am representing the

16   Louisiana Workforce Council.  I am chair of their

17   council.  And I also have a background in banking as

18   well.  I've been in banking for 14 years, and I'm very

19   happy to be here as well.  So looking forward to a

20   productive term.

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Okay.  Welcome both of you.  We look

23   forward to working with you.

24                   Next on the agenda is the approval of

25   the minutes of last meeting.  I didn't realize that was
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 1   way back in August.  So could I have a motion --

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Mr. Chairman, that's why I wasn't paying

 4   attention during your finance meeting because I read

 5   through them.  So I move we adopt the minutes.

 6               MR. SIMPSON:

 7                   Second.

 8               MR. ANDRE:

 9                   We have a motion and second to adopt the

10   minutes.

11                   Do we have any comments, comments from

12   the public?  Any comments from the Board members?  Any

13   changes, additions or deletions?

14               (No response.)

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   All in favor?

17               (Several members respond "aye.")

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Any opposed?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Okay.  Next on the agenda is we have one

23   inhouse approval that was done since our last meeting

24   that stuff to give us a report on that.  That's Aerion

25   Rental Services.
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 1               MS. DOIN:

 2                   Good morning.  My name is Marissa Doin.

 3   We have one loan update for you today with Aerion Rental

 4   Services, LLC.

 5                   Aerion is as oil field service company.

 6   They were formed back in 2008.  So what they do is they

 7   provide equipment and labor to companies to help wash

 8   down the rigs after they're taken down.  They currently

 9   have 104 employees, and with this guaranty, they're

10   going to be creating six new jobs.

11                   They've requested a $500,000 term loan

12   backed by equipment to help manage and pay down their

13   accounts payables.  The guarantees are going to be for

14   $375,000 for five years.  With their rising sales and

15   positive cash flow for 2017, Aerion is projected to grow

16   significantly, which is why staff recommended approval.

17   And this one was approved and closed in August by Rayne

18   State Bank.

19                   Any questions?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ANDRE:

22                   Any questions from the Board members?

23               MR. REINE:

24                   There's in the oil and gas business?

25               MS. DOIN:
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 1                   Yes.

 2               MR REINE:

 3                   You're talking about exceptional growth

 4   in their company in today's current oil and gas market?

 5               MS. DOIN:

 6                   The industry is bouncing back.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   Do you need a motion, Mr. Chairman?

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   No.  Thank you.

11                   Next is our Finance Committee report,

12   and, Susan, before you start, I want to commend you for

13   a great job you do as our chair of our Finance

14   Committee.  I applaud your great expertise and

15   professionalism in handling this committee and guiding

16   us through this.  Thanks a lot.

17               MS. THAM:

18                   Thank you very much.

19                   As the Board heard, the financial

20   statements were presented by Mr. Aaron Cooper, J. Aaron

21   Cooper, CPA, LLC.  He audited our financial statements.

22   And the supplemental information was explained by

23   Mr. Katsanis -- I'm still not going to get it right --

24   of Chaffe & Associates.

25                   After hearing their information, the
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 1   Finance Committee has passed a motion to recommend that

 2   the Board accept the financial statements as they stand.

 3               MR. REINE:

 4                   So moved.

 5               MR. SIMPSON:

 6                   Second.

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   We have a motion and a second to approve

 9   the Finance Committee report.

10                   Are there any comments, questions?  Any

11   opinions from the public?  Any comments from the public?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   Hearing none, all in favor.

15               (Several members respond "aye.")

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Any opposed?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ANDRE:

20                   Thank you, Susan.

21                   Okay.  Next on our agenda is election of

22   officers.  Our Chairman is not here this morning.  He

23   has a bad back.  He pulled his back, but so now to open

24   up the meeting to nominations for the chair of the

25   Board.
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 1               MR. REINE:

 2                   Well, since Mr. Roy's not here, I think

 3   I will nominate him.

 4               MS. THAM:

 5                   Second.

 6               MR. REINE:

 7                   We'll teach him to not show up.  We'll

 8   give him more work.

 9               MS. THAM:

10                   Second.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   Is there a second?

13               MS. THAM:

14                   Yes, second.

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   Any other nominations?

17               (No response.)

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   All in favor of appointing Mr. Roy as

20   our next chair.

21               (Several members respond "aye.")

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any opposed?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   Thank you.

 2                   Next is vice-chair, and if you'd like,

 3   I'll be happy to leave in case you want to nominate

 4   someone else.

 5               MR. REINE:

 6                   You can stay here.  You're doing such an

 7   absolutely fantastic job this morning, I'll nominate you

 8   for vice-chair.

 9               MR. SIMPSON:

10                   Second.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   Any other nominees?

13               (No response.)

14               MR. ANDRE:

15                   Hearing none, all in favor.

16               (Several members respond "aye.")

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Any opposed?

19               (No response.)

20               MR. ANDRE:

21                   Okay.  Thank you.

22                   And committee appointments.  Staff, you

23   want to give us that report?

24               MR. BARHAM:

25                   If you look in your packet, I think the
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 1   overall on Page 127, it begins on that page.  We have a

 2   handful of committees on Page 128.  I'm sorry.  27, 28.

 3   We have a total of five different committees, and this

 4   is the way that the committees stood as of January of

 5   2017, so they have not changed.

 6                   The Executive Committee is obviously

 7   made up of the chairman, the vice-chair, and then the --

 8   it's basically all of the chairmen of every single

 9   committee.  So that's pretty much a set one.  The other

10   four need to be appointed.  And underneath each one,

11   like the Screening Committee, we typically appoint five

12   positions.  We don't necessarily have to, but each

13   committee will require at least three members of that

14   committee to meet or the chair of that committee.  And

15   the interesting thing is that the vast majority of them

16   doesn't even have to have the chair of the committee to

17   meet as long as the chair is knowledgeable of the

18   meeting.

19                   The Screening Committee is probably our

20   most widely used of the committees.  It holds meetings

21   in place of the Board for certain projects in the event

22   that the Board cannot have a quorum.  We've run into

23   that issue in the past due to weather delays and

24   scheduling conflicts and emergencies.  So the Screening

25   Committee will meet and review projects for the EDAP
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 1   program and the Small Business Loan Guaranty program

 2   when the full Board is not available.

 3                   They can be appointed however you'd

 4   like.  If the Board -- I mean, I know our chair is not

 5   here, so I guess it would be up to the vice-chair to

 6   appoint or if anybody has an interest in being on any

 7   particular committee itself.  We have --

 8               MR. ANDRE:

 9                   I'd like to ask our new members if they

10   have any interest or would like to volunteer for any of

11   these.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   Mr. Chair, can I ask a question?

14                   Under the Screening Committee, how is

15   that language developed?  Is it something we did or is

16   that mandated language?

17               MR. BARHAM:

18                   Yeah.  That was created years and years

19   ago when the Board was first formed.  It's changed a

20   little bit over the years, but it has been a while.

21               MR. REINE:

22                   Well, it seems kind of confusing.  If

23   we're going to appoint five members, like couldn't we

24   just chang it to "The chairman's going to appoint five

25   members," instead of "shall consist of three members
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 1   including the vice-chairman and two additional members

 2   who may be appointed or alternatives."  If we appoint

 3   five members, why don't we just say the chairman's going

 4   to appoint five members?

 5               MR. BARHAM:

 6                   We can look into that.  I'll have to

 7   double check if it's in the statute or bylaws.  I

 8   believe if it's in the bylaws, I think the Board can

 9   just meet and decide on changing it.  If it's the

10   statute, that would be a whole different ball game.

11               MR. REINE:

12                   If there's a reason for it to read that

13   way, but it would be much clearer if we just say what

14   we're going to do and do what we say.

15               MR. BARHAM:

16                   Layman's terms.  I agree.  Layman's

17   terms.

18               MS. THAM:

19                   Before our new board members comment,

20   one thing I'd like to point out about is that one of the

21   things that I was always told about the Screening

22   Committee is a lot of times trying to get people

23   together when it's hard to get a quorum.  And so, for

24   instance, I had always volunteered for it because I was

25   in Baton Rouge, you know, I worked 10 miles away, and I
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 1   could be here easily.  So that's something to consider

 2   for the Screening Committee.  It would require you

 3   trying to commit to being here if you were needed.

 4                   And it is for that same reason, I'd like

 5   to take my name off the Screening Committee.  For those

 6   of you who have been here for a while, you know that

 7   basically I have put in my letter of resignation pending

 8   my move out of state.  I retired this year.

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   Remove your name from what?

11               MS. THAM:

12                   From the Screening Committee.  Yeah.

13   It's not very practical for me living in Florida to have

14   to come.

15               MR. REINE:

16                   You can move me to Florida.

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Anyone else on the committee that does

19   not want to continue serving?

20               MR. REINE:

21                   Mr. Chairman?

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   New members?

24               MR. REINE:

25                   Mr. Chairman, I'm going to suggest that
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 1   we wait till the next meeting and officially do that so

 2   that we can look at -- have Mr. Roy look at the new

 3   members and offer them opportunities because I don't see

 4   their names on any of these committees.

 5               MS. THAM:

 6                   And that was my next question.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   Well, this is how it is today where the

 9   Chairman is supposed to be here and he's aware it's that

10   time of year to reappoint them; correct?  Rather than

11   take any action today, I think we ought to allow the

12   opportunity for the chairman to consider the new members

13   and what would be their preference and that we just

14   defer appointing these committees till the next meeting.

15   I think the new members ought to have an opportunity to

16   participate, and they're not on this list.  So I

17   wouldn't want to adopt it as it is.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Does everybody agree?

20               MS. JOHNSON:

21                   I had a question about availability.  Is

22   there a way to call in for the meetings as it's not

23   based on bylaws?  Okay.  So you have to be physically

24   present in Baton Rouge?

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   And I don't really recommend we start

 2   that.

 3               MR. REINE:

 4                   That's actually in a violation of the

 5   whole --

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   I sit on a board where they do that, and

 8   it's so cumbersome.  People tend not to come, and then

 9   you have an audience with just two board members to look

10   at it.  And I'll vote with the majority, but I don't

11   recommend it.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   And I'll oppose it.

14                   Anyway, I move to defer the appointment

15   of committees to the next meeting.

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Is there a second?

18               MR. MCDONALD:

19                   Second.

20               MR. ANDRE:

21                   All in favor.

22               (Several members respond "aye.")

23               MR. ANDRE:

24                   Any opposed?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   Okay.  Next we'll move to Treasurer's

 3   Report.

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   I'm having a computer malfunction.  My

 6   Secretary Treasurer's Report did not come over on the

 7   PDF, so if I could please get somebody else's -- okay.

 8   Thank you, Mr. Reine.  I appreciate that.

 9                   Before I start, Anne Villa,

10   Undersecretary for LED.  I think I met the two new Board

11   members.  I just wanted to point out to you-all, we have

12   our Director of Legal Operations, Tam Bourgeois, here

13   with us.  I don't think that she's been introduced to

14   the Board in the past.  Mr. Cangelosi is out ill, and I

15   just want to take a moment to introduce Tam to each of

16   you.  So Tam is here as our legal representative this

17   morning.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   So he has not retired?  I thought he

20   retired.  No?  Okay.

21               MS. TAM:

22                   No.

23               MS. VILLA:

24                   Starting with the LEDC Secretary

25   Treasurer's report, I have -- yes.  Okay.  So starting
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 1   on Page 1, we have our FY '18 budget for total of

 2   Financial Assistance of $190,000 with the Loan

 3   Assistance Program.  And then our State Small Business

 4   Credit Initiatives, as you can see, it's been

 5   strengthening because we've been using that fund.  We

 6   have a budget of $1,223,442.  And we have that project

 7   which we previously approved in August for 93,750, which

 8   leaves us with our balance of $1,319,692.  And we have a

 9   couple of projects that are under review right now.  Rex

10   Industrial and M&A Safety, which total $148,328, which

11   leaves us with a current projected yearend balance of

12   $1,171,364.

13                   Regarding our EDAP program, we have an

14   FY '18 budget of $5,537,819, and we have projects that

15   have been approved by the Board of $1,103,179, which

16   leaves a balance of $4,434,640.  And we currently have

17   projects under review within the department of

18   $2,550,000.  And we have a projected yearend balance of

19   $1,884,640.  And that is what we're projecting to end

20   the year with.

21                   If you go to our financial statements on

22   the next -- our Fund Balance on the next page, our

23   General Appropriation projected for FY '18 has a fund

24   balance available of $15,410,844 with expenditures

25   expected at $14,579,203 with a yearend projection --
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 1   that should read 6/30 of '18 -- of 831,641.

 2                   Questions?

 3               (No response.)

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   Just to let you know, we did submit our

 6   budget request for FY '18, and we do have in our Capital

 7   Outlay budget request an additional $10-million for the

 8   EDAP fund.  As you all know, the initial budget was

 9   presented last week.  The Capital Outlay budget request

10   I think it was more HB1 and HB2.  I don't believe has

11   been presented yet, but in HB2's request, we actually

12   have our $10-million request for the EDAP fund, which we

13   use, for our new members, for infrastructure development

14   with projects.

15                   And when I get to the President's Report

16   given in lieu of Mandi, since she's not here, there was

17   a project that was recently announced in the Fall that

18   was awarded the EDAP fund.  And so we should expect to

19   see them coming to the Board I would think pretty soon.

20   So I would save that for those announcement.

21                   So if no questions, I'll turn it over to

22   Molly, who will give our Accountant's Report.

23               MR. REINE:

24                   I do have a question.  I'm just trying

25   to figure out the appropriate time.
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 1                   Does the Constitution provide the

 2   administration, as proposed in the '18-'19 budget, based

 3   on the estimation of revenue, where does DED's budget as

 4   a whole, and in particularly it affects us look like in

 5   the budget proposal compared to the present budget?

 6               MS. VILLA:

 7                   It's not going to affect LEDC.  Where it

 8   does affect is LED's Regional Economic Development

 9   Organization known as LEDO.  We fund them $1,360,000

10   every year, and that's been removed from the budget in

11   order for it to be balanced.  It's obviously not one

12   that the Governor nor the Commission or the

13   Administration or the Secretary want to have removed

14   from our budget, but as it stands right now, to present

15   that balanced budget, we had to reduce that by

16   1,360,000.

17                   In addition, every year, LED has

18   appropriated for, it's called a Rapid Response Fund,

19   which gives the authority to the Secretary and the

20   Governor to utilize those funds for projects and deploy

21   them, especially onces that are going to make an

22   immediate impact to the economy.  That fund, we

23   generally get an infusion of $10-million each year.

24   This year the infusion is was only going to be

25   $5-million.  That's in this initial budget, and so
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 1   that's kind of those two areas that we've been hit with.

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Wasn't that Rapid Response Fund like

 4   number one in the nation?

 5               MS. VILLA:

 6                   You're talking about FastStart.

 7               MR. REINE:

 8                   So the Rapid Respond is not the

 9   FastStart?

10               MS. VILLA:

11                   Rapid Response has discretionary funding

12   for business development.

13               MR. REINE:

14                   Okay.  Thank you.

15               MR. ANDRE:

16                   Do we have a motion to accept the

17   Treasurer's Report?

18               MS. THAM:

19                   I so move.

20               MR. REINE:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any questions or any comments from the

24   public?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ANDRE:

 2                   Hearing none, all in favor.

 3               (Several members respond "aye.")

 4               MR. ANDRE:

 5                   Any opposed?

 6               (No response.)

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   Before we move from the Treasurer's

 9   Report, I brought this up I guess a couple of years ago

10   a concern I have that our activity is very low.  You

11   look here, and we haven't met since August, and, you

12   know, we had one project.  And when I brought it up, I

13   was given a report on what's in the pipeline.  And, in

14   fact, actually all of our Treasurer's Report gave us is

15   a specific indication of what's in the pipeline.  I

16   don't see very much this morning.

17                   Could staff enlighten us on where we

18   are, what's in the pipeline, what can be expected?

19               MS. GUESS:

20                   Well, this morning -- thank you for

21   bringing that up.  I was going to find a point to bring

22   you up-to-date.

23                   The lack of projects that you see on the

24   Secretary Treasurer's Report is not indicative of the

25   activity that the staff has performed in order to try to
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 1   generate some marketing.

 2               MR. ANDRE:

 3                   Then there should be something given to

 4   us monthly as to what it is.  We have no knowledge of

 5   what's in the pipeline, what to expect.  So if you can

 6   add just a one-pager, it will help us a lot.

 7               MS. GUESS:

 8                   Sure.  What we'll do is, what we have

 9   done as of yesterday, we finished our marketing tracking

10   chart to show what the marketing efforts have been by

11   the staff for last calendar, last fiscal -- calendar and

12   fiscal year.  It shows our participation with a lot of

13   the small business development centers, some of the

14   roundtable we've participated in, the one-on-one banking

15   meetings that we've had, all of those activities

16   concerned with our smalls business marketing efforts.

17                   We did have their -- however, there

18   are -- there were several loans that were under review

19   that came to us that staff reviewed in our inhouse staff

20   level that did not come to fruition.  They were

21   reviewed.  Some of them came to the brink of review.  We

22   had to -- that may have been pulled by the bank for

23   reasons.  But starting next month, we'll give you that

24   monthly look at, "Okay.  This is what we did, but this

25   is what came out of those efforts."  And the marketing

0025

 1   takes place --

 2               MR. ANDRE:

 3                   And will that include what's in the

 4   pipeline that you haven't done anything yet with?

 5               MS. GUESS:

 6                   Yes.  Well, the Secretary Treasurer's

 7   Report is up to date of what's in the pipeline

 8   currently.  Well, except there's some that we don't

 9   categorize, but we can, because we are still trying to

10   work those loans to make sure they come to fruition, but

11   we can give you those possibles as well.

12               MR. REINE:

13                   I'm curious, the availability of SBA

14   loans and Restore loans, are those offset in some of the

15   activity that we might have seen otherwise because those

16   are available?

17               MS. GUESS:

18                   Not necessarily.  In fact, I was --

19   right after the flood, the Restore Home and also the

20   entity within the state department that handles small

21   business loans, I was on the planning committee for

22   that, and you're just not seeing any movement on almost

23   either side.  There's a pile of money that Restore Home

24   still has -- Restore Louisiana still has that's

25   available for small businesses, and people are just not
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 1   coming forth to apply for them.  The SBA --

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   I understand that, but they're

 4   advertising that Restore loan at zero percent interest

 5   rate, that under certain conditions you wouldn't even

 6   have to pay back part of the loan.  It looks like if

 7   that was something they might have approached us with,

 8   that's a more attractive product than what we have, and

 9   I'm just wondering if that's --

10               MS. GUESS:

11                   It doesn't play a part because all of

12   our loans are -- those are loans that come directly from

13   the Restore Louisiana, which are basically direct loans.

14   What our challenge has been is getting the banking

15   community to get on board.  That's because we only do

16   loan guarantees, not direct loans.

17               MR. REINE:

18                   Well, that's kind of what I was getting

19   at.  If I had the option of going to the bank and making

20   the loan or I qualified for the Restore loan, I wouldn't

21   be going to the bank because it's zero interest.  I

22   might be forgiven part of it.  I just...

23               MS. GUESS:

24                   We've not seen any indication, and I've

25   been in close contact with and talking with the people
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 1   upstairs, in fact, they're in this building, the

 2   Community Development, that it's not truly a factor of

 3   why we don't see any loans.

 4               MR. REINE:

 5                   Okay.  So people are not borrowing money

 6   or do people borrow money and just don't need us to give

 7   a guaranty?

 8               MR. BARHAM:

 9                   It's a combination of that and then

10   some.  The lending activity across the State, for the

11   most part, a lot of banks, if they're not using the SBA

12   program -- and I know we have a couple of bankers here

13   that could probably vouch for this as well.  If they're

14   not using the federal programs, they're doing a lot of

15   things.  If they are lending, they're probably lending

16   without guarantees.  So we're kind of running that fine

17   line in the middle where if it's a larger project, it's

18   more beneficial, in all honestly, for the banks to go to

19   the FEDs because they can do a longer term and they can

20   print more money if they need it, where we're working

21   with a limited basis.

22                   We found our niche has been the riskier,

23   more smaller loans, which would be a straight line

24   credit or a cash loan that we can guaranty for two to

25   three years to turn our money over quicker, which can be
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 1   in combination with an SBA loan.

 2                   So we're in a small piece of that pie in

 3   a very specific niche that our program fits into, and

 4   apparently that niche or that segment of market that

 5   we're looking at is not getting as many loans approved

 6   as had been in the past.

 7                   As Brenda had pointed out, we've

 8   evaluated several loans over the last four or five

 9   months, and only one of those has come to fruition and

10   that was the one that Marissa updated us on earlier.

11   We've actually got three that we're looking at now, two

12   that were reported to you.  And the only time that those

13   loans get reported on that Secretary Treasurer's Report,

14   those are loans that we are confident in that have the

15   highest probability of closing.  And what I mean by that

16   is the banker is extremely committed to it or the bank

17   is committed to it by having a commitment letter

18   proposed to the borrower and signing our application.

19   So that means that they're serious.  That's the only

20   time we put that on the Secretary Treasurer's Report

21   because we've done it in the past where we've gone

22   through our processes and approved several loans and

23   then the loan never closes, so we have to go back and

24   readjust our books and it becomes an accounting

25   nightmare.  So we've changed our policy to only report
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 1   those that we have a high probability or a good chance

 2   of closing that we feel are going to be our best

 3   presentation.

 4                   So the ones that you see are probably

 5   the two or three out of, you know, 15 that we actually

 6   review or discuss in some way, shape or form.

 7                   Getting back to your original question,

 8   our activity is probably very representative of just the

 9   overall lending environment itself.  I've actually been

10   in conversation with some of our allies across the state

11   here in the local area, BRAC, for example, we've been in

12   touch and they've asked the same questions because they

13   have a direct pulse on the lending community.  They talk

14   to their local bankers on a regular basis, and there's

15   no activity from their standpoint here in the Baton

16   Rouge area.

17                   And the small businesses or the small

18   entrepreneurs are saying the same thing.  They're saying

19   that they can't get the loans or that the loans are not

20   going out, and the banks are saying that no one is

21   qualified to get the loans.  So we're seeing it from

22   both ends, but we have noticed that there has been a

23   tremendous downward turn in small business lending,

24   which is that little area of where we're trying to

25   operate.
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 1               MS. GUESS:

 2                   One of the things that we will show on

 3   the report for you for next month is the relationships

 4   that we're developing outside of the banking community.

 5   For example, we entered into a Memoranda of

 6   Understanding with the City of Minden.  They have what

 7   they call a Small business Institute, and the Small

 8   Business Institute has, they take a group of potential

 9   entrepreneurs, they go through a training process, and

10   once they have graduated, if you will, from the training

11   process, they are then deemed as eligible and ready to

12   possibly go and talk to a bank to have their business

13   funded.

14                   I think the Small Business Institute

15   just got started late last year.  They're in the process

16   of graduating I think three to four businesses, and

17   they'll soon be ready to go to a lender to hopefully

18   qualify for a loan.  And this is one of the areas that

19   we're looking to into to do as kind of like, okay, we'll

20   get them and we have to take them to the bank, have

21   somebody pre-qualify them and to make sure that they can

22   be lender ready, if you will.

23                   So those are -- we're having to think

24   outside of the box a little bit rather than just waiting

25   for the banking community to say yes.  But the
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 1   relationships that staff has developed over the last few

 2   years, we've got repeat bankers coming back to us, but

 3   we'll go more into that next month when you can see what

 4   that activity is and you'll have it in front of you.

 5               MR. BARHAM:

 6                   In addition to that, while we're

 7   discussing this, from our August meeting is where that

 8   the Board had made the big change that we've been

 9   requesting last year for a reduction in collateral

10   requirements for that Loan Guaranty Program.  Those are

11   set to go into effect next month.  DOA has put them out

12   there, they're going through their whole process and

13   public hearing piece and all of that good stuff.

14   They're scheduled, if I remember correctly, to go into

15   effect on the 20th of next month, and we've already got

16   mass publication of our marketing efforts.  But in

17   conversations with our banks that we deal with on a

18   regular basis, they're aware of those changes, and we're

19   already starting -- staff's already starting to review

20   applications that are hinging upon the execution of

21   those rule changes.  So I believe the two that are on

22   this list are two that are waiting for those rule

23   changes to go into effect.

24               MS. VILLA:

25                   Plus the other side of that, too, is the
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 1   EDAP funding that we receive, you know, every year on

 2   that, and we do use that whenever we're working with our

 3   business development team as a tool in our toolbox for a

 4   potential discretionary incentive.  Unfortunately, we

 5   don't disclose those until those are actually announced

 6   projects that have had, you know, press releases.  So

 7   you don't really get to see the activity behind what's

 8   really going on until that actual press release goes

 9   into effect.  So I just wanted to bring that up to you.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Okay.  Thank you.  I appreciate that.

12                   Okay.  Moving on to the Account's

13   Report.

14               MS. HENDRICKS:

15                   Good morning.  I'm Molly Hendricks, and

16   I am going over the Account Status Report as of December

17   31st, 2017.

18                   The Direct Loans total 674,400.

19   Golfballs is our only direct loan, and they're making

20   interest only payments at this time.

21                   The EDAP Loans total 424,080.  And the

22   Guaranty Loan, Depot Drilling, that was paid off during

23   the December.

24                   The allowance for Direct Loans is set at

25   15 percent for a total of 101,160.  The allowance for
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 1   EDAP Loan Losses is also at 15 percent, for a total of

 2   63,612.  And the allowance for Guaranty Losses is at

 3   zero because that was the one for Depot Drilling that

 4   was paid off.

 5                   Currently there are 18 SSBCI Guaranteed

 6   Loans for a total of $6,249,656.  One of the loans, LA

 7   Bayou Bites, is 60 to 90 days past due.

 8                   Then the allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed

 9   Loan Losses total $1,135,520.

10                   And that concludes my report.

11               MR. REINE:

12                   What do y'all do with the loans 60 to 90

13   days past due?

14               MR. BARHAM:

15                   We monitor them like they're our

16   two-year-old child.  That particular one has been like

17   that for about the last 12 months, I would say, a solid

18   12 months.  They've been up and down between 30 and 60.

19   At one point, they were over 90.  We've been in constant

20   contact with the banker, and they are working with them

21   directly to get that loan brought up to speed.  The

22   problem that the company ran into is they had a contract

23   with a sole buyer, and that buyer closed up shop.  So

24   they were scrambling to find additional usage or

25   contracts for their product, which is alligator meat
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 1   that they were originally intending on processing the

 2   scraps for dog food, but they have since had to modify

 3   their business, so they are in flux at this time.  They

 4   are also extremely tight with their debt-to-income ratio

 5   that they're basically funding the thing out of their

 6   own pocket right now as an individual.  So they've had

 7   to actually liquidate I think a few other assets,

 8   because they have multiple businesses, to cover their

 9   expenses at this time.

10                   So they are doing everything they can to

11   make the loan good.  The banker is giving them every

12   concession, but we've been in contact with them, but our

13   policy is we don't take any action on the loan.  We just

14   monitor it and stay in constant contact and assist

15   whenever we can to the best of our ability.  Until the

16   banker decides that the loan has gone long enough and

17   they need to call the loan and collect.

18                   We were afraid they would do that back

19   in September, but they managed to bring it to where it

20   is today.  But they have to be at least 90 days before

21   the bank officially can call the loan.

22               MR. MCDONALD:

23                   Did the bank consider any restructuring

24   or anything like that or interest monthly payments?

25               MR. BARHAM:
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 1                   They're trying.  The bank pretty much

 2   owns everything that this -- I think it's a husband and

 3   wife, and they have a couple operations.  The bank

 4   pretty much has a hold on everything, so restructuring

 5   is going to be a little difficult, but the good thing is

 6   it's all with one solution.  So they're looking into

 7   every option at this point.

 8               MR. MCDONALD:

 9                   Thank you.

10               MR. ANDRE:

11                   Any other comments or questions?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   I have one.  Ms. Hendricks?

15               MS. HENDRICKS:

16                   Yes?

17               MR. ANDRE:

18                   Back on Page 1, the Structural Plastics,

19   is that something that's real old or is that somebody

20   that just -- I forget.  Have they just started up and

21   just haven't done anything with that yet?

22               MS. HENDRICKS:

23                   The CSP loan, that was -- I'm not sure

24   how old that one is, but it's winding down, so...

25               MS. VILLA:
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 1                   That amount due is the 257.  So is that

 2   the balance actually?

 3               MS. HENDRICKS:

 4                   Yes.

 5               MS. VILLA:

 6                   So that's an old one.

 7               MR. ANDRE:

 8                   I'm sorry?

 9               MS. HENDRICKS:

10                   Yes, 257.

11               MR. ANDRE:

12                   I thought that owner drove down that

13   interest.  Okay.  Thank you.

14                   Any comments from the public on this?

15               (No response.)

16               MR. ANDRE:

17                   Hearing none, all in --

18               MR. REINE:

19                   So move.

20               MS. THAM:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Any comments or questions?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ANDRE:
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 1                   All in favor.

 2               (Several members respond "aye.")

 3               MR. ANDRE:

 4                   Any opposed?

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   Okay.  Is there any other business to

 8   come before this Board before we adjourn?

 9               MR. REINE:

10                   We've got the President's Report.  She's

11   not here.

12               MS. VILLA:

13                   She's not here, so that's okay.

14                   So since Ms. Mitchell isn't here today,

15   I went back, and it's been, like we mentioned, several

16   months since we last met, so there's been lots of

17   activities in LED during that time.  So I just wanted to

18   share some of these with you.

19                   So I've kind of broken them out between

20   our ranks and our announcements and our programs that

21   we've had some really good movement on.

22                   So in our ranking, back in the Fall,

23   Louisiana remains one of the most business friendly

24   states in the US ranking Number 5, and this is the

25   second consecutive year in a row that Area Development
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 1   Magazine's Annual Top States For Doing Business Survey

 2   ranked LED 7th, and this is the -- I'm sorry.  This is

 3   Number 5, but this represents the seventh consecutive

 4   year that LED has ranked in the nation's top 10 ranking.

 5   And the Number 5 ranking this year is the same that we

 6   had last year.

 7                   So Area Development, and I think Louis

 8   alluded to this earlier, took note of LED FastStart,

 9   which is Louisiana's Customized Workforce Development

10   Program and is a substantial selling point for our

11   state, so that component is very important.  As we all

12   know, workforce development, having a skilled workforce

13   is very important.

14                   Also, in October, Thumbtack awarded

15   Louisiana Graded A+ for 2017's Report Card on Small

16   Business Friendliness, ranking the State Number 4 in the

17   US for its Supportive Small Business Environment.

18   Louisiana earned an "A" in eight specific categories in

19   the State Small Business Climate, and a "B" in four

20   other categories.

21                   And I mentioned earlier, getting to our

22   announcements, Champion Home Builders announced the

23   company planned a $1.3-million capital investment to

24   build manufactured homes in Leesville.  They operate 28

25   manufacturing facilities throughout the US, and they
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 1   occupy two buildings currently in Leesville in Northside

 2   Industrial Park.  And they're the ones who are going to

 3   create 200 jobs with an average salary of 35,000 plus

 4   benefits, and they're the ones who has the discretionary

 5   EDAP program awarded 500,000.  So I would suspect that

 6   we see them coming to Board relativity soon, so you'll

 7   get to meet that company at that time.

 8                   Also in the Fall, a very important

 9   project that we worked on in LED with the City of Hodge,

10   WestRock Company announced that the company's going to

11   make a number of improvements in their containerboard

12   paper mill in Hodge over the next five years.  They're

13   in a very competitive market, as you know, and they're

14   going to retain the 400 existing jobs.  The mill

15   improvements are going to include normal maintenance and

16   repairs to keep them competitive, and currently they

17   produce about 800,000 tons annually.

18                   Just to kind of give you a little bit of

19   background, WestRock is the largest employer in Jackson

20   Parish, and they have an annual payroll of about

21   $28-million.  So the state really worked with them to

22   keep up their competitiveness in their company as well

23   as in their industry so that we can keep them here.

24   They've been here since 1928, and they're a major

25   economic driver for the Parish of Jackson and

0040

 1   surrounding areas and they obviously contribute several

 2   hundred million dollars in economic impact in that

 3   region.

 4                   And then in November, the Governor,

 5   along with NASA's Marshall Space Flight Center Director,

 6   Todd May, announced significant growth that is occurring

 7   at the NASA's Michaud Assembly facility outside of New

 8   Orleans, and it's a pretty cool facility that they have

 9   there.  Their assembly, they have an assembling of the

10   NASA's Orion Crew Capsule and their launch system rocket

11   there.  And over the past year, Boeing has already

12   increased job count by 200 people, technical people,

13   there in that facility.  So they're continuing to grow

14   at the facility, and LED is working with the Nunez

15   Community College through FastStart is working with them

16   for aerospace-related career so that we can have skilled

17   workforce, you know, to continue that growth that we're

18   having there.

19                   And then also in November, which you're

20   probably are all aware of the DXC Technology

21   announcement that occurred in New Orleans, which is

22   going to establish a 2,000 job digital transformation

23   center in the heart of New Orleans.  And this is

24   historically significant.  The project will create more

25   direct jobs at any one site than any prior economic
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 1   development deal in Louisiana.  So this was a huge win

 2   for the State, a huge win, you know, in that industry

 3   sector and a huge win for New Orleans.  So we're working

 4   with them.  They're hitting the ground running and

 5   actually doing job recruitment now.  And in the plans I

 6   believe is they're going to have 300 workers this first

 7   year, and then they'll ramp up to 2,000 over the next

 8   five years.  So 300 ITM Business Enterprise

 9   professionals this year, and then they'll ramp up to

10   2,000.

11                   And, also, what's pretty unique about

12   this is the state is funding $25-million towards higher

13   education so that we can make sure that we have

14   graduates to support the efforts of this so that we can

15   make this is a successful project for the state.

16                   And then also you may know through

17   legislation last year, LED's State Film Production Tax

18   Incentive, which began in 2002 and remains one of the

19   most leading destinations for motion picture production

20   in the world, is we went through some changes last year

21   during session that would allow us to create direct and

22   permanent Louisiana jobs in what's called a statement

23   and creat what's called a "qualified entertainment

24   company" during the legislation session.  And so it's

25   what's required that the Quality Jobs held by Louisiana
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 1   residents, which will be pay more than 45,000 annually,

 2   they're eligible for a 15 percent tax credit.  So we had

 3   our first project, which was announced in December by

 4   Deep South Studios, which is a design-build

 5   entertainment production complex in New Orleans.

 6   They're going to be the first to reap the benefits of

 7   that new program.

 8                   And then in January, just last week,

 9   there was a Military Economic Impact study that was done

10   on the military impact in Louisiana, and just so that

11   you-all know, the military related spending in Louisiana

12   counts for 7.7-billion in annual economic output.  It's

13   a significant impact affecting every region of the state

14   based upon where your bases are located.  And they're

15   currently providing more than 77,000 jobs and they pay

16   almost $280-million in state and local taxes according

17   to the study.  The military counts for four percent of

18   Louisiana jobs.  So I just wanted to share that with

19   you-all so you can really see what impact the military

20   does have in our state.

21                   And then rounding out, keeping with our

22   military, back in October, the Louisiana Veteran

23   Entrepreneurship Program was launched, and it began

24   coursework as the program's in-person boot camp.  We're

25   working with -- LED's working with the Veteran Affairs
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 1   Department to establish a program which will enable

 2   service members leaving the military to gain intensive

 3   training in this boot camp, and they're going to have

 4   ongoing counseling from small business resource

 5   partners.  And the goal is that they're going to, at

 6   least 30 percent of the participants would launch a

 7   business and collectively raise about $5-million in

 8   startup capital.

 9                   And then also along the small business

10   line, we've had a lot of success in our CEO roundtables

11   for fast growing firms, and LED launched another round

12   of roundtables back in November in eight cities

13   throughout the state.  And each roundtable brings

14   together about 10 to 15 business owners of small and

15   emerging business and so they work together each year

16   and they share and learn from each other experiences of

17   their peers and that gives them an opportunity to get

18   kind of just-in-time answers to their pressing issues

19   that they may have and the kind of confined environment.

20                   And then we also launched in January, we

21   launched for small construction companies the Louisiana

22   Contractors Accreditation Institute.  We had another

23   session of that that launched, so...

24                   Those are things that have been going on

25   whenever we haven't been meeting.  And then hopefully
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 1   we'll continue to have these announcements throughout

 2   the year, and I'll provide or Mandi will provide those

 3   updates to you on an ongoing basis.

 4               MR. ANDRE:

 5                   Any comments?

 6               MS. THAM:

 7                   I do have a personal note.  I wanted to

 8   remind everybody, remember the EDAP loan from I guess

 9   last fiscal year to General Informatics?

10               MS. VILLA:

11                   Yes, on Highland.

12               MS. THAM:

13                   They did facial recognition software for

14   law enforcement was their really big project, but in

15   general, they're just a high-tech firm with a lot of

16   software, a lot of jobs for young people, you know, who

17   are likely diversifying into high-tech stuff.  They've

18   been building their building office park at the corner

19   of Highland Road and Bluebonnet.  We watched it go up

20   every day this year.  It's a gorgeous building, has an

21   exciting look about it.  I think it's kind of a physical

22   manifestation of some of the improvements and

23   opportunities for young people to stay here and not go

24   to Houston or -- you know, it was an exciting project

25   when they brought it to us, and it's exciting to watch
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 1   it go up.

 2               MR. REINE:

 3                   Yes, sir.  I just wanted to comment on

 4   when you look at the paper mill, I know those people who

 5   are going to end up working there live here, and so

 6   we've done something for actually our residents and our

 7   workers.

 8                   I'm excited about the movie tax credit.

 9   It gives very enhanced benefit for hiring the people

10   that live here, and it also had a percentage increase to

11   make sure that the industry goes outside of New Orleans

12   where there's an additional incentive for filming

13   outside of the City of New Orleans.

14                   I commend you on the Louisiana

15   Contractor so that we make available to these companies

16   that are coming the opportunity to use Louisiana

17   businesses and Louisiana people.  I think these are

18   great steps.  There's been great concern that a lot of

19   the projects that were considered economic development,

20   our people didn't get to participate, particularly in

21   the construction part of a lot of those big projects

22   where the state participates, forgoes revenue or gives

23   incentives and all of the work is done by people who

24   come here from someplace else, then they go back home.

25   So to see these projects where, in the whole picture,
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 1   the workers and the citizens in this state are, there's

 2   much encouragement for them to participate, I greatly

 3   appreciate that and commend you for it.

 4               MS. VILLA:

 5                   Thank you.

 6               MR. ANDRE:

 7                   Any other comments or questions?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MR. ANDRE:

10                   Okay.  Any other business to come before

11   the board?

12               (No response.)

13               MR. ANDRE:

14                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

15   adjourn.

16               MR. REINE:

17                   So moved.

18               MR. ANDRE:

19                   Second?

20               MS. THAM:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ANDRE:

23                   Thank you very much.  Good meeting.

24               (Meeting adjourns at 10:49 a.m.)

25
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			130									LN			5			15			false			15   McDonald, New Orleans native, and I am representing the						false


			131									LN			5			16			false			16   Louisiana Workforce Council.  I am chair of their						false


			132									LN			5			17			false			17   council.  And I also have a background in banking as						false


			133									LN			5			18			false			18   well.  I've been in banking for 14 years, and I'm very						false


			134									LN			5			19			false			19   happy to be here as well.  So looking forward to a						false


			135									LN			5			20			false			20   productive term.						false


			136									LN			5			21			false			21               MR. ANDRE:						false


			137									LN			5			22			false			22                   Okay.  Welcome both of you.  We look						false


			138									LN			5			23			false			23   forward to working with you.						false


			139									LN			5			24			false			24                   Next on the agenda is the approval of						false


			140									LN			5			25			false			25   the minutes of last meeting.  I didn't realize that was						false


			141									PG			6			0			false			page 6						false


			142									LN			6			1			false			 1   way back in August.  So could I have a motion --						false


			143									LN			6			2			false			 2               MR. REINE:						false


			144									LN			6			3			false			 3                   Mr. Chairman, that's why I wasn't paying						false


			145									LN			6			4			false			 4   attention during your finance meeting because I read						false


			146									LN			6			5			false			 5   through them.  So I move we adopt the minutes.						false


			147									LN			6			6			false			 6               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			148									LN			6			7			false			 7                   Second.						false


			149									LN			6			8			false			 8               MR. ANDRE:						false


			150									LN			6			9			false			 9                   We have a motion and second to adopt the						false


			151									LN			6			10			false			10   minutes.						false


			152									LN			6			11			false			11                   Do we have any comments, comments from						false


			153									LN			6			12			false			12   the public?  Any comments from the Board members?  Any						false


			154									LN			6			13			false			13   changes, additions or deletions?						false


			155									LN			6			14			false			14               (No response.)						false


			156									LN			6			15			false			15               MR. ANDRE:						false


			157									LN			6			16			false			16                   All in favor?						false


			158									LN			6			17			false			17               (Several members respond "aye.")						false


			159									LN			6			18			false			18               MR. ANDRE:						false


			160									LN			6			19			false			19                   Any opposed?						false


			161									LN			6			20			false			20               (No response.)						false


			162									LN			6			21			false			21               MR. ANDRE:						false


			163									LN			6			22			false			22                   Okay.  Next on the agenda is we have one						false


			164									LN			6			23			false			23   inhouse approval that was done since our last meeting						false


			165									LN			6			24			false			24   that stuff to give us a report on that.  That's Aerion						false


			166									LN			6			25			false			25   Rental Services.						false


			167									PG			7			0			false			page 7						false


			168									LN			7			1			false			 1               MS. DOIN:						false


			169									LN			7			2			false			 2                   Good morning.  My name is Marissa Doin.						false


			170									LN			7			3			false			 3   We have one loan update for you today with Aerion Rental						false


			171									LN			7			4			false			 4   Services, LLC.						false


			172									LN			7			5			false			 5                   Aerion is as oil field service company.						false


			173									LN			7			6			false			 6   They were formed back in 2008.  So what they do is they						false


			174									LN			7			7			false			 7   provide equipment and labor to companies to help wash						false


			175									LN			7			8			false			 8   down the rigs after they're taken down.  They currently						false


			176									LN			7			9			false			 9   have 104 employees, and with this guaranty, they're						false


			177									LN			7			10			false			10   going to be creating six new jobs.						false


			178									LN			7			11			false			11                   They've requested a $500,000 term loan						false


			179									LN			7			12			false			12   backed by equipment to help manage and pay down their						false


			180									LN			7			13			false			13   accounts payables.  The guarantees are going to be for						false


			181									LN			7			14			false			14   $375,000 for five years.  With their rising sales and						false


			182									LN			7			15			false			15   positive cash flow for 2017, Aerion is projected to grow						false


			183									LN			7			16			false			16   significantly, which is why staff recommended approval.						false


			184									LN			7			17			false			17   And this one was approved and closed in August by Rayne						false


			185									LN			7			18			false			18   State Bank.						false


			186									LN			7			19			false			19                   Any questions?						false


			187									LN			7			20			false			20               (No response.)						false


			188									LN			7			21			false			21               MR. ANDRE:						false


			189									LN			7			22			false			22                   Any questions from the Board members?						false


			190									LN			7			23			false			23               MR. REINE:						false


			191									LN			7			24			false			24                   There's in the oil and gas business?						false


			192									LN			7			25			false			25               MS. DOIN:						false


			193									PG			8			0			false			page 8						false


			194									LN			8			1			false			 1                   Yes.						false


			195									LN			8			2			false			 2               MR REINE:						false


			196									LN			8			3			false			 3                   You're talking about exceptional growth						false


			197									LN			8			4			false			 4   in their company in today's current oil and gas market?						false


			198									LN			8			5			false			 5               MS. DOIN:						false


			199									LN			8			6			false			 6                   The industry is bouncing back.						false


			200									LN			8			7			false			 7               MR. REINE:						false


			201									LN			8			8			false			 8                   Do you need a motion, Mr. Chairman?						false


			202									LN			8			9			false			 9               MR. ANDRE:						false


			203									LN			8			10			false			10                   No.  Thank you.						false


			204									LN			8			11			false			11                   Next is our Finance Committee report,						false


			205									LN			8			12			false			12   and, Susan, before you start, I want to commend you for						false


			206									LN			8			13			false			13   a great job you do as our chair of our Finance						false


			207									LN			8			14			false			14   Committee.  I applaud your great expertise and						false


			208									LN			8			15			false			15   professionalism in handling this committee and guiding						false


			209									LN			8			16			false			16   us through this.  Thanks a lot.						false


			210									LN			8			17			false			17               MS. THAM:						false


			211									LN			8			18			false			18                   Thank you very much.						false


			212									LN			8			19			false			19                   As the Board heard, the financial						false


			213									LN			8			20			false			20   statements were presented by Mr. Aaron Cooper, J. Aaron						false


			214									LN			8			21			false			21   Cooper, CPA, LLC.  He audited our financial statements.						false


			215									LN			8			22			false			22   And the supplemental information was explained by						false


			216									LN			8			23			false			23   Mr. Katsanis -- I'm still not going to get it right --						false


			217									LN			8			24			false			24   of Chaffe & Associates.						false


			218									LN			8			25			false			25                   After hearing their information, the						false


			219									PG			9			0			false			page 9						false


			220									LN			9			1			false			 1   Finance Committee has passed a motion to recommend that						false


			221									LN			9			2			false			 2   the Board accept the financial statements as they stand.						false


			222									LN			9			3			false			 3               MR. REINE:						false


			223									LN			9			4			false			 4                   So moved.						false


			224									LN			9			5			false			 5               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			225									LN			9			6			false			 6                   Second.						false


			226									LN			9			7			false			 7               MR. ANDRE:						false


			227									LN			9			8			false			 8                   We have a motion and a second to approve						false


			228									LN			9			9			false			 9   the Finance Committee report.						false


			229									LN			9			10			false			10                   Are there any comments, questions?  Any						false


			230									LN			9			11			false			11   opinions from the public?  Any comments from the public?						false


			231									LN			9			12			false			12               (No response.)						false


			232									LN			9			13			false			13               MR. ANDRE:						false


			233									LN			9			14			false			14                   Hearing none, all in favor.						false


			234									LN			9			15			false			15               (Several members respond "aye.")						false


			235									LN			9			16			false			16               MR. ANDRE:						false


			236									LN			9			17			false			17                   Any opposed?						false


			237									LN			9			18			false			18               (No response.)						false


			238									LN			9			19			false			19               MR. ANDRE:						false


			239									LN			9			20			false			20                   Thank you, Susan.						false


			240									LN			9			21			false			21                   Okay.  Next on our agenda is election of						false


			241									LN			9			22			false			22   officers.  Our Chairman is not here this morning.  He						false


			242									LN			9			23			false			23   has a bad back.  He pulled his back, but so now to open						false


			243									LN			9			24			false			24   up the meeting to nominations for the chair of the						false


			244									LN			9			25			false			25   Board.						false


			245									PG			10			0			false			page 10						false


			246									LN			10			1			false			 1               MR. REINE:						false


			247									LN			10			2			false			 2                   Well, since Mr. Roy's not here, I think						false


			248									LN			10			3			false			 3   I will nominate him.						false


			249									LN			10			4			false			 4               MS. THAM:						false


			250									LN			10			5			false			 5                   Second.						false


			251									LN			10			6			false			 6               MR. REINE:						false


			252									LN			10			7			false			 7                   We'll teach him to not show up.  We'll						false


			253									LN			10			8			false			 8   give him more work.						false


			254									LN			10			9			false			 9               MS. THAM:						false


			255									LN			10			10			false			10                   Second.						false


			256									LN			10			11			false			11               MR. ANDRE:						false


			257									LN			10			12			false			12                   Is there a second?						false


			258									LN			10			13			false			13               MS. THAM:						false


			259									LN			10			14			false			14                   Yes, second.						false


			260									LN			10			15			false			15               MR. ANDRE:						false


			261									LN			10			16			false			16                   Any other nominations?						false


			262									LN			10			17			false			17               (No response.)						false


			263									LN			10			18			false			18               MR. ANDRE:						false


			264									LN			10			19			false			19                   All in favor of appointing Mr. Roy as						false


			265									LN			10			20			false			20   our next chair.						false


			266									LN			10			21			false			21               (Several members respond "aye.")						false


			267									LN			10			22			false			22               MR. ANDRE:						false


			268									LN			10			23			false			23                   Any opposed?						false


			269									LN			10			24			false			24               (No response.)						false


			270									LN			10			25			false			25               MR. ANDRE:						false


			271									PG			11			0			false			page 11						false


			272									LN			11			1			false			 1                   Thank you.						false


			273									LN			11			2			false			 2                   Next is vice-chair, and if you'd like,						false


			274									LN			11			3			false			 3   I'll be happy to leave in case you want to nominate						false


			275									LN			11			4			false			 4   someone else.						false


			276									LN			11			5			false			 5               MR. REINE:						false


			277									LN			11			6			false			 6                   You can stay here.  You're doing such an						false


			278									LN			11			7			false			 7   absolutely fantastic job this morning, I'll nominate you						false


			279									LN			11			8			false			 8   for vice-chair.						false


			280									LN			11			9			false			 9               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			281									LN			11			10			false			10                   Second.						false


			282									LN			11			11			false			11               MR. ANDRE:						false


			283									LN			11			12			false			12                   Any other nominees?						false


			284									LN			11			13			false			13               (No response.)						false


			285									LN			11			14			false			14               MR. ANDRE:						false


			286									LN			11			15			false			15                   Hearing none, all in favor.						false


			287									LN			11			16			false			16               (Several members respond "aye.")						false


			288									LN			11			17			false			17               MR. ANDRE:						false


			289									LN			11			18			false			18                   Any opposed?						false


			290									LN			11			19			false			19               (No response.)						false


			291									LN			11			20			false			20               MR. ANDRE:						false


			292									LN			11			21			false			21                   Okay.  Thank you.						false


			293									LN			11			22			false			22                   And committee appointments.  Staff, you						false


			294									LN			11			23			false			23   want to give us that report?						false


			295									LN			11			24			false			24               MR. BARHAM:						false


			296									LN			11			25			false			25                   If you look in your packet, I think the						false


			297									PG			12			0			false			page 12						false


			298									LN			12			1			false			 1   overall on Page 127, it begins on that page.  We have a						false


			299									LN			12			2			false			 2   handful of committees on Page 128.  I'm sorry.  27, 28.						false


			300									LN			12			3			false			 3   We have a total of five different committees, and this						false


			301									LN			12			4			false			 4   is the way that the committees stood as of January of						false


			302									LN			12			5			false			 5   2017, so they have not changed.						false


			303									LN			12			6			false			 6                   The Executive Committee is obviously						false


			304									LN			12			7			false			 7   made up of the chairman, the vice-chair, and then the --						false


			305									LN			12			8			false			 8   it's basically all of the chairmen of every single						false


			306									LN			12			9			false			 9   committee.  So that's pretty much a set one.  The other						false


			307									LN			12			10			false			10   four need to be appointed.  And underneath each one,						false


			308									LN			12			11			false			11   like the Screening Committee, we typically appoint five						false


			309									LN			12			12			false			12   positions.  We don't necessarily have to, but each						false


			310									LN			12			13			false			13   committee will require at least three members of that						false


			311									LN			12			14			false			14   committee to meet or the chair of that committee.  And						false


			312									LN			12			15			false			15   the interesting thing is that the vast majority of them						false


			313									LN			12			16			false			16   doesn't even have to have the chair of the committee to						false


			314									LN			12			17			false			17   meet as long as the chair is knowledgeable of the						false


			315									LN			12			18			false			18   meeting.						false


			316									LN			12			19			false			19                   The Screening Committee is probably our						false


			317									LN			12			20			false			20   most widely used of the committees.  It holds meetings						false


			318									LN			12			21			false			21   in place of the Board for certain projects in the event						false


			319									LN			12			22			false			22   that the Board cannot have a quorum.  We've run into						false


			320									LN			12			23			false			23   that issue in the past due to weather delays and						false


			321									LN			12			24			false			24   scheduling conflicts and emergencies.  So the Screening						false


			322									LN			12			25			false			25   Committee will meet and review projects for the EDAP						false


			323									PG			13			0			false			page 13						false


			324									LN			13			1			false			 1   program and the Small Business Loan Guaranty program						false


			325									LN			13			2			false			 2   when the full Board is not available.						false


			326									LN			13			3			false			 3                   They can be appointed however you'd						false


			327									LN			13			4			false			 4   like.  If the Board -- I mean, I know our chair is not						false


			328									LN			13			5			false			 5   here, so I guess it would be up to the vice-chair to						false


			329									LN			13			6			false			 6   appoint or if anybody has an interest in being on any						false


			330									LN			13			7			false			 7   particular committee itself.  We have --						false


			331									LN			13			8			false			 8               MR. ANDRE:						false


			332									LN			13			9			false			 9                   I'd like to ask our new members if they						false


			333									LN			13			10			false			10   have any interest or would like to volunteer for any of						false


			334									LN			13			11			false			11   these.						false


			335									LN			13			12			false			12               MR. REINE:						false


			336									LN			13			13			false			13                   Mr. Chair, can I ask a question?						false


			337									LN			13			14			false			14                   Under the Screening Committee, how is						false


			338									LN			13			15			false			15   that language developed?  Is it something we did or is						false


			339									LN			13			16			false			16   that mandated language?						false


			340									LN			13			17			false			17               MR. BARHAM:						false


			341									LN			13			18			false			18                   Yeah.  That was created years and years						false


			342									LN			13			19			false			19   ago when the Board was first formed.  It's changed a						false


			343									LN			13			20			false			20   little bit over the years, but it has been a while.						false


			344									LN			13			21			false			21               MR. REINE:						false


			345									LN			13			22			false			22                   Well, it seems kind of confusing.  If						false


			346									LN			13			23			false			23   we're going to appoint five members, like couldn't we						false


			347									LN			13			24			false			24   just chang it to "The chairman's going to appoint five						false


			348									LN			13			25			false			25   members," instead of "shall consist of three members						false


			349									PG			14			0			false			page 14						false


			350									LN			14			1			false			 1   including the vice-chairman and two additional members						false


			351									LN			14			2			false			 2   who may be appointed or alternatives."  If we appoint						false


			352									LN			14			3			false			 3   five members, why don't we just say the chairman's going						false


			353									LN			14			4			false			 4   to appoint five members?						false


			354									LN			14			5			false			 5               MR. BARHAM:						false


			355									LN			14			6			false			 6                   We can look into that.  I'll have to						false


			356									LN			14			7			false			 7   double check if it's in the statute or bylaws.  I						false


			357									LN			14			8			false			 8   believe if it's in the bylaws, I think the Board can						false


			358									LN			14			9			false			 9   just meet and decide on changing it.  If it's the						false


			359									LN			14			10			false			10   statute, that would be a whole different ball game.						false


			360									LN			14			11			false			11               MR. REINE:						false


			361									LN			14			12			false			12                   If there's a reason for it to read that						false


			362									LN			14			13			false			13   way, but it would be much clearer if we just say what						false


			363									LN			14			14			false			14   we're going to do and do what we say.						false


			364									LN			14			15			false			15               MR. BARHAM:						false


			365									LN			14			16			false			16                   Layman's terms.  I agree.  Layman's						false


			366									LN			14			17			false			17   terms.						false


			367									LN			14			18			false			18               MS. THAM:						false


			368									LN			14			19			false			19                   Before our new board members comment,						false


			369									LN			14			20			false			20   one thing I'd like to point out about is that one of the						false


			370									LN			14			21			false			21   things that I was always told about the Screening						false


			371									LN			14			22			false			22   Committee is a lot of times trying to get people						false


			372									LN			14			23			false			23   together when it's hard to get a quorum.  And so, for						false


			373									LN			14			24			false			24   instance, I had always volunteered for it because I was						false


			374									LN			14			25			false			25   in Baton Rouge, you know, I worked 10 miles away, and I						false


			375									PG			15			0			false			page 15						false


			376									LN			15			1			false			 1   could be here easily.  So that's something to consider						false


			377									LN			15			2			false			 2   for the Screening Committee.  It would require you						false


			378									LN			15			3			false			 3   trying to commit to being here if you were needed.						false


			379									LN			15			4			false			 4                   And it is for that same reason, I'd like						false


			380									LN			15			5			false			 5   to take my name off the Screening Committee.  For those						false


			381									LN			15			6			false			 6   of you who have been here for a while, you know that						false


			382									LN			15			7			false			 7   basically I have put in my letter of resignation pending						false


			383									LN			15			8			false			 8   my move out of state.  I retired this year.						false


			384									LN			15			9			false			 9               MR. ANDRE:						false


			385									LN			15			10			false			10                   Remove your name from what?						false


			386									LN			15			11			false			11               MS. THAM:						false


			387									LN			15			12			false			12                   From the Screening Committee.  Yeah.						false


			388									LN			15			13			false			13   It's not very practical for me living in Florida to have						false
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